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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
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regarding the Company’s compliance with the NY SE&gporate governance listing standards.

Common Stock Listing
New York Stock Exchange: GCO

Shareholder Information
Shareholder information may be accessed at wwwsgensom




THE BUSINESS OF GENESCO

Founded in 1924, Nashville, Tennessee-based GehasoiNYSE: GCO) is a leading retailer of brandedtwear, licensed
and branded headwear and accessories and wholeShlanded footwear. It operates 2,459 footweartegadwear retail
stores in the United States, Canada, the UniteddGm and the Republic of Ireland, principally untter names Journeys,
Journeys Kidz, Shi by Journeys, Underground byrieys, Schuh, Johnston & Murphy, Lids, Locker Rognttds and on
internet websites, www.journeys.com, www.journeggktom, www.shibyjourneys.com, www.undergroundbyjsys.com,
www.schuh.co.uk, www.johnstonmurphy.com, www.doskéioes.com, www.suregrip.com, www.lids.com,
www.lidslockerroom.com, www.lidsteamsports.com amdw.lidsclubhouse.com. In addition, Genesco desigosrces,
markets and distributes footwear under its own stwm& Murphy brand, the licensed Dockers® brandl eter brands and
operates the Lids Team Sports team dealer busiGesgsco relies primarily on independent thirdyparanufacturers for the
production of its footwear products sold at wholesa

TOTAL RETURN TO SHAREHOLDERS

INCLUDES REINVESTMENT OF DIVIDENDS

The graph below compares the cumulative total $iwdder return on the Company’s common stock foraisefive fiscal
years with the cumulative total return of (i) th&R5500 Index and (ii) the S&P 1500 Footwear IndEixe graph assumes the
investment of $100 in the Company’s common stdoi&,3&P 500 Index and the S&P 1500 Footwear Indéxeatmarket
close on January 31, 2008 and the reinvestmenthiyooit all dividends.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE 5 YEAR TOTAL RETURN
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ANNUAL RETURN PERCENTAGE (%)
Years Ending
Company / Index Jan09 Jan10 Janl1ll Janl12 Jan 13
Genesco Inc. -49.06 53.12 53.77 69.91 1.98
S&P 500 Index -39.37 33.14 21.26 5.33 17.60
S&P 1500 Footwear Index -36.59 49.26 34.33 24.35 2.70
INDEXED RETURNS ($)
Base Years Ending
Period
Company / Index Jan 08 Jan09 Jan10 Jan1l1 Jan12 Jan 13
Genesco Inc. 100 50.94 78.00 119.95 203.81 207.85
S&P 500 Index 100 60.63 80.72 97.88 103.10 121.24
S&P 1500 Footwear Index 100 63.41 94.65 127.14 158.11  162.37

*The S&P 1500 Footwear Index consists of Crocs, IBeckers Outdoor Corp., K-Swiss Inc. —CL A, Mad&taven Ltd., Nike Inc. —CL B, Skechers U.S.A.
Inc. and Wolverine World Wide.
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PART |

ITEM 1, BUSINESS
General

Genesco Inc. (“Genesco” or the “Company”) is a legdetailer and wholesaler of branded footweapaapl and
accessories with net sales for Fiscal 2013 of $BiBi@n. During Fiscal 2013, the Company operafiveé reportable
business segments (not including corporate): (iyreys Group, comprised of the Journeys, Journdgg, KShi by
Journeys and Underground by Journeys retail foatwhains, catalog and e-commerce operations; ¢hu8 Group,
acquired in June 2011, comprised of the Schuhlrédaiwear chain and e-commerce operations; (idsLSports
Group, comprised of (a) headwear and accessorgsstorder the Lifsname and other names in the U.S., Puerto Rico
and Canada, (b) the Lids Locker Room business,istomg of sports-oriented fan shops featuring aadrarray of
licensed merchandise such as apparel, hats andsaciess, sports decor and novelty products, (clttie Clubhouse
business, consisting of single team fan shopss{@mmerce business and (e) an athletic team dmadaress operating
as Lids Team Sports; (iv) Johnston & Murphy Groepmprised of Johnston & Murphy retail operationsoenmerce
and catalog operations and wholesale distribut@mmt (v) Licensed Brands, comprised of Dockemotwear, sourced
and marketed under a license from Levi Strauss &@my; SureGripFootwear, occupational footwear primarily sold
directly to consumers; and other brands.

At February 2, 2013, the Company operated 2,458 fetotwear, headwear and sports apparel and sooestores
located primarily throughout the United States amdPuerto Rico, but also including 98 headwear estoaind 29
footwear stores in Canada and 79 footwear storéd @rfootwear concessions in the United Kingdom tiedRepublic
of Ireland. It currently plans to open a total ppeoximately 165 new retail stores and close 38ilrstores in Fiscal
2014. At February 2, 2013, Journeys Group operajEsl7 stores, including 156 Journeys Kidz, 51 $hidurneys and
130 Underground by Journeys; Schuh Group opera&estofes and 13 concessions; Lids Sports Groupatgued 053
stores and Johnston & Murphy Group operated 1%l sdtops and factory stores.

The following table sets forth certain additionalormation concerning the Company’s retail footwdasadwear and
sports apparel and accessory stores during therfost recent fiscal years:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Retail Store

Beginning of yee 2,175 2,234 2,276 2,309 2,387
Opened during ye 102 61 53 70 104
Acquired during ye: _ 38 58 85 33
Closed during yei (43) (57) (78) (77) (65)
End of yea 2,234 2,276 2,309 2,387 2,459

The Company also designs, sources, markets antbdiss footwear under its own Johnston & Murphgriat, the
licensed DockefSbrand and other brands that the Company licemsanén’s footwear to over 1,025 retail accounts in
the United States, including a number of leadingadiement, discount, and specialty stores.

Shorthand references to fiscal years (e.g., “Fi@l3") refer to the fiscal year ended on the Sktyrnearest
January 31 in the named year (e.g., February 2, 2013). €hag “Company,” “Genesco,” “we,” “our” or “us” ased
herein and unless otherwise stated or indicateddoyext refer to Genesco Inc. and its subsidiarid.information
contained in “Management’s Discussion and Analydig-inancial Condition and Results of Operationsfiich is
referred to in Item 1 of this report, is incorpattby such reference in Item 1. This report costdomward-looking
statements. Actual results may vary materially addersely from the expectations reflected in thetagements. For a
discussion of some of the factors that may leaddifterent results, see Item 1A, “Risk Factors” ahdm 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations.”

Available Information

The Company files reports with the Securities amdhange Commission (“SEC”), including annual reparh Form
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and other repfsom time to time. The public may read and capy materials
we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public RefereRo®mm at 100 F. Street, NE, Washington, DC 2054@. diblic may
obtain information on the operation of the Publieféence Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-033t&
Company is an electronic filer and the SEC maistain Internet site at http://www.sec.gov that cimstahe reports,
proxy and information statements, and other infdiomafiled electronically. The Company’'s websitedegks is
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http://www.genesco.com. The Company’s website agidie provided as an inactive textual referencey.omhe
Company makes available free of charge throughwlesite annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly respon Form
10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and all amendsém those reports as soon as reasonably praetiefter such
material is electronically filed with or furnishe¢d the SEC. Copies of the charters of each of tamgany’s Audit
Committee, Compensation Committee and Nominating &orporate Governance Committee, as well as the
Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines and @ddethics along with position descriptions for tBeard of
Directors and Board committees are also availaiele 6f charge through the website. The informagimvided on the
Company’s website is not part of this report, asdherefore not incorporated by reference unlesh suformation is
otherwise specifically incorporated elsewhere ia thport.

Segments
Journeys Group

The Journeys Group segment, including Journeysndgs Kidz, Shi by Journeys and Underground bynkys retail
stores, catalog and e-commerce operations, acabtort@pproximately 43% of the Company’s net salesSiscal 2013.
Operating income attributable to Journeys Group $&36.9 million in Fiscal 2013, with an operatingngin of 9.6%.
The Company believes that the Journeys Group’sndiste store formats, its mix of well-known brandad new
product introductions, and its experienced managéteam provide significant competitive advantaigeshe Journeys
Group.

At February 2, 2013, Journeys Group operated 1st&ies, including 156 Journeys Kidz stores, 51 &hdourneys
stores and 130 Underground by Journeys storesgiagrapproximately 1,900 square feet, throughoeitUhited States
and in Puerto Rico and Canada, selling footwearaameessories for young men, women and children.

Same store sales increased 6%, comparable didest isareased 8% and comparable sales, includitiy $tore and
direct sales, increased 6% from the prior fiscalrydourneys stores target customers in the 12 tgear age group
through the use of youth-oriented decor and mtidrmel media. Journeys stores carry predominatedynded
merchandise across a wide range of prices. ThendgsirKidz retail footwear stores sell footwear autessories
primarily for younger children ages five to 12. ®lyi Journeys retail footwear stores sell footweat accessories to a
target customer group consisting of fashion-consiwomen in their early 20's to mid 30’s. Undergrdiby Journeys
retail footwear stores sell footwear and accessqienarily for men and women in the 20 to 35 ageug. In Fiscal
2013, the Journeys Group added three net new starkeplans to open approximately 32 net new siarEscal 2014.

Lids Sports Group

The Lids Sports Group segment, as described atamesunted for approximately 30% of the Companyissages in
Fiscal 2013. Operating income attributable to L8fsorts Group was $85.8 million in Fiscal 2013, wath operating
margin of 10.8%.

At February 2, 2013, Lids Sports Group operate®3 Sores, averaging approximately 1,150 squart tie@ughout
the United States and in Puerto Rico and Canads. $ports Group added 51 net new stores in FiE8,2ncluding
33 acquired stores, and plans to open approxim@ghet new stores in Fiscal 2014.

Same store sales for Lids Sports Group decreasefb@éPiscal 2013, while comparable direct saleséased 9% from
the prior fiscal year. Comparable sales, includioth store and direct sales, decreased 3% foalFXX13. The core
headwear stores and kiosks, located in malls, agpstreet-level stores and factory outlet stohesughout the United
States and in Puerto Rico and Canada, target castom the early-teens to mid-20's age group. Inegal, the stores
offer headwear from an assortment of college, MNBA, NFL and NHL teams, as well as other speciddtghion

categories. The Lids Locker Room and Lids Clubhosteges, operating under a number of trade naroeatdd in

malls and other locations primarily in the UnitethiBs, target sports fans of all ages. These staffes headwear,
apparel, accessories and novelties from an assortoiecollege and professional teams. The Clubhatsees offer

headwear, apparel and accessories for specifiegmbr professional teams.

Schuh Group

The Schuh Group segment, including e-commerce tipesa accounted for approximately 14% of the Comypanet

sales in Fiscal 2013. Operating income attributabl&chuh Group was $7.9 million in Fiscal 2013thwan operating
margin of 2.1%. Operating income for Schuh inclu#d@.1 million in compensation expense related weterred

purchase price obligation in connection with thgquasition. For additional information, see Noteo2tlhe Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8.



Sames store sales increased 7%, comparable dilestiacreased 13% and comparable sales, inclumtitigstore and
direct sales, increased 8% from July through thieadrihe prior fiscal year. At February 2, 2018h&h Group operated
76 Schuh stores, averaging approximately 4,300reqfe®t, which include both street-level and matlations in the

United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland. Schule@ opened its first Kids store in Fiscal 2013 & February 2,

2013, Schuh Group operated three Kids stores avgrdg075 square feet. The Schuh Group also opkf@dootwear

concessions in Republic apparel stores in the diiagdom, averaging approximately 1,175 squaré feéehuh Group

plans to open approximately 15 new Schuh storesciosk five stores in Fiscal 2014. Schuh storegetamen and

women in the 15 to 30 age group selling a broadeaf branded casual and athletic footwear alort avimeaningful

private label offering.

Johnston & Murphy Group

The Johnston & Murphy Group segment, including iteftores, catalog and e-commerce operations anolesale
distribution, accounted for approximately 9% of tbempany’s net sales in Fiscal 2013. Operatingrmeattributable
to Johnston & Murphy Group was $15.7 million ind&k2013, with an operating margin of 7.1%. Aliteé Johnston &
Murphy wholesale sales are of the Genesco-ownedsiom& Murphy brand and approximately 99% of theug’s
retail sales are of Johnston & Murphy branded petsiu

Johnston & Murphy Retail Operations. At Februar®@13, Johnston & Murphy operated 157 retail shanb factory
stores throughout the United States and in Canadeaging approximately 1,825 square feet and spfiootwear,
luggage and accessories primarily for men in thad355 age group, targeting business and profesismrstomers.
Women'’s footwear and accessories are sold in sétdotston & Murphy locations. Johnston & Murphtaileshops are
located primarily in better malls and airports aatvide and sell a broad range of men’s dress asdat&ootwear and
accessories. The Company also sells Johnston & hWyspducts directly to consumers through an e-cersmwebsite
and a direct mail catalog. Same store sales fonstoh & Murphy retail operations increased 3%, caraple direct
sales increased 13% and comparable sales, incliitigstore and direct sales, increased 4% foraFB@13. Retail
prices for Johnston & Murphy footwear generallygarirom $100 to $275. Total footwear accountedéfa¥o of total
Johnston & Murphy retail sales in Fiscal 2013, witte balance consisting primarily of apparel andeasories.
Johnston & Murphy Group added nine new shops aotbrfia stores, including four in Canada, and clofee shops
and factory stores in Fiscal 2013, and plans tomn@pproximately 12 net new shops and factory storésscal 2014.

Johnston & Murphy Wholesale Operations. In additoi@€ompany-owned Johnston & Murphy retail shopd f@ctory

stores, Johnston & Murphy men’s footwear and acress are sold at wholesale, primarily to bettepatément and
independent specialty stores. Johnston & Murphyf®lesale customers offer the brand’s footwear fass, dress
casual, and casual occasions, with the majorigtydés offered in these channels selling from $H0$165.

Licensed Brands

The Licensed Brands segment accounted for appreeiynd% of the Company’s net sales in Fiscal 20Q8erating
income attributable to Licensed Brands was $10lliomiin Fiscal 2013, with an operating margin 08%. Licensed
Brands sales are footwear marketed under the Dgitkeand, for which Genesco has had the exclusiveésieatwear
license in the United States since 1991. See “Tnadles and Licenses.” Dockers footwear is marketeshén aged 30
to 55 through many of the same national retail mhahat carry Dockers slacks and sportswear antpartment and
specialty stores across the country. Suggesteil peizes for Dockers footwear generally range fré60 to $90. The
Company acquired Keuka Footwear in the third quasfeFiscal 2011 and subsequently launched its
Footwear line of slip-resistant, occupational foedvfrom that base. The Company sources and digtstihe SureGrip
line to employees in the hospitality, healthcarel ather industries.

For further information on the Company’s businesgnsents, see Note 14 to the Consolidated Finast@ements
included in Item 8 and “Management’s Discussion Andlysis of Financial Condition and Results of @iens.”

Manufacturing and Sourcing

The Company relies on independent third-party mactufers for production of its footwear productklsat wholesale.
The Company sources footwear and accessory prothocts foreign manufacturers located in Bangladdsgigium,
Brazil, Canada, China, Denmark, Dominican Repubkcance, India, Indonesia, Ireland, Italy, Koreagexito,
Netherlands, Peru, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Thhidemd Vietham. The Company’s retail operations a@yarimarily
branded products from third parties, who sourcearily overseas.

Competition

Competition is intense in the footwear and headwaiustry. The Company'’s retail footwear and heagivo®mpetitors
range from small, locally owned stores to regicarad national department stores, discount storesspecialty chains.
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The Company also competes with hundreds of footwdwsnlesale operations in the United States andutiirout the
world, most of which are relatively small, spedali operations, but some of which are large, maversified
companies. Some of the Company’s competitors haseurces that are not available to the Company.Cidrepany’s
success depends upon its ability to remain conmgetitith respect to the key factors of style, priqaality, comfort,
brand loyalty, customer service, store location atmdosphere and the ability to offer distinctiveducts.

Licenses

The Company owns its Johnston & Murphy brand andsoer licenses the trade names of its retail cascepher

directly or through wholly owned subsidiaries. Thecker§ brand footwear line, introduced in Fiscal 1993sdsd

under a license agreement granting the exclusgig to sell men’s footwear under the trademarkhim Wnited States,
Canada and Mexico and in certain other Latin Ansaricountries. The Dockers license agreement, andedeexpires
on November 30, 2015, subject to extension for ddit@nal 3-year term if certain conditions are médet sales of
Dockers products were approximately $84 millionFiscal 2013 and approximately $78 million in Fis@all2. The
Company licenses certain of its footwear brandsstiyon foreign markets. License royalty income wa$ material in
Fiscal 2013.

Wholesale Backlog

Most of the orders in the Company’'s wholesale dvis are for delivery within 150 days. Because mafsthe

Company’s business is at-once, the backlog at amytime is not necessarily indicative of futureesalAs of March 2,
2013, the Company’s wholesale operations had aldgai orders, including unconfirmed customer pas#h orders,
amounting to approximately $46.1 million, compatedpproximately $47.5 million on February 25, 20TBe backlog
is somewhat seasonal, reaching a peak in spring.Cdmpany maintains in-stock programs for selepteduct lines
with anticipated high volume sales.

Employees

Genesco had approximately 22,700 employees at &gb&y 2013, approximately 120 of whom were empioye
corporate staff departments and the balance inatipas. Retail footwear and headwear stores emplsybstantial
number of part-time employees, and approximate|8253 of the Company’s employees were part-time.

Properties

At February 2, 2013, the Company operated 2,458 ristotwear, headwear and sports apparel and sogestores
throughout the United States and in Puerto Ricaja@a, the United Kingdom and the Republic of IrdlaNew
shopping center store leases in the United StBig=to Rico and Canada typically are for a termapgroximately 10
years and new factory outlet leases typically area term of approximately five years. Store leasethe United
Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland typically hateems of between 10 and 20 years. Both typicalbvigle for rent
based on a percentage of sales against a fixednonmirent based on the square footage leased.

Seasonality

The Company’s business is seasonal with the Compamyestment in inventory and accounts receivaiemally
reaching peaks in the spring and fall of each year.



The general location, use and approximate sizeeo€obmpany’s principal properties are set fortiobel

Approximate

Owned/ Area
Location Leased Segment Use Square Feet
Lebanon, TN Owned Journeys Group Distribution warehouse 320,000
Nashville, TN Leased Various Executive & footwear
operations office 295,000
Indianapolis, IN Leased Lids Sports Group Distribution warehouse
and manufacturir 271,825
Chapel Hill, TN Owned Licensed Brands Distribution warehouse 182,000
Fayetteville, TN Owned Johnston & Distribution warehouse
Murphy Grouj 178,500
Indianapolis, IN Leased Lids Sports Group Distribution warehouse 152,158
Deans Industrial Estate, Owned Schuh Group Distribution warehouse
Livingston, Scotland and administrative offices 106,813
Indianapolis, IN Leased Lids Sports Group Distribution Warehouse 77,281
Lake Katrine, NY Leased Lids Sports Group Distribution warehouse
and administrative office 68,300
Nashville, TN Owned Journeys Group Distribution warehouse 63,000
Houston Industrial Estate, Leased Schuh Group Distribution warehouse
Livingston, Scotland 51,012
Indianapolis, IN Leased Lids Sports Group Headwear operations
offices 43,000
Mississauga, Ontario, Leased Lids Sports Group Distribution warehouse
Canad 28,392
Tigard, OR Leased Lids Sports Group Administrative offices 17,844
Indianapolis, IN Leased Lids Sports Group Administrative offices 13,000
Tampa, FL Leased Lids Sports Group Distribution warehouse
and administrative offices 7,112

* The Company occupies approximately 80% of thdéding and subleases the remainder of the buil

The lease on the Company’s Nashville office expime&pril 2017, with an option to renew for an atilolhal five years.
The lease on the Indianapolis headwear office ezpirt May 2015. The Company believes that all liea@ég@roperties that are
material to its operations may be renewed on temhsnaterially less favorable to the Company thestimg leases.



Environmental Matters

The Company’s former manufacturing operations &edsites of those operations are subject to nuradealeral, state,
and local laws and regulations relating to humaaltheand safety and the environment. These lawsragdlations
address and regulate, among other matters, wastewischarge, air quality and the generation, liagdistorage,
treatment, disposal, and transportation of solid hazardous wastes and releases of hazardous rmudsstamto the
environment. In addition, third parties and goveental agencies in some cases have the power uanderlavs and
regulations to require remediation of environmemihditions and, in the case of governmental agsndd impose
fines and penalties. Several of the facilities oaviby the Company (currently or in the past) arated in industrial
areas and have historically been used for extengseréods for industrial operations such as tannihgging, and
manufacturing. Some of these operations used ralteand generated wastes that would be considewgulated
substances under current environmental laws andla&ggns. The Company currently is involved in aért
administrative and judicial environmental procegdinmelating to the Company’s former facilities. S&en 3, Legal
Proceedings and Note 13.

ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS

Our business is subject to significant risks. Ybawdd carefully consider the risks and uncertamtiescribed below
and the other information in this Form 10-K, indhugl our consolidated financial statements and thesto those
statements. The risks and uncertainties describdivare not the only ones we face. Additionalsiakd uncertainties
that we do not presently know about or that weentty consider immaterial may also affect our besgioperations
and financial performance. If any of the eventscdbsd below actually occur, our business, financ@ndition or
results of operations could be adversely affected material way. This could cause the tradingepat our stock to
decline, perhaps significantly, and you may losé paall of your investment.

Poor economic conditions and other factors can aff¢ consumer spending and may significantly harm our
business, affecting our financial condition, liquidty, and results of operations.

The success of our business depends to a sigrtifica@nt upon the level of consumer spending. A lmemof factors
may affect the level of consumer spending on merdisa that we offer, including, among other things:

« general economic, industry and weather conditions;

* energy costs, which affect gasoline and home hggtiices;
» the level of consumer debt;

» pricing of products;

* interest rates;

« tax rates, refunds and policies;

« war, terrorism and other hostilities; and

« consumer confidence in future economic conditions.

Adverse economic conditions and any related deeréasconsumer demand for discretionary items cddsle a
material adverse effect on our business, resulgpefations and financial condition. The merchamaie sell generally
consists of discretionary items. Reduced consunmafidence and spending may result in reduced denfand
discretionary items and may force us to take inwgntmarkdowns, decreasing sales and making explenseage
difficult to achieve. Demand can also be influehbg other factors beyond our control. For examgédes in the Lids
Sports Group segment have historically been affebiedevelopments in team sports, and could beradleimpacted
by player strikes or other interruptions, as welbg the performance and reputation of certain geam

Moreover, while the Company believes that its ofiegecash flows and its borrowing capacity undenaodtted lines of
credit will be more than adequate for its anticgatash requirements, if the economy were to expeei a renewed
downturn, or if one or more of the Company’s rewndvcredit banks were to fail to honor its commititeeunder the
Company’s credit lines, the Company could be reglito modify its operations for decreased cash ftowto seek
alternative sources of liquidity, and such alteingsources might not be available to the Company.



Our business involves a degree of fashion risk.

The majority of our businesses serves a fashiosa@ons customer base and depends upon the alfitiyrduyers and
merchandisers to react to fashion trends, to psechaventory that reflects such trends, and to gamaur inventories
appropriately in view of the potential for sudddranges in fashion or in consumer taste. Failuetdinue to execute
any of these activities successfully could resnltadverse consequences, including lower sales,uptothargins,

operating income and cash flows.

Our business and results of operations are subjed¢b a broad range of uncertainties arising out of wdd and
domestic events.

Our business and results of operations are sutgjagtcertainties arising out of world and domestients, which may
impact not only consumer demand, but also our tghiti obtain the products we sell, most of whiclke aroduced

outside the countries in which we operate. Thesetainties may include a global economic slowdogmgnges in

consumer spending or travel, the increase in gasalind natural gas prices, and the economic coaregs of natural
disasters, military action or terrorist activitiasd increased regulatory and compliance burdeagerketo governmental
actions in response to a variety of factors, inclgcdbut not limited to national security and amtirbrism concerns and
concerns about climate change. Any future everigingras a result of terrorist activity or otherndoevents may have
a material impact on our business, including thealed for and our ability to source products, anaseguently on our
results of operations and financial condition.

The increasing scope of our non-U.S. operations eages our performance to risks including foreign egmmic
conditions and exchange rate fluctuations.

Our performance depends in part on general econoaniditions affecting all countries in which we Hosiness. We
are dependent on foreign manufacturers for theymtsdwe sell, and our inventory is subject to eogt availability of

foreign materials and labor. Demand for our prodhftagring in our non-U.S. operations is also subjeclocal market
conditions. The economic situation in Europe hesnbunstable, arising from concerns that certanofi@an countries
may default in payments due on their national adtigations and from related European financialreessuring efforts,

the effects of which could be felt throughout therdpean Union, including in the U.K. and the Repubf Ireland,

where our Schuh operations are based. While Schatpbrformed above our expectations since its sitiqui, there
can be no assurance that its future performandenwtibe adversely affected by economic conditionss markets.

As we expand our international operations, we al®oease our exposure to exchange rate fluctuatiBakes from
stores outside the U.S. are denominated in thewrcyrof the country in which these operations orest are located and
changes in foreign exchange rates affect the ttaonl of the sales and earnings of these businastses.S. dollars for
financial reporting purposes. Additionally, invent@urchase agreements may also be denominatdx iourrency of
the country where the vendor resides.

Our business is intensely competitive and increasemt new competition could have a material adverseffect on
us.

The retail footwear, headwear and accessories nsaake intensely competitive. We currently compagainst a diverse
group of retailers, including other regional andiovaal specialty stores, department and discouatest small
independents and e-commerce retailers, which setiyets similar to and often identical to thosese#. Our branded
businesses, selling footwear at wholesale, alse ifstense competition, both from other branded edale vendors and
from private label initiatives of their retailer stomers. A number of different competitive factoosild have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operstod financial condition, including:

 increased operational efficiencies of competitors;

e competitive pricing strategies;

* expansion by existing competitors;

e entry by new competitors into markets in which werently operate; and

« adoption by existing retail competitors of innovatstore formats or sales methods.



We are dependent on third-party vendors for the mechandise we sell.

We do not manufacture any of the merchandise weTdgb means that our product supply is subjedhability and
willingness of third-party suppliers to deliver rmkandise we order on time and in the quantitiescdrttie quality we
need. In addition, a material portion of our retadtwear sales consists of products marketed um@ards, belonging to
unaffiliated vendors, which have fashion significarto our customers. Our core retail hat busineskependent upon
products bearing sports and other logos, each ginepntrolled by a single licensee/vendor. Ifgaorendors were to
decide not to sell to us or to limit the availalyilof their products to us, or if they become ueabécause of economic
conditions or any other reason to supply us withdpcts, we could be unable to offer our custonmfeesproducts they
wish to buy and could lose their business to coitgst

An increase in the cost or a disruption in the flowof our imported products may significantly decreae our sales
and profits.

Merchandise originally manufactured and importexdrfroverseas makes up a large proportion of ouf itotantory. A
disruption in the shipping of our imported merchiaador an increase in the cost of those products sigmificantly
decrease our sales and profits. We may be unahieeti our customers’ demands or pass on priceaseseto our
customers. In addition, if imported merchandiseolbees more expensive or unavailable, the transitioalternative
sources may not occur in time to meet demand. Riedtom alternative sources may also be of legsatity or more
expensive than those we currently import. Riske@aged with our reliance on imported productsude!:

 disruptions in the shipping and importation of imjed products because of factors such as:

* raw material shortages, work stoppages, strikegaiitical unrest;

« problems with oceanic shipping, including shippammtainer shortages;

* increased customs inspections of import shipmentdher factors causing delays in shipments;
e economic crises, natural disasters, internatioispludes and wars; and

« increases in the cost of purchasing or shippingifor merchandise resulting from:

« denial by the United States of “most favored ndtitrading status to or the imposition of quotasodiner
restriction on imports from a foreign country fravhich we purchase goods;

e import duties, import quotas and other trade sanstiand

 increases in shipping rates.

A significant amount of the inventory we sell isparted from the People’s Republic of China, whigs thistorically
been subject to efforts to increase duty rates anpose restrictions on imports of certain product

A small portion of the products we buy abroad areeu in foreign currencies and, therefore, we affected by
fluctuating currency exchange rates. In the pastheve entered into foreign currency exchange aotstrwith major
financial institutions to hedge these fluctuatiogée might not be able to effectively protect owsslin the future
against currency rate fluctuations, and our finanperformance could suffer as a result. Even dadlémominated
foreign purchases may be affected by currencydhtadns, as suppliers seek to reflect appreciatidhe local currency
against the dollar in the price of the productst tteey provide. You should read “Management’s Dssgon and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiiems” for more information about our foreign @mcy exchange
rate exposure and hedging activities.

The operation of the Company’s business is heavijependent on its information systems.

We depend on a variety of information technologgtems for the efficient functioning of our businessl security of
information. Much information essential to our mess is maintained electronically, including contpetly sensitive

information and potentially sensitive personal mfation about customers and employees. Securitgches and
incidents, such as the unlawful intrusion into atipa of our networks used to process payment eard check
transactions for certain retail stores that we anged in December 2010, could expose us to lighitinnected to any
data loss, to higher operational costs relatecetority enhancements, and to loss of consumer dmmée in our retail
concepts and brands. Our insurance policies mayrmatide coverage for these matters or may haverage limits

which may not be adequate to reimburse us for osaesed by security breaches. We rely on cer@idware and
software vendors to maintain and periodically udgranany of these systems so that they can continsepport our

business. The software programs supporting manguofsystems were licensed to the Company by inckpen
software developers. The inability of these devetspor the Company to continue to maintain and agegrthese
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information systems and software programs couldugtsor reduce the efficiency of our operationsatidition, costs
and potential problems and interruptions associaitthe implementation of new or upgraded systants technology
or with maintenance or adequate support of exigtiygiems could also disrupt or reduce the effigieafcour operations
or leave the Company vulnerable to security bresiche

We also rely heavily on our information technolaigff. If we cannot meet our staffing needs in #risa, we may not
be able to fulfill our technology initiatives or povide maintenance on existing systems.

The loss of, or disruption in, one of our distributon centers and other factors affecting the distrilntion of
merchandise, could have a material adverse effech@ur business and operations.

Each of our operations uses a single distributemter to handle all or a significant amount ofnitsrchandise. Most of
our operations’ inventory is shipped directly fraauappliers to their distribution centers, where ittneentory is then
processed, sorted and shipped to our stores anrtvbiolesale customers. We depend on the ordesdyabipn of this
receiving and distribution process, which depenids,turn, on adherence to shipping schedules andcigfe
management of the distribution centers. Althoughbekeve that our receiving and distribution pracesefficient and
well positioned to support our current business and expansion plans, we cannot offer assurance wkahave
anticipated all of the changing demands which ograeding operations will impose on our receivingl aistribution
system, or that events beyond our control, sudisaaptions in operations due to fire or other satgphic events, labor
disagreements or shipping problems (whether inoour or in our third party vendors’ or carriers’ messes), will not
result in delays in the delivery of merchandiseto stores or to our wholesale customers. We akscerahanges in our
distribution processes from time to time in an dfto improve efficiency, maximize capacity, etceWannot assure
that these changes will not result in unanticipadethys or interruptions in distribution. We depambn UPS for
shipment of a significant amount of merchandise. iAterruption in service by UPS for any reason dochuse
temporary disruptions in our business, a loss lefssand profits, and other material adverse effects

Our freight cost is impacted by changes in fuetgsithrough surcharges. Fuel prices and surchaftge freight cost
both on inbound freight from vendors to our disitibn centers and outbound freight from our disttitin centers to
our stores and wholesale customers.

Increases in fuel prices and surcharges and o#twtors may increase freight costs and thereby aser@ur cost of
goods sold.

Any acquisitions we make or new businesses we lainimvolve a degree of risk.

Acquisitions have been a component of the Compagkosvth strategy in recent years and we expect weaimay
continue to engage in acquisitions or launch newirtesses to grow our revenues and meet our othetegtc
objectives. If any future acquisitions are not sssfully integrated with our business, our ongapgrations could be
adversely affected. Additionally, acquisitions ewnbusinesses may not achieve desired profitatnbjgctives or result
in any anticipated successful expansion of the nmssies or concepts. Although we review and anadgzets or
companies we acquire, such reviews are subjechtertainties and may not reveal all potential riskdditionally,
although we attempt to obtain protective contrdgmavisions, such as representations, warrantiesimdemnities, in
connection with acquisitions, we cannot offer agaae that we can obtain such provisions in our iaitipns or that
they will fully protect us from unforeseen coststloé acquisitions. We may also incur significanstsand diversion of
management time and attention in connection witlsying possible acquisitions even if the acquisitnot ultimately
consummated.
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We face a number of risks in opening new stores.

As part of our long-term growth strategy, we expcbpen new stores, both in regional malls, whegest of our

operational experience lies, and in other venudl which we are less familiar, including lifestydenters, major city
street locations, and tourist destinations. Beeaifissconomic conditions and the availability opegpriate locations,
we slowed our pace of new store openings begininirigiscal 2010. While we intend to continue todadective with

respect to new locations, our plans for Fiscal 2€dl4for more new stores than we have openedyryaar since Fiscal
2008. We increased our net store base by 33 iralF2x11, 78 in Fiscal 2012 and 72 in Fiscal 201®t eurrently plan

to increase our net store base by approximatelysi@2s in Fiscal 2014. We cannot offer assuratizaswe will be

able to open as many stores as we have planneédrthaew store will achieve similar operating testo those of our
existing stores or that new stores opened in maiketvhich we operate will not have a material adgesffect on the
revenues and profitability of our existing storébe success of our planned expansion will be degg@ngron numerous
factors, many of which are beyond our control, udéhg the following:

« our ability to identify suitable markets and indiual store sites within those markets;
« the competition for suitable store sites;

» our ability to negotiate favorable lease termsrfew stores and renewals (including rent and otbstsy with
landlords;

» our ability to obtain governmental and other tha@ty consents, permits and licenses needed tdraohand
operate our stores;

« the ability to build and remodel stores on schedmnieé at acceptable cost;

« the availability of employees to staff new storesd aour ability to hire, train, motivate and retain
store personnel;

+ the availability of adequate management and firrdmesources to manage an increased number o§store

< our ability to adapt our distribution and other m@®mnal and management systems to an expandednketw
of stores; and

» our ability to attract customers and generate salé&ient to operate new stores profitably.

Additionally, the results we expect to achieve dgreach fiscal quarter are dependent upon operémg stores on
schedule. If we fall behind, we will lose expectales and earnings between the planned openingaddtéhe actual
opening and may further complicate the logisticepéning stores, possibly resulting in additiorelbgls.

Our results of operations are subject to seasonahd quarterly fluctuations, which could have a materal adverse
effect on the market price of our stock.

Our business is highly seasonal, with a signifigamttion of our net sales and operating income geed during the
fourth quarter, which includes the holiday shoppseason. Because of this seasonality, we haveetinability to
compensate for shortfalls in fourth quarter salesawnings by changes in our operations or straseigi other quarters.
A significant shortfall in results for the fourttuarter of any year could have a material adverfrtebn our annual
results of operations and on the market price of siack. Our quarterly results of operations alsaynfluctuate
significantly based on such factors as:

 the timing of new store openings and renewals;

< the amount of net sales contributed by new andiegistores;

» the timing of certain holidays and sales events;

e changes in our merchandise mix;

» general economic, industry and weather conditibas dffect consumer spending; and

« actions of competitors, including promotional aityiv
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A failure to increase sales at our existing storesnd in our e-commerce businesses may adversely affeur stock
price and impact our results of operations.

A number of factors have historically affected, avitl continue to affect, our comparable sales ltssincluding:
e consumer trends, such as less disposable incomi® dioe impact of economic conditions and tax pesic
e competition;

« timing of holidays including sales tax holidays;

< general regional and national economic conditions;

¢ inclement weather;

e changes in our merchandise mix;

« our ability to distribute merchandise efficienttyaur stores;

< timing and type of sales events, promotional atiéigior other advertising;
« other external events beyond our control;

* new merchandise introductions; and

< our ability to execute our business strategy eiffett.

Our comparable sales have fluctuated in the padtya believe such fluctuations may continue. Timgredictability of
our comparable sales may cause our revenue andtsreguoperations to vary from quarter to quartend an
unanticipated change in revenues or operating ircm@y cause our stock price to fluctuate signitigan

We are subject to regulatory proceedings and litiggon that could have an adverse effect on our finasial
condition and results of operations.

We are party to certain lawsuits, governmental stigations, and regulatory proceedings, includihg suits and
proceedings arising out of alleged environmentait@mination relating to historical operations o tBompany and
various suits involving current operations as diset in Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Btatds. If these or
similar matters are resolved against us, our reafltoperations, our cash flows, or our financiahdition could be
adversely affected. The costs of defending suchsuite and responding to such investigations andilasgyy
proceedings may be substantial and their potemialistract management from day-to-day businessigsificant.
Moreover, with retail operations in 50 states, Ru&ico, Canada, the United Kingdom and the Repudflireland, we
are subject to federal, state, provincial, teridipriocal and foreign regulations, which imposestsoand risks on our
business. Changes in regulations could make congdianore difficult and costly, and violations coudgult in liability
for damages or penalties.

If we lose key members of management or are unabte attract and retain the talent required for our business,
our operating results could suffer.

Our performance depends largely on the effortsailities of members of our management team. Oacuetkves have
substantial experience and expertise in our busiard have made significant contributions to oomgfn and success.
The unexpected future loss of services of one arerkey members of our management team could haadegrse

effect on our business. In addition, future perfance will depend upon our ability to attract, netand motivate

qualified employees, including store personnel feld management. If we are unable to do so, oilitabo meet our

operating goals may be compromised. Finally, owrest are decentralized, are managed through a retafo

geographically dispersed management personneliatatibally experience a high degree of turnoveweé are for any
reason unable to maintain appropriate controlstore ©perations due to turnover or other reasodiding the ability

to control losses resulting from inventory and ca$ininkage, our sales and operating margins mawpdwersely

affected. There can be no assurance that we widbleeto attract and retain the personnel we neduki future.
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Goodwill recorded with acquisitions is subject tofinpairment, which could reduce the Company’s profitdility.

Deterioration in the Company’s market value, whetietated to the Company’s operating performance alisruptions
in the equity markets or deterioration in the opata performance of the business unit with whichodwill is
associated, could require the Company to recoghizémpairment of some or all of the $273.8 millioingoodwill on
its Consolidated Balance Sheets at February 2,,2@%8lting in the reduction of net assets andraesponding non-
cash charge to earnings in the amount of the impit.

In connection with acquisitions, the Company resagdodwill on its Consolidated Financial Statemefitss asset is
not amortized but is subject to an impairment &deast annually, which consists of either a gaiiie assessment on a
reporting unit level, or a two-step impairment téshecessary, that is based on projected futush d@ws from the
acquired business discounted at a rate commensuiiditéhe risk the Company considers to be inhenerts current
business model. The Company performs the impairteshnnually as of the close of its fiscal yeammore frequently
if events or circumstances indicate that the valube asset might be impaired.

As a result of the various acquisitions comprisithg Lids Team Sports team dealer business, the @wynparries
goodwill at a value of $14.0 million on its Constated Balance Sheets related to such acquisitibims. Company
found that the result of its annual impairment,tedtich valued the business at approximately $2IBomin excess of
its carrying value, indicated no impairment at ttiate. The Company may determine in future impairtriests that
some or all of the carrying value of the goodwidlymot be recoverable. Such a finding would reqaiverite-off of the
amount of the carrying value that is impaired, whigould reduce the Company’s profitability in therjpd of the

impairment charge. Holding all other assumptionsstant as of the measurement date, the Company tiod¢ an
increase in the weighted average cost of capitd06fbasis points would reduce the fair value efltlds Team Sports
business by $7.4 million. Furthermore, the Compaoted that a decrease in projected annual reveravetly by one
percent would reduce the fair value of the Lidsmezports business by $0.4 million. However, if othgsumptions do
not remain constant, the fair value of the Lids me@ports business may decrease by a greater anfiuoe the
maximum non-cash goodwill impairment charge woukl $14.0 million, the Company does not believe tiay

impairment charge related thereto would be matehalvever, there can be no assurance that anyefigoodwill

impairment will not have a material adverse effatthe Company'’s financial position.

ITEM 1B, UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2, PROPERTIES
See Item 1, Business — Properties.
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ITEM 3, LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Environmental Matters

New York State Environmental Matters

In August 1997, the New York State Department ofiEmmental Conservation (“NYSDEC”) and the Company
entered into a consent order whereby the Compasynasd responsibility for conducting a remedial Btigation and
feasibility study (“RIFS”) and implementing an inta remedial measure (“IRM”) with regard to theesdf a knitting
mill operated by a former subsidiary of the Compéoyn 1965 to 1969. The Company undertook the I&M RIFS
voluntarily, without admitting liability or accepiy responsibility for any future remediation of #iee. The Company
has completed the IRM and the RIFS. In the coafgreparing the RIFS, the Company identified reimealternatives
with estimated undiscounted costs ranging from $6illon to $24.0 million, excluding amounts preusly expended
or provided for by the Company. The United Statesi®onmental Protection Agency (“EPA”), which hassamed
primary regulatory responsibility for the site froNiYSDEC, issued a Record of Decision in Septemi872 The
Record of Decision requires a remedy of a comhinatif groundwater extraction and treatment andta-chemical
oxidation at an estimated present cost of appraeing10.7 million.

In July 2009, the Company agreed to a Consent Owdr the EPA requiring the Company to perform airt
remediation actions, operations, maintenance anditaring at the site. In September 2009, a Congewigment
embodying the Consent Order was filed in the U.iStrBt Court for the Eastern District of New York.

The Village of Garden City, New York, has addititpasserted that the Company is liable for thesassociated with
enhanced treatment required by the impact of thergiwater plume from the site on two public watep@y wells,
including historical costs ranging from approxintat®1.8 million to in excess of $2.5 million, andtfire operation and
maintenance costs which the Village estimates @&63D0 annually while the enhanced treatment coetin On
December 14, 2007, the Village filed a complainaiagt the Company and the owner of the propertyeurite
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA")e tBafe Drinking Water Act, and the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and LiabAldly(“CERCLA") as well as a number of state lawdahes in the
U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Ne¥ork, seeking an injunction requiring the defendato remediate
contamination from the site and to establish thiebility for future costs that may be incurred éonnection with it,
which the complaint alleges could exceed $41 mmlliandiscounted, over a 70-year period. The Comgesy not
verified the estimates of either historic or futwests asserted by the Village, but believes tha¢stimate of future
costs based on a 70-year remediation period isagorable given the expected remedial period refiet the EPA’s
Record of Decision. On May 23, 2008, the Compaladfia motion to dismiss the Village's complaint grounds
including applicable statutes of limitation and guretion of certain claims by the NYSDEC'’s and tHeAEs diligent
prosecution of remediation. On January 27, 2008,Gburt granted the motion to dismiss all countshef plaintiff's
complaint except for the CERCLA claim and a stawe klaim for indemnity for costs incurred after Maovber 27,
2000. On September 23, 2009, on a motion for réderetion by the Village, the Court reinstated ttiaims for
injunctive relief under RCRA and for equitable eélunder certain of the state law theories. The gamy intends to
continue to defend the action.

Whitehall Environmental Matters
The Company has performed sampling and analysisodf sediments, surface water, groundwater andtewvas
management areas at the Company’s former Voluhesther Company facility in Whitehall, Michigan.

In October 2010, the Company and the Michigan Diepamt of Natural Resources and Environment entered a
Consent Decree providing for implementation of medial Work Plan for the facility site designedbting the site into
compliance with applicable regulatory standardse Tiork Plan’s implementation is substantially coetpland the
Company expects, based on its present understantlthg condition of the site, that its future galiions with respect
to the site will be limited to periodic monitoriragnd that future costs related to the site shoutchawve a material effect
on its financial condition or results of operations

Accrual for Environmental Contingencies

Related to all outstanding environmental contingesiche Company had accrued $11.9 million as bfley 2, 2013,
$13.0 million as of January 28, 2012 and $15.5iomllas of January 29, 2011. All such provisionderfthe

Company’s estimates of the most likely cost (urmlisted, including both current and noncurrent pos) of resolving
the contingencies, based on facts and circumstase$ the time they were made. There is no assertrat relevant
facts and circumstances will not change, necessijtdtiture changes to the provisions. Such contihdjabilities are

included in the liability arising from provision faliscontinued operations on the accompanying Qmtzded Balance
Sheets because they relate to former facilitiesaipd by the Company. The Company has made pretaxas for

certain of these contingencies, including approx@tya$0.8 million reflected in Fiscal 2013, $1.8lllon reflected in
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Fiscal 2012 and $2.9 million reflected in Fiscall20 These charges are included in provision focatisnued
operations, net in the Consolidated Statementgpef&ions and represent changes in estimates.

Other Matters

On December 10, 2010, the Company announced thatlisuffered a criminal intrusion into the portmfrits computer
network that processes payments for transactioriitain of its retail stores. Visa, Inc., MastarC&Vorldwide and
American Express Travel Related Services Companty,Have asserted claims totaling approximately@&billion in

connection with the intrusion and the claims of twfche claimants have been collected by withha@diayment card
receivables of the Company. In the fourth quarteFiscal 2013, the Company recorded a $15.4 milibiarge to
earnings in connection with the disputed liabili®n March 7, 2013, the Company filed an actionhia ©.S. District
Court for the Middle District of Tennessee agaWists U.S.A. Inc., Visa Inc. and Visa Internatioisarvice Association
seeking to recover $13.3 million in non-compliarfcees and issuer reimbursement assessments cdlléam the
Company in connection with the intrusion. The Compdoes not currently expect any future claimsanrection with
the intrusion to have a material effect on its ficial condition, cash flows, or results of openasio

On January 5, 2012, a patent infringement actiainag) the Company and numerous other defendantdiledsn the
U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of BesxGeoTag, Inc. v. Circle K Store, Inc., et alleging that features of
certain of the Company’s e-commerce websites ig&it).S. Patent No. 5,930,474, entitled “Internegadizer for
Accessing Geographically and Topically Based Infation.” The plaintiff seeks relief including damagéor the
alleged infringement, costs, expenses and prepastjudgment interest and injunctive relief. Thentpany disputes
the validity of the claim and is defending the reatt

On June 13, 2012, a former vendor of a subsidiithe Company filed an actioferfect Curve, Inc. v. Hat World,
Inc.,in U.S. District Court in Massachusetts, allegiragemt, trademark, trade dress, and copyright igfinent against
the subsidiary based on the sale of a line of ptsddeveloped by the subsidiary. The Company dehiesnaterial

allegations against it and is defending the action.

On May 14, 2012, a putative class and collectit®macMaro v. Hat World, Inc.was filed in the U.S. District Court for
the Northern District of lllinois. The action alleg that the Company failed to pay the plaintiff arder, similarly
situated retail store employees of Hat World, Ifar. time spent making bank deposits of store ctilbas, and seeks to
recover unpaid wages, liquidated damages, statygenglties, attorneys fees, and costs pursuaretdederal Fair
Labor Standards Act, the lllinois Minimum Wage Lawd the lllinois Wage Payment and Collection Ach Juily 16,
2012 and July 30, 2012, additional putative clags @llective actiongChavez v. Hat World, InandDismukes v. Hat
World, Inc, were filed in the same court, alleging that dartdat World employees were misclassified as exefngwh
overtime pay, and seeking similar relief. TGBhavezand Dismukesactions have been consolidated. The Company
disputes the material allegations in the consaddatction and iMaro and is defending the actions.

On August 30, 2012, a former employee of a Commamsidiary filed a putative class and collectiviaaa; Kershner
v. Hat World, Inc.,in the Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Court of ComrRdeas alleging violations of the Pennsylvania
Minimum Wage Act by the subsidiary. The Compangiééending the matter.

In addition to the matters specifically describéde, the Company is a party to other legal andlatgry proceedings
and claims arising in the ordinary course of itsibass. While management does not believe thaCtmapany’s

liability with respect to any of these other matter likely to have a material effect on its fineh@osition, cash flows,
or results of operations, legal proceedings argestitto inherent uncertainties and unfavorablengdi could have a
material adverse impact on the Company’s businedsesults of operations.

ITEM 4, MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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ITEM 4A, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The officers of the Company are generally electatiafirst meeting of the board of directors fellag the annual meeting of
shareholders and hold office until their succes$éange been chosen and qualified. The name, ag®ffind of each of the
Company’s executive officers and certain informatielating to the business experience of eachedriogh below:

Robert J. Dennis, 59, Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offiddr. Dennis joined the Company in 2004 as chief
executive officer of the Company’s acquired Hat Wdrusiness. Mr. Dennis was named senior vice geesiof the Company
in June 2004 and executive vice president and apefating officer, with oversight responsibilitgrfall the Company’s
operating divisions, in October 2005. Mr. Dennissweamed president of the Company in October 2006chief executive
officer in August 2008. Mr. Dennis was named chainnm February 2010, which became effective Apri2010. Mr. Dennis
joined Hat World in 2001 from Asbury Automotive, afe he was employed in senior management roleshiagi in 1998.
Mr. Dennis was with McKinsey and Company, an in&ional consulting firm, from 1984 to 1997, and &®e a partner in
1990.

James S. Gulmi,67, Senior Vice President — Finance and Chief Finan€#icer. Mr. Gulmi joined the Company in 1971 as
a financial analyst, appointed assistant treasaor&®74 and named treasurer in 1979. He was electéce president in 1983
and assumed the responsibilities of chief finanafiter in 1986. Mr. Gulmi was appointed seniocesipresident—finance in
January 1996.

Jonathan D. Caplan,59, Senior Vice PresidenMr. Caplan rejoined the Company in 2002 as chxefcative officer of the
branded group and president of Johnston & Murptd/veas named senior vice president of the CompamNowember 2003.
Mr. Caplan first joined the Company in June 1982 amrved as president of Genesco’s Laredo-Code Wigston from
December 1985 to May 1992. After that time, Mr. l2aapwvas president of Stride Rite’s Children’s Graml then its Ked's
Footwear division, from 1992 to 1996. He was viaesmlent, New Business Development and Strategy,Sfrvice
Merchandise Corporation from 1997 to 1998. Priorejoining Genesco in October 2002, Mr. Caplan egras president and
chief executive officer of Hi-Tec Sports North Argar beginning in 1998.

James C. Estepapl, Senior Vice PresidenMr. Estepa joined the Company in 1985 and in &atyr 1996 was named vice
president operations of Genesco Retail, which ohetuthe Jarman Shoe Company, Journeys, Boot Faamtoryeneral Shoe
Warehouse. Mr. Estepa was named senior vice prasigerations of Genesco Retail in June 1998. He nveaned president
of Journeys in March 1999. Mr. Estepa was namedbsefice president of the Company in April 2000. Mas named
president and chief executive officer of the GeneRetail Group in 2001, assuming additional resjilities of overseeing
the Company'’s former Underground Station segment.

Kenneth J. Kocher, 47, Senior Vice Presidenir. Kocher joined Hat World in 1997 as chief firgal officer and was named
president in October 2005. He was named seniorpiesident of the Company in October 2006 in additd continuing his
role as president of Hat World. Prior to joiningtNeorld, he served as a controller with several panies and was a certified
public accountant with Edie Bailley, a public acoting firm.

Roger G. Sisson49, Senior Vice PresidenSecretary and General CounséMir. Sisson joined the Company in 1994 as
assistant general counsel and was elected secretdfgbruary 1994. He was named general counsdlamuary 1996.
Mr. Sisson was named vice president in NovembeB2H@ was named senior vice president in Octob8620

Mimi Eckel Vaughn, 46, Senior Vice President of Strategy and Shared Sesvids. Vaughn joined the Company in
September 2003 as vice president of strategy asthdéss development. She was named senior vicedpresistrategy and
business development in October 2006 and senierpriesident of strategy and shared services i 2p€9. Prior to joining
the Company, Ms. Vaughn was executive vice presidémusiness development and marketing, and actimgf financial
officer from 2000 to 2001 for Link2Gov CorporatiomnNashville. From 1993 to 1999, she was a consulih McKinsey and
Company in Atlanta.

Paul D. Williams, 58, Vice President and Chief Accounting Offichtt. Williams joined the Company in 1977, was named
director of corporate accounting and financial itipg in 1993 and chief accounting officer in Apt®95. He was named vice
president in October 2006.

Matthew N. Johnson,48, Treasurer Mr. Johnson joined the Company in 1993 as manageporate finance and was elected
assistant treasurer in December 1993. He was dlé@asurer in June 1996. He was named vice prasiis@nce in October
2006 and renamed treasurer in April 2011. Prigoitting the Company, Mr. Johnson was a vice pregidethe corporate and
institutional banking division of The First Natidrizank of Chicago.
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PART Il

ITEM 5, MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND
ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

The Company’s common stock is listed on the NewkY&tock Exchange (Symbol: GCO) and the ChicagokSEx@change.
The following table sets forth for the periods ratied the high and low sales prices of the comrtmekss shown in the New
York Stock Exchange Composite Transactions listetthé Wall Street Journal.

Fiscal Year ended January 28

High Low
2012 1st Quart: $ 4475 % 35.7¢
2nd Quarte 56.84 39.12
3rd Quarte 62.51 39.41
4th Quarte 64.93 54.32
Fiscal Year ended February 2
High Low
2013 1st Quarts $ 78.97 $ 60.0:
2nd Quarte 78.78 55.65
3rd Quarte 74.93 55.40
4th Quarte 63.26 50.33

There were approximately 2,900 common shareholofenescord on March 15, 2013.

The Company has not paid cash dividends in respleits common stock since 1973. The Company’s @gbith pay cash
dividends in respect of its common stock is subfectarious restrictions. See Notes 6 and 8 toGbasolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 and “Management’sciision and Analysis of Financial Condition and uRss of
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources — 8eairof Liquidity” for information regarding restticns on dividends
and redemptions of capital stock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

18



Repurchases (shown in 000s except share and peramaunts):

ISSUBRRJRCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Maximum

Number (or

Approximate
Dollar Value) of
Total Number of shares that May
shares Purchased &®t Be Purchase
Part of Publicly  Under the Plans
Total Number of Average Pric announced Plans oror Programs (in

Period Shares Purchasdéaid per Share Programs thousands)
November 2012
10-28-12 to 11-24-12 — $— — $—
December 2012
11-25-12 to 12-29-1% 151,989 $53.17 151,989 $58,323
January 2013
12-30-12 to 2-2-18 2,804 $52.02 2,804 $58,177

(1) During the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2013, the Compeepurchased shares of common stock under an
existing $75.0 million authorization from the boarddirectors announced in the third quarter ot&is
2011. As of February 2, 2013, the Company hadrotfased 299,506 shares at a cost of $16.8 million.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Refer to Part Ill, Item 12.
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ITEM 6, SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Financial Summary

In Thousands except per common share data,

Fiscal Year End

financial statistics and other data 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Results of Operations Dat
Net sale $ 2,604,817 $ 2,291,98 $ 1,789,83 $ 1,574,352 $ 1,551,56
Depreciation and amortizat 63,697 53,731 47,738 47,462 46,83
Earning: from operation 167,970 143,87 86,083 60,422 259,62
Earnings from continuing operations
befor_e income taxe_ _ _ 162,939 138,77¢ 84,961 50,488 250,71
Earnlngs from contlnumg operatlc 110,998 82,981 54,547 29,086 156,211
Provision for discontinued operations, (462) (1,025) (1,336) (273) (5,467
Net earning $ 110536 $ 8195 $ 5321 $ 28813 $ 150,75
Per Common Share Dat
Earnings from continuing operatic
Basic $ 470 % 356 $ 23, 135 $ 8.11
Diluted 4.62 3.4¢ 2.29 1.31 6.72
Discontinued operatio
Basic (0.02) (0.09) (0.06) (0.02) (0.2¢)
Diluted (0.02) (0.0 (0.05) (0.01) (0.29)
Net earning
Basic 4.68 3.52 2.28 1.33 7.8¢
Diluted 4.60 3.4% 2.04 1.30 6.4¢
Balance Sheet Dat
Total asse $ 1,333,789 $ 1,237,260 $ 961,080 $ 863,652 $ 816,06:
Long-term deb 50,682 40,70- — — 113,73
Non-redeemable preferred stc 3924 4957 5183 5220 5 20:
Common equit 804,667 710,40: 619,135 577,093 444,55,
Capital expenditure 71,737 49,45¢ 29,299 33,825 49,42(
Financial Statistics
Earnings from operations as a percer
net sales 6.4% 6.2% 4.8% 3.8% 16.7%
Book value per share (common eqt
divided by common shares outstandingg - 3353 § 2027 $ 261t $ 2397 $  23.1(
Working capital (in thousanc $ 406217 $ 290,85 $ 278,69, $ 280,415 $ 259,13
Current ratit 25 2.C 2.2 2.7 2.¢
Perper]t Io_n-term debt to tote
capitalization 5.9% 5.4% —% —% 20.2%
Other Data (End of Year)
Numberof retail outlets 2 459 2 387 2309 2276 223
Number of employex 22,700 21,47 15,200 13,925 13,77

*Includes 75 Schuh stores and concessions in F&XE? acquired June 23, 2011, 48 Sports AvenuesstorFiscal 2011
acquired October 8, 2010, and 37 Sports Fan stitices in Fiscal 2010 acquired November 3, 2068.ote 2 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Reflected in earnings from continuing operationsHiscal 2012 was $7.4 million in acquisition reldtexpenses. See Note 2
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for aafutti information.

Reflected in earnings from continuing operationsHizcal 2009 was a $204.1 million gain on thelsetént of
merger-related litigation.

Reflected in earnings from continuing operationsHiscal 2009 were $8.0 million in merger-relatedts and litigation
expenses. These expenses were deductible for tprgas in Fiscal 2009.

Reflected in earnings from continuing operationsFiscal 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were asgaiirment and other
charges of $17.0 million, $2.7 million, $8.6 milip$13.4 million and $7.5 million, respectively.eSdote 3 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfrimation regarding these charges.

Long-term debt includes current obligations. Inukay 2011, the Company entered into the second @éedeand restated
credit agreement in the aggregate principal amofi$800.0 million. In June 2011, the Company erdenéo a first
amendment to the second amended and restated ageeitment to raise the aggregate principal antou275.0 million.
During Fiscal 2010, the Company entered into separechange agreements whereby it acquired anddetil $86.2 million
in aggregate principal amount of its Debentures e 15, 2023 in exchange for the issuance o24828 shares of its
common stock. As a result of the exchange agreenagnt conversions, the Company recognized a loiseomarly retirement
of debt of $5.5 million reflected in earnings fr@mntinuing operations. See Note 6 to the Consdi&inancial Statements
for additional information regarding the Compangébt.

The Company has not paid dividends on its CommonkStince 1973. See Notes 6 and 8 to the Consetidéihancial
Statements and “Management’s Discussion and Arsabfdrinancial Condition and Results of Operatienisquidity and
Capital Resources — Sources of Liquidity” for aatggion of limitations on the Company’s ability pay dividends.
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ITEM 7, MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Forward Looking Statements

This discussion and the notes to the ConsolidatadnEial Statements, as well as Item 1, Businegdude certain
forward-looking statements, which include statersamigarding our intent, belief or expectations afidstatements
other than those made solely with respect to hgtbfact. Actual results could differ materiallypm those reflected by
the forward-looking statements in this discussiod a number of factors may adversely affect thevdod looking
statements and the Company’s future results, ligyidapital resources or prospects. These inclbdeare not limited
to, the amount of required accruals related toetira-out bonus potentially payable to Schuh managebeased on the
achievement of certain performance objectives tithing and amount of non-cash asset impairmenttaeeélto retail
store fixed assets or to intangible assets of aeduiusinesses, weakness in the consumer econompetition in the
Company’s markets, inability of customers to ob@iedit, fashion trends that affect the sales odpct margins of the
Company’s retail product offerings, changes in hgypatterns by significant wholesale customerskhaoicies or
deterioration in financial condition of significamtholesale customers, disruptions in product sumplgistribution,
unfavorable trends in fuel costs, foreign exchamages, foreign labor and materials costs, and ddwors affecting the
cost of products, the Company’s ability to contirtoecomplete and integrate acquisitions, expandiitsiness and
diversify its product base and changes in the tnahholidays or in the onset of seasonal weatffecting period-to-
period sales comparisons. Additional factors thala affect the Company’s prospects and causerdiffees from
expectations include the ability to build, opemffsand support additional retail stores and teevemeases in existing
stores and maintain reductions in occupancy coshéewed in recent lease negotiations, and to cdandeguired
remodeling or refurbishment on schedule and at@rgdeexpense levels, deterioration in the perfoneaaf individual
businesses or of the Company’s market value relativits book value, resulting in impairments ofefl assets or
intangible assets or other adverse financial canssees, unexpected changes to the market for thgo@&uy's shares,
variations from expected pension-related chargesexh by conditions in the financial markets, anel dutcome of
litigation, investigations and environmental matarvolving the Company. For a discussion of addéi risk factors,
see Item 1A, Risk Factors.

Overview
Description of Business

The Company’s business includes the design andcisgirmarketing and distribution of footwear andegsories
through retail stores, including JournByslourneys KidZ, Shi by Journeys Underground by Journeysand
Johnston & Murph§ in the U.S., Puerto Rico and Canada and throughitScstores in the United Kingdom and the
Republic of Ireland, and through e-commerce websited catalogs, and at wholesale, primarily underGompany’s
Johnston & Murphybrand, the licensedocker§ brand, and other brands that the Company licefsesnen’s
footwear. The Company’s wholesale footwear brandsdastributed to more than 1,025 retail accountshe United
States, including a number of leading departmeastodint, and specialty stores. The Company’s basiaéso includes
Lids Sports, which operates (i) headwear and aocgssores under the Lilsiame and other names in the U.S., Puerto
Rico and Canada, (ii) the Lids Locker Room businesssisting of sports-oriented fan shops featuargoad array of
licensed merchandise such as apparel, hats andsaciess, sports decor and novelty products, (i) ltids Clubhouse
business, consisting of fan shops, (iv) e-commeércgness and (v) an athletic team dealer busingssating as Lids
Team Sports. Including both the footwear businessethe Lids Sports business, at February 2, 20&3Company
operated 2,459 retail stores in the U.S., Puento,Rtanada, the United Kingdom and the Republicaténd.

During Fiscal 2013, the Company operated five riggibe business segments (not including corpordéteJourneys
Group, comprised of the Journeys, Journeys Kidzhghourneys and Underground by Journeys retailWear chains,
catalog and e-commerce operations; (ii) Schuh Gragguired in June 2011, comprised of the Schudil rietotwear
chain and e-commerce operations; (iii) Lids SpdBsoup, comprised as described in the precedinggpapa;

(iv) Johnston & Murphy Group, comprised of JohnsfoMurphy retail operations, e-commerce and catapgrations
and wholesale distribution; and (v) Licensed Brarsnprised of DockePsFootwear, sourced and marketed under a
license from Levi Strauss & Company; SureGifimotwear, occupational footwear primarily sold dtheto consumers;
and other footwear brands.

The Journeys retail footwear stores sell footwewt accessories primarily for 13 to 22 year old rmad women. The
stores average approximately 1,975 square feet.Joheneys Kidz retail footwear stores sell footwpeamarily for

younger children, ages five to 12. These storesagecapproximately 1,425 square feet. Shi by Jysrnetail footwear
stores sell footwear and accessories to fashiosetoms women in their early 20’s to mid 30’s. Thesares average
approximately 2,125 square feet. The Undergroundiduyrneys retail footwear stores sell footwear andessories
primarily for men and women in the 20 to 35 ageugroThese stores average approximately 1,825 sdeeteThe

Journeys Group stores are primarily in malls aradofy outlet centers throughout the United StaRaserto Rico and
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Canada. The Journeys Group operates 24 storemgd@aJourneys also sells footwear and accessbraggh direct-
to-consumer catalog and e-commerce operations.

The Schuh retail footwear stores sell a broad rasfgeranded casual and athletic footwear along &itmeaningful
private label offering primarily for 15 to 30 yeald men and women. The stores, which average appatly 4,300
square feet, include both street-level and makfions in the United Kingdom and the Republic eldnd. During the
third quarter of Fiscal 2013, the Schuh Group ogdateefirst Schuh Kids store. As of February 2120the Company
has opened three Schuh Kids stores that sell f@awtpeémarily for younger children, ages five to B2d average 1,075
square feet. The Schuh Group also operates 13 éapteoncessions in Republic apparel stores in thitet) Kingdom
averaging approximately 1,175 square feet, and gadtwear through e-commerce operations.

The Lids Sports Group includes stores and kioskisngily under the Lids banner, that sell licensa®l branded
headwear to men and women primarily in the eary$eto mid-20’s age group. The Lids store locatiamsrage
approximately 850 square feet and are primarilymalls, airports, street-level stores and factorylebucenters
throughout the United States, Puerto Rico and GanBlde Lids Sports Group also operates Lids LoBlam and Lids
Clubhouse stores under a number of trade namémgsktensed sports headwear, apparel and acdessir sports
fans of all ages in locations averaging approxitga®e975 square feet in malls and other locatiornimarily in the

United States. The Lids Sports Group operates @@stin Canada. The Lids Sports Group also seligllvear and
accessories through e-commerce operations. Iniaddthe Lids Sports Group operates Lids Team Spart athletic
team dealer business.

Johnston & Murphy retail shops sell a broad rangmen’s footwear, luggage and accessories. Wonfentsvear and
accessories are sold in select Johnston & Murphail lcations. Johnston & Murphy shops averageraxmately
1,525 square feet and are located primarily inebettalls and in airports throughout the United &tand in Canada.
Johnston & Murphy opened its first store in Canddang the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2012. As of kelry 2, 2013,
Johnston & Murphy operates five stores in Canadfhe Company also has license and distribution ageeés for
wholesale and retail sales of Johnston & Murphydpobs in various non - U.S. jurisdictions. The Qamy also sells
Johnston & Murphy footwear and accessories in fgcsbores, averaging approximately 2,350 square feeated in
factory outlet malls, and through an e-commerceatmn and a direct-to-consumer catalog. In addjtidohnston &
Murphy shoes are also distributed through the Cayisawholesale operations to better departmentinddpendent
specialty stores.

The Licensed Brands segment markets casual ans cesal footwear under the licensed Dockerand to men aged
30 to 55 through many of the same national retairts that carry Dockers slacks and sportsweairaddpartment and
specialty stores across the country. The Compaterezhinto an exclusive license with Levi Straus€8&. to market
men'’s footwear in the United States under the Dckheand name in 1991. Levi Strauss & Co. and then@any have
subsequently added additional territories, inclgd@anada and Mexico and in certain other Latin Aca@r countries.
The Dockers license agreement was renewed Jul@?, for a term expiring November 30, 2015, subje&xtension

for an additional 3-year term if certain conditicar® met. The Company acquired Keuka Footwednarthird quarter
of Fiscal 2011 and subsequently launched its Sip&Giootwear line of slip-resistant, occupational feear from that

base. The Company sources and distributes the Hprdi@e to employees in the hospitality, healtlegaand

other industries.

Strategy

The Company’s long-term strategy has been to seghn@ growth by: 1) increasing the Company’s stoase, 2)
increasing retail square footage, 3) improving caraple sales, 4) increasing operating margin anensancing the
value of its brands. The pace of the Company’s mioggrowth may be limited by saturation of its matkand by
economic conditions. In Fiscal 2010, the Compaiyeld the pace of new store openings and focuseidvemtory
management and cash flow in response to economiditams. The Company also focused on opportunjiievided
by the economic climate to negotiate occupancy peguictions, especially where lease provisiongéigd by sales
shortfalls or declining occupancy of malls wouldripg the Company to terminate leases. To addresenpal
saturation of the U.S. market, certain of the Comyfsaretail businesses have opened retail stor€amada, beginning
in Fiscal 2011. The Company also opened its ficktuB Kids store in Scotland during the third quaoteFiscal 2013.

To further supplement its organic growth potentiaé Company has made acquisitions, including togigition of the
Schuh Group in June 2011 and several smaller dtiqos of businesses in the Lids Sports Group’s kets; and
expects to consider acquisition opportunities,egitio augment its existing businesses or to erer lusinesses that it
considers compatible with its existing businessese expertise and strategic profile. Acquisitiamslve a number of
risks, including, among others, inaccurate valuatd the acquired business, the assumption of oludied liabilities,
the failure to integrate the acquired business@ppately, and distraction of management from éxgsbusinesses. The
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Company seeks to mitigate these risks by applypmapriate financial metrics in its valuation ars$yand developing
and executing plans for due diligence and integrdtiiat are appropriate to each acquisition.

More generally, the Company attempts to develogteggies to mitigate the risks it views as mateiratjuding those

discussed under the caption “Forward Looking Stat#s)” above, and those discussed in Item 1A, Fiaktors.

Among the most important of these factors are thekged to consumer demand. Conditions in the @ogrcan affect
demand, resulting in changes in sales and, asspigeadjusted to drive sales and manage investanigross margins.
Because fashion trends influencing many of the Gowijs target customers can change rapidly, the Gompelieves
that its ability to react quickly to those chanf@p@s been important to its success. Even when thep@oay succeeds in
aligning its merchandise offerings with consumegf@rences, those preferences may affect result§obyexample,

driving sales of products with lower average sglliprices or products which are more widely avadabi the

marketplace and thus more subject to competitiesgares than the Company’s typical offering. Moegpeconomic

factors, such as the relatively high level of unkyyment and any future economic contraction andngha in tax

policy, may reduce the consumer’s disposable incort@s or her willingness to purchase discretigritams, and thus
may reduce demand for the Company’s merchandigardkess of the Company’s skill in detecting anspomding to

fashion trends. The Company believes its experi@mcediscipline in merchandising and the buying @oassociated
with its relative size and importance in the indystegments in which it competes are importants@bility to mitigate

risks associated with changing customer prefereacdsther changes in consumer demand.

Summary of Results of Operations

The Company’s net sales increased 13.6% durincgaF@13 compared to Fiscal 2012. The increasectefie(i) the
acquisition of the Schuh Group in the second qudatst year, which contributed $370.5 million idesaduring Fiscal
2013 compared to $212.3 million in sales duringc&i012, (ii) a 9% increase in Journeys Groupssdie) an 11%
increase in Licensed Brands sales, (iv) a 10% a&sgrén Johnston & Murphy Group sales, and (v) ant¥ease in Lids
Sports Group sales. Included in Fiscal 2013 wa3rd week compared to a 52-week year for Fiscal 2Bk2luding the
53rd week, sales would have increased 12.1% faraF2013. Gross margin decreased as a percenfaggt sales
during Fiscal 2013, reflecting gross margin deagsds Lids Sports Group and Johnston & Murphy Grquaatially
offset by increased gross margin in Journeys GeoupSchuh Group. Licensed Brands’ gross marginflaas Selling
and administrative expenses decreased as a pageasitaet sales during Fiscal 2013, reflecting espedecreases as a
percentage of net sales in Journeys Group, Lidgt$géroup and Johnston & Murphy Group, partiallysef by
increased expenses as a percentage of net sa®shith Group and Licensed Brands. Earnings from atipes
increased as a percentage of net sales duringl 28d8, reflecting improved earnings from operagion Journeys
Group and Johnston & Murphy Group, partially offbgt decreased earnings in Schuh Group and LiceBsauads.
Earnings as a percentage of net sales were flatiinSports Group.

Significant Developments
Schuh Acquisition

On June 23, 2011, the Company, through its newlyéal, wholly-owned subsidiary Genesco (UK) Limi{¢@enesco
UK"), completed the acquisition of all the outstanmgishares of Schuh Group Ltd. (“Schuh”) for a kqarchase price
of approximately £100.0 million, less £29.5 milliontstanding under existing Schuh credit facilitiebich remain in
place, less a £1.9 million working capital adjustinend plus £6.2 million net cash acquired, wittD&illion withheld

and payable in June 2013. The Company financeddfaisition with borrowings under its existing ditfacility and

the balance from cash on hand. The purchase agreatso provides for deferred purchase price paysretaling £25
million, payable £15 million and £10 million on tiigird and fourth anniversaries of the closingpesgively, subject to
the payees’ not having terminated their employmtit Schuh under certain specified circumstancés amount will

be recorded as compensation expense and not ré@sree component of the cost of the acquisition.

Headquartered in Scotland, Schuh is a specialgjleetof casual and athletic footwear sold throd@hretail stores in
the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland di3dconcessions in Republic apparel stores as auBgp?2, 2013.
The Company completed the acquisition in orderrtba@ce its strategic development and prospectgrimnth and

provide the Company with an established retail gmes in the United Kingdom and improved insighbigiobal

fashion trends. The results of Schuh’s operatiamsFiscal 2013 include net sales of $370.5 millaomd operating
earnings of $7.9 million, and have been includethi&n Company’s Consolidated Financial Statementslfoof Fiscal

2013. The results of Schuh’s operations for ikeaf year from the date of acquisition throughuday 28, 2012,
including net sales of $212.3 million and operateagnings of $11.7 million, have been includedhia €Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscalryanded January 28, 2012. During the fiscal yadeé January 28,
2012, the Company expensed $7.4 million in codtted to the acquisition. These costs were recbedeselling and
administrative expenses on the Consolidated Statemie Operations. During Fiscal 2013, compensagopense
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related to the Schuh acquisition deferred purchaise obligation was $12.1 million, compared toZillion in Fiscal
2012. This expense is included in the operatingiegs for the Schuh Group segment.

Other Acquisitions

In Fiscal 2013, the Company completed other actiis of small retail chains for a total purchasee of $23.8
million. The stores acquired will be operated witthie Lids Sports Group.

Network Intrusion

On December 10, 2010, the Company announced thatisuffered a criminal intrusion into the portimfrits computer
network that processes payments for transactiorm®iitain of its retail stores. Visa, Inc., MastarC&Vorldwide and
American Express Travel Related Services Companty,Have asserted claims totaling approximately. @& billion in

connection with the intrusion and the claims of twfdhe claimants have been collected by withha@diayment card
receivables of the Company. In the fourth quadfeFiscal 2013, the Company recorded a $15.4 milibarge to
earnings in connection with the disputed liabilittn March 7, 2013, the Company filed an actiothim U.S. District
Court for the Middle District of Tennessee agaMisi U.S.A. Inc., Visa Inc. and Visa InternatioSarvice Association
seeking to recover $13.3 million in non-compliarfcees and issuer reimbursement assessments cdlléam the
Company in connection with the intrusion. The Compdoes not currently expect any future claimsanrection with
the intrusion to have a material effect on its ficial condition, cash flows, or results of openasio

Asset Impairment and Other Charges

The Company recorded a pretax charge to earningsl@f0 million in Fiscal 2013, including $15.6 laih for network
intrusion expenses, $1.4 million for retail stosset impairments, and $0.1 million for other legaltters.

The Company recorded a pretax charge to earning§2.@fmillion in Fiscal 2012, including $1.1 milfidor retail store
asset impairments, $0.9 million for other legal tesat and $0.7 million for network intrusion expenise

The Company recorded a pretax charge to earnin@8.6fmillion in Fiscal 2011, including $7.2 millidor retail store
asset impairments, $1.3 million for network intarsiexpenses and $0.1 million for other legal matter

Postretirement Benefit Liability Adjustments

The return on pension plan assets was $11.2 miipfiscal 2013, compared to an expected retuvdd million. The
discount rate used to measure benefit obligati@sehsed from 4.35% to 4.00% in Fiscal 2013. Assalt of the
increase in the return on plan assets, partiafisedtby the decreased discount rate, the pensbiiity reflected in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets decreased to $20ibmttbmpared to $22.2 million in Fiscal 2012. Theses a decrease
in the pension liability adjustment of $3.7 millignet of tax) in accumulated other comprehensiwerime in equity.
Depending upon future interest rates and returnglan assets and other factors, there can be noamse that
additional adjustments in future periods will nettequired.

Discontinued Operations

In Fiscal 2013, the Company recorded an additiohatge to earnings of $0.8 million ($0.5 milliort oé tax) reflected
in discontinued operations primarily for anticipéteosts of environmental remedial alternativesteelao former
facilities operated by the Company. For additianfdrmation, see Note 13 to the Consolidated Firdr&tatements.

In Fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an additiohatge to earnings of $1.7 million ($1.0 milliort oé¢ tax) reflected
in discontinued operations, including $1.8 milliprimarily for anticipated costs of environmentaineglial alternatives
related to former facilities operated by the Compawifset by a $0.1 million gain for excess prowiss to prior
discontinued operations. For additional informatisee Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statésn

In Fiscal 2011, the Company recorded an additiohaftge to earnings of $2.2 million ($1.3 milliort oé tax) reflected
in discontinued operations, including $2.9 milliprimarily for anticipated costs of environmentaineglial alternatives
related to former facilities operated by the Companifset by a $0.7 million gain for excess prowiss to prior
discontinued operations. For additional informatisee Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statésne
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Critical Accounting Policies
Inventory Valuation

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated FinduSt@tements, the Company values its inventori¢seatower of cost
or market.

In its footwear wholesale operations, its Schuhupreegment and its Lids Sports Group wholesaleatipgis, except
for the Anaconda Sports wholesale division, costlesermined using the first-in, first-out methodaidet value is
determined using a system of analysis which evatuatventory at the stock number level based otoifasuch as
inventory turn, average selling price, inventoryele and selling prices reflected in future ordefhie Company
provides reserves when the inventory has not besskad down to market value based on current sefiiiges or when
the inventory is not turning and is not expectetuto at levels satisfactory to the Company.

The Lids Sports Group retail segment and its Andao8ports wholesale division employ the moving agercost
method for valuing inventories and apply freighingsan allocation method. The Company provides aten
allowance for slow-moving inventory based on negatinargins and estimated shrink based on histoepérience
and specific analysis, where appropriate.

In its retail operations, other than the Schuh @rand Lids Sports Group retail segments, the Comganploys the
retail inventory method, applying average costetait ratios to the retail value of inventories.dénthe retail inventory
method, valuing inventory at the lower of cost arket is achieved as markdowns are taken or acasiedreduction
of the retail value of inventories.

Inherent in the retail inventory method are suliyectjudgments and estimates, including merchandisek-on,

markups, markdowns, and shrinkage. These judgnardsestimates, coupled with the fact that the Ir@taentory

method is an averaging process, could produce gerahcost figures. To reduce the risk of inaccyrand to ensure
consistent presentation, the Company employs ttal ieventory method in multiple subclasses ofantory with

similar gross margins, and analyzes markdown requénts at the stock number level based on factach ss

inventory turn, average selling price, and inveptage. In addition, the Company accrues markdoveneegzessary.
These additional markdown accruals reflect allhaf above factors as well as current agreementstiionr products to
vendors and vendor agreements to provide markdavapast. In addition to markdown provisions, the Qamy

maintains provisions for shrinkage and damaged gibaded on historical rates.

Inherent in the analysis of both wholesale andilrat@entory valuation are subjective judgments @bourrent market
conditions, fashion trends, and overall economicd@ons. Failure to make appropriate conclusicegarding these
factors may result in an overstatement or undenstant of inventory value. A change of 10 perceoinfithe recorded
provisions for markdowns, shrinkage and damagedig@muld have changed inventory by $0.8 milliorabruary 2,
2013.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

As discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated FinduSt@ements, the Company periodically assesseettizability of

its long-lived assets, other than goodwill, andleates such assets for impairment whenever eveanthianges in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amourdroésset may not be recoverable. Asset impairrsesietermined to
exist if estimated future cash flows, undiscountexl without interest charges, are less than thejingramount.
Inherent in the analysis of impairment are subyectudgments about future cash flows. Failure tkenmappropriate
conclusions regarding these judgments may resu#niroverstatement or understatement of the valuergf-lived

assets.

The goodwill impairment test involves performingjaalitative assessment, on a reporting unit ldvased on current
circumstances. If the results of the qualitativeeasment indicate that it is more likely than mett the fair value of a
reporting unit is greater than its carrying amouwntwo-step impairment test will not be performddowever, if the
results of the qualitative assessment indicateittiatmore likely than not that the fair value afreporting unit is less
than its carrying amount, then a two-step impairntest is performed. Alternatively, the Company retact to bypass
the qualitative assessment and proceed directlyetdwo-step impairment test, on a reporting wnel. The first step is
a comparison of the fair value and carrying valfighe business unit with which the goodwill is asated. The
Company estimates fair value using the best inftionaavailable, and computes the fair value derilggdan income
approach utilizing discounted cash flow projectiofiie income approach uses a projection of a rigygomnit's
estimated operating results and cash flows thatissounted using a weighted-average cost of cafiital reflects
current market conditions. A key assumption in @@mpany’s fair value estimate is the weighted ayereost of
capital utilized for discounting its cash flow peofions in its income approach. The Company bedi¢ghe rate it used in
its annual test, which is completed in the fourtiarger each year, was consistent with the riskerinft in its business
and with industry discount rates. The projectioasumanagement’s best estimates of economic andetmzohkditions
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over the projected period including growth ratessales, costs, estimates of future expected chaimgegperating
margins and cash expenditures. Other significatihates and assumptions include terminal value graates, future
estimates of capital expenditures and changedumewvorking capital requirements.

If the carrying value of the business unit is higtien its fair value, there is an indication timpairment may exist and
the second step must be performed to measure tberdraf impairment loss. The amount of impairmentétermined

by comparing the implied fair value of reportingtugoodwill to the carrying value of the goodwiti the same manner
as if the reporting unit was being acquired in aibess combination. Specifically, the Company walldcate the fair

value to all of the assets and liabilities of theparting unit, including any unrecognized intangildssets, in a
hypothetical analysis that would calculate the iegbfair value of goodwill. If the implied fair vaé of goodwill is less

than the recorded goodwill, the Company would ré@r impairment charge for the difference.

As a result of the various acquisitions comprisihg Lids Team Sports team dealer business, the &wynparries
goodwill at a value of $14.0 million on its Consldted Balance Sheets related to such acquisitidiee Company
found that the result of its annual impairment,tedtich valued the business at approximately $2IBomin excess of
its carrying value, indicated no impairment at ttiate. The Company may determine in future impairtriests that
some or all of the carrying value of the goodwihymot be recoverable. Such a finding would reqaiverite-off of the
amount of the carrying value that is impaired, wWhigould reduce the Company’s profitability in therjpd of the
impairment charge. Holding all other assumptioosstant as of the measurement date, the Compaey tloat an
increase in the weighted average cost of capitd06fbasis points would reduce the fair value efltlds Team Sports
business by $7.4 million. Furthermore, the Compaoted that a decrease in projected annual reveravetly by one
percent would reduce the fair value of the Lidsmiegports business by $0.4 million. However, ifestassumptions do
not remain constant, the fair value of the Lids me@ports business may decrease by a greater anfiuoe the
maximum non-cash goodwill impairment charge woutd $14.0 million, the Company does not believe tay
impairment charge related thereto would be material

Environmental and Other Contingencies

The Company is subject to certain loss contingeno@tated to environmental proceedings and othgal lenatters,
including those disclosed in Note 13 to the Comfmionsolidated Financial Statements. The Compasy rhade
pretax accruals for certain of these contingencgresduding approximately $0.8 million reflected kiscal 2013, $1.8
million reflected in Fiscal 2012 and $2.9 milliceflected in Fiscal 2011. These charges are inclinlgatovision for
discontinued operations, net in the ConsolidateateBtents of Operations because they relate to fofamlities
operated by the Company. The Company monitors tinestiers on an ongoing basis and, on a quarteryjsba
management reviews the Company’s reserves and adseciu relation to each of them, adjusting prowvisioas
management deems necessary in view of changesilalae information. Changes in estimates of ligpire reported
in the periods when they occur. Consequently, mamagt believes that its reserve in relation to gadeeeding is a
best estimate of probable loss connected to theepding, or in cases in which no best estimateossiple, the
minimum amount in the range of estimated lossesgdapon its analysis of the facts and circumstaseof the close
of the most recent fiscal quarter. However, becafsencertainties and risks inherent in litigatiganerally and in
environmental proceedings in particular, there lsamo assurance that future developments will egtire additional
reserves, that some or all reserves will be adegoathat the amounts of any such additional reseor any such
inadequacy will not have a material adverse effpctn the Company’s financial condition or resufteperations.

Revenue Recognition

Retail sales are recorded at the point of saleamachet of estimated returns and exclude saley/alng added taxes.
Catalog and Internet sales are recorded at tintldfery to the customer and are net of estimagdarms and exclude
sales and value of added taxes. Wholesale revemgzdrded net of estimated returns and allowafaresarkdowns,

damages and miscellaneous claims when the relatdschave been shipped and legal title has passhé tustomer.
Shipping and handling costs charged to customersnatuded in net sales. Estimated returns arecbasehistorical

returns and claims. Actual amounts of markdownshet differed materially from estimates. Actualres and claims
in any future period may differ from historical exence.

Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing Consolidatethir¢ial Statements, the Company is required tonasti its income
taxes in each of the tax jurisdictions in whiclofierates. This process involves estimating actuant tax obligations
together with assessing temporary differences tiagulrom differing treatment of certain items fiax and accounting
purposes, such as depreciation of property andpewgrit and valuation of inventories. These tempodifferences
result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, Whice included within the Consolidated Balance &heéghe Company
then assesses the likelihood that its deferredsagts will be recovered from future taxable incofmtual results could
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differ from this assessment if adequate taxablerm& is not generated in future periods. To thergxtee Company
believes that recovery of an asset is at risk,at&n allowances are established. To the extemiatiain allowances are
established or increased in a period, the Compacolpdes an expense within the tax provision in @mnsolidated
Statements of Operations. These deferred tax valuatiowances may be released in future years whanagement
considers that it is more likely than not that squetion or all of the deferred tax assets willrbalized. In making such
a determination, management will need to periobtlicevaluate whether or not all available evidermgch as future
taxable income and reversal of temporary differentax planning strategies, and recent resultpefations, provides
sufficient positive evidence to offset any othetgmtial negative evidence that may exist at sugtetiln the event
the deferred tax valuation allowance is releadsel Gompany would record an income tax benefittiergortion or all
of the deferred tax valuation allowance released.Fébruary 2, 2013, the Company had a deferredvédiation
allowance of $3.5 million.

Income tax reserves for uncertain tax positionsdatermined using the methodology required by tle®e Tax Topic

of the Accounting Standards Codification (“Coditioa”). This methodology requires companies to assach income
tax position taken using a two-step process. Ard@tetion is first made as to whether it is mokely than not that the
position will be sustained, based upon the techmuwarits, upon examination by the taxing authositiéf the tax

position is expected to meet the more likely thahariteria, the benefit recorded for the tax gositequals the largest
amount that is greater than 50% likely to be realimpon ultimate settlement of the respective w@sitipn. Uncertain

tax positions require determinations and estimagdulities to be made based on provisions of tibelaw, which may

be subject to change or varying interpretatiothéf Company’s determinations and estimates probe ioaccurate, the
resulting adjustments could be material to its feitinancial results. See Note 9 to the Companymglidated

Financial Statements for additional informationaxiing income taxes.

The Company recorded an effective income tax ra®@1®% for Fiscal 2013 compared to 40.2% for 200tds year’s

tax rate is lower primarily due to the reversatbérges previously recorded related to uncertaipteitions due to the
expiration of the applicable statutes of limitasoand a settlement with a state tax authority nfawerable than
anticipated related to other uncertain tax posgion

Postretirement Benefits Plan Accounting

Full-time employees who had at least 1,000 hourseofice in calendar year 2004, except employe#sihids Sports
Group and Schuh Group segments, are covered byiredebenefit pension plan. The Company froze tkénéd
benefit pension plan effective January 1, 2005. Tlenpany also provides certain former employees \ited
medical and life insurance benefits. The Compamd$uat least the minimum amount required by the |Byeg
Retirement Income Security Act.

As required by the Compensation — Retirement Ben&fpic of the Codification, the Company is reqdito recognize
the overfunded or underfunded status of postre@rgrbenefit plans as an asset or liability in ti@nsolidated Balance
Sheets and to recognize changes in that fundessstaaccumulated other comprehensive loss, netxgfn the year in
which the changes occur.

The Company accounts for the defined benefit p@nglans using the Compensation-Retirement Bengéifsic of the
Codification. As permitted under this topic, pemsiexpense is recognized on an accrual basis ovetogees’
approximate service periods. The calculation ofspemnexpense and the corresponding liability rezputhe use of a
number of critical assumptions, including the expddong-term rate of return on plan assets anas$isemed discount
rate, as well as the recognition of actuarial gaimg losses. Changes in these assumptions cahiredifferent expense
and liability amounts, and future actual experiecar differ from these assumptions.

Long Term Rate of Return Assumption — Pension espémcreases as the expected rate of return otiopguian assets
decreases. The Company estimates that the pensinragsets will generate a long-term rate of retfrida.75%. To

develop this assumption, the Company consideretbridal asset returns, the current asset allocatind future

expectations of asset returns. The expected lamg-tate of return on plan assets is based on atlenmg investment
policy of 50% U.S. equities, 13% international eigsi, 35% U.S. fixed income securities and 2% eaglivalents. For
Fiscal 2013, if the expected rate of return hachloecreased by 1%, net pension expense would hakeased by $0.9
million, and if the expected rate of return hadrbeereased by 1%, net pension expense would heseased by $0.9
million.

Discount Rate — Pension liability and future penséxpense increase as the discount rate is rediitedCompany
discounted future pension obligations using a @tet.00%, 4.35% and 5.25% for Fiscal 2013, 2012 aad1,
respectively. The discount rate at February 2, 2848 determined based on a yield curve of highityuabrporate
bonds with cash flows matching the Company’s plaxgected benefit payments. For Fiscal 2013, ifdiseount rate
had been increased by 0.5%, net pension expenskl Waue decreased by $0.6 million, and if the distaate had
been decreased by 0.5%, net pension expense wawdifcreased by $0.6 million. In addition, if thigcount rate had
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been increased by 0.5%, the projected benefit atitig would have decreased by $6.0 million andabeumulated
benefit obligation would have decreased by $6.0onil If the discount rate had been decreased Bpthe projected
benefit obligation would have been increased by6 $8illion and the accumulated benefit obligationub have
increased by $6.6 million.

Amortization of Gains and Losses — The Companyzasl a calculated value of assets, which is anagusy method
that recognizes changes in the fair values of agsadr a period of five years. At the end of Fis2@l3, the Company
had unrecognized actuarial losses of $42.9 mill&wtounting principles generally accepted in thetéthStates require
that the Company recognize a portion of these fosdeen they exceed a calculated threshold. Thesedomight be
recognized as a component of pension expenseurefyiears and would be amortized over the avenatgesf service of
employees, which is currently approximately sixrge&uture changes in plan asset returns, assuisealdt rates and
various other factors related to the pension pldhimpact future pension expense and liabilitigs;luding increasing
or decreasing unrecognized actuarial gains anésoss

The Company recognized expense for its definedfligrension plans of $4.3 million, $2.8 million ag&.3 million in
Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Camyipaboard of directors approved freezing the Comyfsadefined
pension benefit plan effective January 1, 2005. Thenpany’s pension expense is expected to inclieasiscal 2014
by approximately $0.4 million due to a larger aciaidoss to be amortized.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company has share-based compensation plansirapwaertain members of management and non-employee
directors. The Company recognizes compensationnsepéor share-based payments based on the faie \wdlthe
awards as required by the Compensation — Stock €psagtion Topic of the Codification. For Fiscal 202812 and
2011, share-based compensation expense was $&0hkn $1,000 and $0.2 million, respectively. Tanpany did

not issue any new share-based compensation awareisdal 2013, 2012 or 2011. For Fiscal 2013, 28d4@ 2011,
restricted stock expense was $10.5 million, $7.fioni and $7.8 million, respectively. The fair velwf employee-
restricted stock is determined based on the clgsiivg of the Company’s stock on the date of tegrThe benefits of

tax deductions in excess of recognized compensatipanse are reported as a financing cash flow.

Comparable Sales

During Fiscal 2013, the Company revised its pres@ni of comparable sales to include its e-commarnzkdirect mail
catalog businesses. Prior year comparable sales haen adjusted to conform to the current yeareptason.
Comparable sales are sales from stores open ldhger one year, beginning in the fifty-third week afstore’s
operation, and sales of websites operated longer dine year and direct mail catalog sales. Temippdosed stores
are excluded from the comparable store sales edionlfor every full week of the store closing. Brped stores are
excluded from the comparable store sales calculatmil the fifty-third week of operation in the ganded format.

Results of Operations—Fiscal 2013 Compared to Fiska012

The Company’s net sales for Fiscal 2013 (53 wemksgased 13.6% to $2.60 billion from $2.29 billionFiscal 2012
(52 weeks). The increase in net sales was a rebtifie inclusion of Schuh Group for the full yearkiscal 2013, an
estimated $35.2 million impact of sales for theyfihird week and an increase in comparable salethe Journeys
Group, Schuh Group and Johnston & Murphy Group, bined with increased sales in Licensed Brandsebffsy
decreased comparable sales in Lids Sports GrougssG@nargin increased 13.1% to $1.30 billion in &it013 from
$1.15 billion in Fiscal 2012, but decreased as @ep#age of net sales from 50.1% to 49.8%, primaeflecting
decreased gross margin as a percentage of nefirséihesLids Sports and Johnston & Murphy Grougset slightly by
increased gross margin as a percentage of netisatee Journeys and Schuh Groups, while Licensethds’ gross
margin was flat. Selling and administrative expsnseFiscal 2013 increased 11.2% from Fiscal 2QitZlbcreased as a
percentage of net sales from 43.7% to 42.7%, pilynaflecting expense leverage in the Johnston & phy, Journeys
and Lids Sports Groups due to positive comparaddkessn the Journeys and Johnston & Murphy Grougisirecreased
wholesale sales in the Johnston & Murphy Group. Tloenpany records buying and merchandising and @oayp
costs in selling and administrative expense. Bexdbe Company does not include these costs inafosales, the
Company’s gross margin may not be comparable teratttailers that include these costs in the catmn of gross
margin. Explanations of the changes in resultspafrations are provided by business segment in skgmus following
these introductory paragraphs.

Earnings from continuing operations before incomees (“pretax earnings”) for Fiscal 2013 were $26@illion,
compared to $138.8 million for Fiscal 2012. Pre&atnings for Fiscal 2013 included asset impairnsmt other
charges of $17.0 million, including $15.5 millionrfexpenses related to the computer network idrugsinnounced
in December 2010, $1.4 million for retail store etssnpairments and $0.1 million for other legal teet. Pretax
earnings for Fiscal 2012 included asset impairmamd other charges of $2.7 million, including $1.1lian for
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retail store asset impairments, $0.9 million fdnestlegal matters and $0.7 million for expenseateel to the computer
network intrusion.

Net earnings for Fiscal 2013 were $110.5 milliod.@P diluted earnings per share) compared to $8@IDn ($3.43
diluted earnings per share) for Fiscal 2012. Nebiags for Fiscal 2013 includes $0.5 million ($0.0iuted loss per
share) charge to earnings (net of tax), primaudly dnticipated costs of environmental remedialraiéves related to
former facilities operated by the Company. Net #ays for Fiscal 2012 includes $1.0 million ($0.0%utkd loss per
share) charge to earnings (net of tax), includifidl $nillion primarily for anticipated costs of ermnmental remedial
alternatives related to former facilities operabgdthe Company, offset by a $0.1 million gain fecess provisions to
prior discontinued operations. The Company recoraiecffective federal income tax rate of 31.9% Fescal 2013
compared to 40.2% for Fiscal 2012. This year’'s lowHective tax rate of 31.9% reflects the revershicharges
previously recorded related to uncertain tax posgidue to the expiration of the applicable statofdimitations and a
settlement with a state tax authority more favarahhn anticipated related to other uncertain tasitijpns. See Note 9
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for aukoti information.

Journeys Group

Fiscal Year Ended %
2013 2012 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Net sale $ 1,111,490 $ 1,020,116 9.0%
Earnings from operatio $ 106,929 $ 82,452 29.7%
Operating margi 9.6% $.1%

Net sales from Journeys Group increased 9.0% tbl3dillion for Fiscal 2013 from $1.02 billion forigeal 2012. The
increase reflects primarily a 6% increase in satneessales, an 8% increase in comparable direessahd a 6%
increase in comparable sales, including both stockdirect sales. The comparable store salesaiseneflected a 6%
increase in the average price per pair of shodsetoby a 1% decrease in footwear unit comparadiess Total unit

sales increased 2% during the same period. The stamnt for Journeys Group was 1,157 stores aetideof Fiscal

2013, including 156 Journeys Kidz stores, 51 ShiJbyrneys stores, 130 Underground by Journeysssemd 24

Journeys stores in Canada, compared to 1,154 siotés end of Fiscal 2012, including 152 Journ€iglz stores, 53

Shi by Journeys stores, 137 Underground by Joursteyss and 13 Journeys stores in Canada.

Journeys Group earnings from operations for Fi204B3 increased 29.7% to $106.9 million, compare$ig®.5 million
for Fiscal 2012. The increase in earnings from af@ns was primarily due to increased net saleseased gross
margin as a percentage of net sales, reflectinglamarkdowns, and to decreased expenses as a fageah net sales,
reflecting leverage of store related costs, ineclgdiccupancy costs and depreciation, and lowersaocruals.

Schuh Group

Fiscal Year Ended %
2013 2012 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Net sale $ 370,480 $ 212,262 74.5%
Earnings from operatio $ 7875 $ 11,711 (32.8%)
Operating margi 2.1% 5.5%

Net sales from the Schuh Group increased 74.5%8%®.$ million for Fiscal 2013, compared to $212.Hiom for
Fiscal 2012. Net sales for Schuh Group in Fiscdl2hcluded sales only for the seven months afterGompany
acquired Schuh on June 23, 2011. The sales incedsseeflects a 7% increase in same store salE3%aincrease in
comparable direct sales and an 8% increase in aaipleasales, including both store and direct stdeghe seven
months ended February 2, 2013. Schuh Group operétstbres, including three Schuh Kids stores, I1doncessions
at the end of Fiscal 2013 compared to 64 storesldrabncessions at the end of Fiscal 2012.

Schuh Group earnings from operations were $7.9anifor Fiscal 2013 compared to $11.7 million fasdal 2012. The
earnings included $12.1 million this year and $hilion last year in compensation expense related tdeferred
purchase price obligation in connection with theuasition. The earnings also included $15.8 millibwis year and
$4.9 million last year related to accruals for antamyent bonus payment for Schuh employees providedn the
Schuh acquisition. The decrease in earnings is tduthe increase in expense associated with bothddferred
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purchase price and contingent bonus payment. See Rldo the Consolidated Financial Statements &ditenal
information related to the Schuh acquisition.

Lids Sports Group

Fiscal Year Ended %
2013 2012 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Net sale $ 791,255 $ 759,324 4.2%
Earnings frorroperation $ 85,794 $ 82,349 4.2%
Operating margi 10.8% 10.8%

Net sales from the Lids Sports Group increased 4@2%791.3 million for Fiscal 2013 from $759.3 nal for Fiscal

2012. The increase primarily reflects a 3% increasaverage Lids Sports Group stores operated. eSstore sales
decreased 4%, comparable direct sales increase@r@comparable sales, including both store andctdisales,

decreased 3% for Fiscal 2013. The comparable dalrease reflected a 1% decrease in averagepaideat and a 1%
decrease in comparable store hat units sold. ®hwarable sales decrease reflects the current giyubdf adjustable
“snap-back” hat styles, which have displaced sommahd for fitted merchandise. Management beliehas the

relative ease of merchandising non-fitted hats dreabled a variety of non-headwear retailers toyctire adjustable
styles, increasing competition in the category.sLBports Group operated 1,053 stores at the erfeisofl 2013,

including 98 Lids stores in Canada and 144 LidskeodRoom and Clubhouse stores, compared to 1,@08ssat the
end of Fiscal 2012, including 82 Lids stores in &mand 120 Lids Locker Room and Clubhouse stores.

Lids Sports Group earnings from operations for &i2013 increased 4.2% to $85.8 million compare#ig®.3 million
for Fiscal 2012. The increase in operating inconas wrimarily due to increased net sales and deztlemgpenses as a
percentage of net sales, primarily reflecting deseel accruals for bonus compensation.

Johnston & Murphy Group

Fiscal Year Ended %
2013 2012 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Net sale $ 221,860 $ 201,725 10.0%
Earnings from operatio $ 15,737  $ 13,682 15.0%
Operating margi 7.1% 6.8%

Johnston & Murphy Group net sales increased 10@%221.9 million for Fiscal 2013 from $201.7 mitlidor Fiscal
2012. The increase reflected primarily a 3% incdéassame store sales, a 13% increase in compatabtz sales and a
4% increase in comparable sales, including bothesémd direct sales, and a 21% increase in Johr&tburphy
wholesale sales slightly offset by a 1% decrease/@rage stores operated (i.e. the sum of the nuaftstores open on
the first day of the fiscal year and the last dagaxch fiscal month during the year divided byt#en) for Johnston &
Murphy retail operations. Unit sales for the Jobns& Murphy wholesale business increased 25% inaFig013, while
the average price per pair of shoes decreased B¥hdosame period. Retail operations accounted’for% of the
Johnston & Murphy Group’s sales in Fiscal 2013, ddvwm 74.3% in Fiscal 2012. The comparable salesease in
Fiscal 2013 reflects a 4% increase in the average per pair of shoes for Johnston & Murphy retgilerations,
primarily associated with increased sales of higivered dress shoes, while footwear unit comparahles were flat.
The store count for Johnston & Murphy retail opiers at the end of Fiscal 2013 included 157 Jotm&tdMurphy
shops and factory stores, including five store€amada, compared to 153 Johnston & Murphy shopsaantolry stores,
including one store in Canada, at the end of Fi20aP.

Johnston & Murphy earnings from operations for &is2013 increased 15.0% to $15.7 million from $1&illion for
Fiscal 2012, primarily due to increased net sales.

31



Licensed Brands

Fiscal Year Ended %

2013 2012 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Net sale $ 108,498 % 97,444 11.3%
Earnings from operatio $ 10,064 $ 9,456 6.4%
Operating margi 9.3% 9.7%

Licensed Brands’ net sales increased 11.3% to $1®8lion for Fiscal 2013 from $97.4 million for $6al 2012. The
sales increase reflects $5.6 million of increasgldssfrom Dockers Footwear as well as increasezs safl SureGrip
Footwear and the Chaps line of footwear. Unit side®ockers Footwear increased 4% for Fiscal 284@ the average
price per pair of shoes increased 3% for the sasmed

Licensed Brands’ earnings from operations for Hi2€H 3 increased 6.4%, from $9.5 million for Fis@all2 to $10.1
million, primarily due to increased net sales, diit offset by higher bonus accruals.

Corporate, Interest Expenses and Other Charges

Corporate and other expense for Fiscal 2013 wasA$®B8lion compared to $55.8 million for Fiscal 2Zh1Corporate
expense in Fiscal 2013 included $17.0 million iseadmpairment and other charges, primarily fomoek intrusion

expenses, retail store asset impairments and hkghal matters. Corporate expense in Fiscal 201Rded $2.7 million

in asset impairment and other charges, primarityrétail store asset impairments, other legal matéand network
intrusion expenses and $7.4 million in acquisitietated expenses. Excluding the charges listedegbmrporate and
other expense decreased primarily due to lower $acaruals.

Interest expense decreased 0.6% from $5.2 milfidriscal 2012 to $5.1 million in Fiscal 2013.

Results of Operations — Fiscal 2012 Compared to FKal 2011

The Company’'s net sales for Fiscal 2012 increaed?%2 to $2.29 billion from $1.79 billion in Fisc@011. The
increase in net sales was a result of an increag®mparable sales in the Lids Sports Group, Jgsr&oup and
Johnston & Murphy Group, combined with $274.2 roilliof sales from businesses acquired over the tpagtve
months, offset slightly by lower sales in Licendgdhnds and Underground Station Group. Gross margireased
27.8% to $1.15 billion in Fiscal 2012 from $898.1llion in Fiscal 2011 and was down slightly as agemtage of net
sales at 50.1%. Selling and administrative expeimsEgscal 2012 increased 24.6% from Fiscal 201tldegreased as a
percentage of net sales from 44.9% to 43.7%, pifynaaflecting expense leverage in the Lids Sp@tsup, Journeys
Group, Johnston & Murphy Group and Undergroundi&@taGroup due to positive comparable sales andeasad
wholesale sales in the Johnston & Murphy Group. Tleenpany records buying and merchandising and @oaayp
costs in selling and administrative expense. Bezdhie Company does not include these costs inafosales, the
Company’s gross margin may not be comparable terattailers that include these costs in the catmn of gross
margin. Explanations of the changes in resultsparations are provided by business segment in skgmus following
these introductory paragraphs.

Pretax earnings for Fiscal 2012 were $138.8 millioompared to $85.0 million for Fiscal 2011. Pretanings for
Fiscal 2012 included asset impairment and othergesaof $2.7 million, including $1.1 million for tal store asset
impairments, $0.9 million for other legal mattersl&b0.7 million for expenses related to the compugwork intrusion
announced in December 2010. Pretax earnings faaFR011 included asset impairment and other clsacde$8.6
million, including $7.2 million for retail store sst impairments, $1.3 million for expenses relaiedhe computer
network intrusion and $0.1 million for other legahtters.

Net earnings for Fiscal 2012 were $82.0 million.g&diluted earnings per share) compared to $53Ibm($2.24
diluted earnings per share) for Fiscal 2011. Neniags for Fiscal 2012 includes $1.0 million ($0.0futed loss per
share) charge to earnings (net of tax), includifidl $nillion primarily for anticipated costs of ermnmental remedial
alternatives related to former facilities operalbgdthe Company, offset by a $0.1 million gain fecess provisions to
prior discontinued operations. Net earnings foc&i2011 includes $1.3 million ($0.05 diluted Iges share) charge to
earnings (net of tax), including $1.8 million pririta for anticipated costs of environmental remédigernatives related
to former facilities operated by the Company, dffsg a $0.5 million gain for excess provisions top discontinued
operations. The Company recorded an effective &decome tax rate of 40.2% for Fiscal 2012 comgdce35.8% for
Fiscal 2011. Fiscal 2012’'s higher effective taxeraf 40.2% reflects transaction costs and defep@dhase price
related to the Schuh acquisition, which are comsidlggermanent differences. Fiscal 2011’s lowercéiffe tax rate of
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35.8% reflects the net reduction of the Companghility for uncertain tax positions of $1.3 miliian Fiscal 2011. See
Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statementadalitional information.

Journeys Group

Fiscal Year Ended %

2012 2011 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Net sale $ 1,020,116 $ 898,500 13.5%
Earnings from operatio $ 82452 $ 49,642 66.1%
Operating margi 8.1% 5.5%

Net sales from Journeys Group increased 13.5% @23dillion for Fiscal 2012 from $898.5 million fétiscal 2011.
The increase reflects primarily a 14% increaseames store sales, a 28% increase in comparablet diades and
comparable sales, including both store and diralgtss increase of 14%. The comparable sales iseredlected an
11% increase in footwear unit comparable salesaa?fth increase in the average price per pair ofshib&al unit sales
increased 11% during the same period. The storetdouJourneys Group was 1,154 stores at the éfdsoal 2012,
including 152 Journeys Kidz stores, 53 Shi by Jeusnstores, 137 Underground by Journeys storeslantburneys
stores in Canada, compared to 1,168 stores atnthefeFiscal 2011, including 149 Journeys Kidz espr55 Shi by
Journeys stores, 151 Underground by Journeys stokthree Journeys stores in Canada.

Journeys Group earnings from operations for Fi264R increased 66.1% to $82.5 million, compare§i49.6 million
for Fiscal 2011. The increase in earnings from afi@ns was primarily due to increased net sales geurteased
expenses as a percentage of net sales, refleetingalging of occupancy costs, selling salariesdapdeciation.

Schuh Group

Fiscal Year Ended %
2012 2011 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Net sale $ 212262 $ — NM
Earnings from operatio $ 11,711 $ — NM
Operating margi 5.5% —

Net sales from the Schuh Group were $212.3 mili@rthe initial reporting period ended January 2812, beginning
on June 20, 2011. Schuh Group operated 64 stode$4noncessions at the end of Fiscal 2012.

Schuh Group earnings from operations were $11.7iomilfor Fiscal 2012. Earnings included $7.2 miflian
compensation expense related to a deferred purghvase obligation in connection with the acquigitias discussed
above. Such expense reduced operating margin éosegment by approximately 340 basis points. Sde Rldo the
Consolidated Financial Statements for additionfrimation related to the Schuh acquisition.

Lids Sports Group

Fiscal Year Ended %
2012 2011 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Net sale $ 759324 $ 603,345 25.9%
Earningsfrom operation $ 82349 $ 56,026 47.0%
Operating margi 10.8% 9.3%

Net sales from the Lids Sports Group increased?23®$759.3 million for Fiscal 2012 from $603.3 linih for Fiscal
2011. The increase primarily reflects a 12% incedassame store sales, an 11% increase in compadabtt sales and
a comparable sales, including both store and dgalets, increase of 12%, and $59.8 million of s&i@s businesses
acquired over the past twelve months. The comparsddes increase reflected a 10% increase in cailigastore units
sold, primarily reflecting demand which managemieglieves is driven by style trends and a 2% in@éasaverage
price per hat. Lids Sports Group operated 1,00éestat the end of Fiscal 2012, including 82 stamgSanada and 120
Lids Locker Room stores and Clubhouse stores, coeda 985 stores at the end of Fiscal 2011, inoud@3 stores in
Canada and 99 Lids Locker Room stores.
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Lids Sports Group earnings from operations for &ig012 increased 47.0% to $82.3 million compacefis6.0 million
for Fiscal 2011. The increase in operating incoras primarily due to increased headwear sales acreéaked expenses
as a percentage of net sales, primarily refleckvgrage in store related expenses from positivepemable sales as
well as for a change in sales mix in the Lids Sp@toup. Wholesale sales accounted for 15% of ide Bports
Group’s sales in Fiscal 2012 compared to 12% ircdfi011. Wholesale sales normally involve lowepenses
compared to retail stores.

Johnston & Murphy Group

Fiscal Year Ended %

2012 2011 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Net sale $ 201,725 $ 185,011 9.0%
Earnings from operatio $ 13,682 $ 7,595 80.1%
Operating margi 6.8% 4.1%

Johnston & Murphy Group net sales increased 9.0%2fl.7 million for Fiscal 2012 from $185.0 millidar Fiscal
2011. The increase reflected primarily a 10% inseda same store sales, a 16% increase in compatmbtt sales and
a comparable sales, including both store and dsalgs, increase of 11%, and a 5% increase in tiwh&sMurphy
wholesale sales, partially offset by a 2% decréasererage stores operated for Johnston & Murphsilreperations.
Unit sales for the Johnston & Murphy wholesale bess increased 4% in Fiscal 2012 and the average per pair of
shoes increased 1% for the same period. The cobipasales increase in Fiscal 2012 reflects a 3%ease in footwear
unit comparable sales and a 3% increase in av@régge per pair of shoes, primarily due to changesroduct mix. The
comparable sales increase also reflects increasled sf non-footwear categories. Retail operatiacsounted for
74.3% of Johnston & Murphy Group sales in Fiscdl2Qp from 73.3% in Fiscal 2011. The store coont’bhnston &
Murphy retail operations at the end of Fiscal 20iuded 153 Johnston & Murphy shops and factooyest compared
to 156 Johnston & Murphy shops and factory stotéseaend of Fiscal 2011.

Johnston & Murphy earnings from operations for &is2011 increased 80.1% to $13.7 million from $milion for
Fiscal 2011, primarily due to increased net sadlegeased gross margin as a percentage of net satbslecreased
expenses as a percentage of net sales. Expenbasefpositive leverage in occupancy and depiiecidtom the
increase in comparable store sales.

Licensed Brands

Fiscal Year Ended %

2012 2011 Change
(dollars in thousands)
Net sale $ 97,444 $ 101,644 (4.1)%
Earnings from operatio $ 9456 $ 12,359 (23.5)%
Operating margi 9.7% 12.2%

Licensed Brands’ net sales decreased 4.1% to $8iflidn for Fiscal 2012 from $101.6 million for Fal 2011. The
sales decrease reflects a decrease in sales ofeBo&lootwear which management attributes in pantetailers’
increasing emphasis on their private label braoffset by a $4.9 million increase in sales from leaps line of
footwear and Keuka Footwear business, which wasieed)in the third quarter of Fiscal 2011. Unitesafor Dockers
Footwear decreased 9% for Fiscal 2012 and the gegmace per pair of shoes decreased 1% for the gemod.

Licensed Brands’ earnings from operations for Hig€d.2 decreased 23.5%, from $12.4 million for Bis2011 to $9.5
million, primarily due to decreased net sales, dased gross margins as a percentage of net sale® ancreased
expenses as a percentage of net sales, reflentingpised selling and advertising expenses andhfreigts.

Corporate, Interest Expenses and Other Charges

Corporate and other expense for Fiscal 2012 was3$®8lion compared to $39.5 million for Fiscal 201Corporate
expense in Fiscal 2012 included $2.7 million ineasenpairment and other charges, primarily for ifettore
asset impairments, other legal matters, netwonlusiin expenses and $7.4 million in acquisitiorated expenses.
Corporate expense in Fiscal 2011 included $8.6ianilin asset impairment and other charges, prindat retail
store asset impairments, network intrusion expersseb other legal matters. Excluding the chargesdisabove,
corporate and other expense increased primarilyta@béher bonus accruals reflecting improved fiahperformance
of the Company.
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Interest expense increased 356.4% from $1.1 mililofriscal 2011 to $5.2 million in Fiscal 2012, dige average
revolver borrowings of $49.5 million in Fiscal 2Q4&imarily in connection with the Schuh acquisiti@and acquired
UK term loans totaling $35.7 million as of JanuaBy 2012, compared to average revolver borrowirfidgs/d million
in Fiscal 2011.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table sets forth certain financiatalat the dates indicated.

Feb. 2, Jan. 28, Jan. 29,
2013 2012 2011
(dollars in millions)
Cash and cash equivale $ 596 $ 536 $ 55.¢
Working capita $ 406 $ 290.¢ $ 278.7
Long-term debt (include current maturities $ 507 $ 407 $ 0.C

Working Capital

The Company’s business is seasonal, with the Coypamvestment in inventory and accounts receivaidemally
reaching peaks in the spring and fall of each yidestorically, cash flow from operations has beeneyated principally
in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year.

Cash provided by operating activities was $123Haniin Fiscal 2013 compared to $145.0 millionRiscal 2012. The
$21.8 million decrease from operating activitiesnfr Fiscal 2012 reflects a decrease in cash flownfahanges in
inventory, accounts payable and other accrueditialsiof $18.7 million, $16.8 million and $16.0 lion, respectively,
partially offset by improved earnings and a $28illian increase from changes in other assets atilliies. The $18.7
million decrease in cash flow from inventory refleihcreases in retail inventory, reflecting slowsan expected sales,
and increased inventory in Licensed Brands. The8idillion decrease in cash flow from accounts jésaeflects
changes in buying patterns and payment terms raggdtiwith individual vendors. The $16.0 million degse in cash
flow from other accrued liabilities reflects decsed bonus accruals and decreased income tax acanudiscal 2013
compared to Fiscal 2012. The $28.5 million inceess cash flow from other assets and liabilitieBets increased
accruals for the deferred purchase price and beaus-out related to Schuh and a decrease in long+teceivables
related to the network intrusion.

The $61.0 million increase in inventories at Febyuy 2013 from January 28, 2012 levels reflectsaases in retail
inventory, reflecting slower than expected saled an5.5% increase in square footage, and incremseshtory in
Licensed Brands to support growth initiatives.

Accounts receivable at February 2, 2013 increase® $nillion compared to January 28, 2012, due prigna
to increased wholesale sales reflecting growth he tlohnston & Murphy wholesale business and Liaknse
Brands business.

Cash provided by operating activities was $145l0aniin Fiscal 2012 compared to $102.6 millionRiscal 2011. The
$42.4 million increase in cash flow from operatengivities from last year reflects improved earsiragnd a change in
other assets and liabilities and accounts recetvab$27.1 million and $15.1 million, respectivebffset by a decrease
in cash flow from changes in other accrued liab#itand accounts payable of $32.6 million and $Idifion,
respectively. The $27.1 million increase in casiwffrom other assets and liabilities reflects acréase in the bonus
bank liability, resulting from increased bonuses$-iscal 2012, and deferred compensation due taé¢ferred purchase
price and bonus earn-out accruals related to Sqiartially offset by an increase in long-term reedies related to the
network intrusion. The $15.1 million increase inslcaflow from accounts receivable reflects primarigcreased
wholesale sales in Licensed Brands for Fiscal 28@® the increase in wholesale sales, includingatiditional sales
in Lids Team Sports, in Fiscal 2011 when compaceéiscal 2010, which together, contribute to theréase in cash
flow for Fiscal 2012. The $32.6 million decrease#ash flow from other accrued liabilities was daetreduction in the
growth of current bonus accruals and increased paggirelated to environmental liabilities. The ®lrillion decrease
in cash flow from accounts payable reflected change buying patterns and payment terms negotiatéth w
individual vendors.

The $42.3 million increase in inventories at Japd, 2012 from January 29, 2011 levels reflecinarily an increase
in Lids retail inventory to support growth and ieases in Lids Team Sports inventory to support tir@amd to improve
customer fulfillment.
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Accounts receivable at January 28, 2012 decrea8c@ illion compared to January 29, 2011, due piilgngo
decreased wholesale sales in Licensed Brands.

Sources of Liquidity

The Company has three principal sources of liguidiash from operations, cash and cash equivatentseand and the
Credit Facility discussed below. The Company belgethat cash and cash equivalents on hand, cashdjperations
and availability under its Credit Facility will baufficient to cover its working capital and capiédpenditures for the
foreseeable future.

On June 23, 2011, the Company entered into a Rimstndment (the “Amendment”) to the Second Amended a
Restated Credit Agreement (the “Credit Facilitygted January 21, 2011, in the aggregate principaluat of $375.0
million, with a $40.0 million swingline loan sublima $70.0 million sublimit for the issuance ofstliby letters of
credit and a Canadian sub-facility of up to $8.0liom, which has a five-year term, expiring in Jany 2016. The
Amendment raised the aggregate principal amourtherCredit Facility to $375.0 million from $300.0llon. Any
swingline loans and any letters of credit and beings under the Canadian facility will reduce thaitability under the
Credit Facility on a dollar-for-dollar basis. Indition, the Company has an option to increase Wadability under the
Credit Facility by up to $75.0 million subject tamong other things, the receipt of commitmentstifier increased
amount. The aggregate amount of the loans madéetteds of credit issued under the Credit Faciityall at no time
exceed the lesser of the facility amount ($375Manior, if increased at the Company’s option, jsabto the receipt of
commitments for the increased amount, up to $45llBon) or the “Borrowing Base”, which generallg based on
90% of eligible inventory plus 85% of eligible wieshle receivables (50% of eligible wholesale rexfdas of the Lids
Team Sports business) plus 90% of eligible creatitl @nd debit card receivables less applicablewreseFor additional
information on the Company’s Credit Facility, seet&6 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsided in Item 8.

In connection with the Schuh acquisition, Schuleesd into an amended and restated Senior TermitlescAgreement
and Working Capital Facility Letter, (collectivelthe “UK Credit Facilities”) which provide for terdoans of up to
£29.5 million (a £15.5 million A term loan and £Q4nillion B term loan) and a working capital fatjliof £5.0 million.

The Working Capital Facility Letter was allowedl&pse in June 2012. The A term loan bears intertestBOR plus
2.50% per annum. The B term loan bears intere&IBDOR plus 3.75% per annum. The Company is not ireguto

make any payments on the B term loan until it egi©ctober 31, 2015, unless the Company’s SchubpGsegment
has Excess Cash Flow (as defined in the UK Creddiliies). The Company paid £2.0 million, £2.8lnih and

£4.5 million on the B term loan in the fourth qearbf Fiscal 2013, the second quarter of Fiscal32@id the fourth
quarter of Fiscal 2012, respectively.

The UK Credit Facilities contains certain covenaattthe Schuh level including a minimum interestazage covenant
initially set at 4.25x and increasing to 4.50x amdary 2012 and thereafter, a maximum leveragenamtenitially set at
2.75x declining over time at various rates to 2.BBginning in July 2012 and a minimum cash flowarage of 1.10x.
The Company was in compliance with all the covemattFebruary 2, 2013. The UK Credit Facilities seeured by a
pledge of all the assets of Schuh and its subgidiar

Revolving credit borrowings averaged $30.5 millduring Fiscal 2013 and $49.5 million during Fis2@ll2, as cash on
hand, cash generated from operations and revblweowings primarily funded seasonal working cdpiéguirements,
capital expenditures and stock repurchases foaFi3.

There were $12.3 million of letters of credit oatsiing, $27.7 million of revolver borrowings outsténg under the
Credit Facility and $23.0 million in U.K. term loamutstanding at February 2, 2013. The Companytiseguired to
comply with any financial covenants under the Qrdeficility unless Excess Availability (as defined the First
Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated Gxgokement) is less than the greater of $27.5 onilbr 12.5%
of the Loan Cap (as defined in the First Amendnterthe Second Amended and Restated Credit Agre¢ménand

during such time as Excess Availability is lessntiiae greater of $27.5 million or 12.5% of the Ldaap, the Credit
Facility requires the Company to meet a minimunedixharge coverage ratio of (a) an amount equebnsolidated
EBITDA less capital expenditures and taxes pai@ash, in each case for such period, to (b) fixeargds for such
period, of not less than 1.0:1.0. Excess Availabitas $292.8 million at February 2, 2013. Becédtseess Availability
exceeded $27.5 million or 12.5% of the Loan Cap,@empany was not required to comply with thisricial covenant
at February 2, 2013.

The Company’s Credit Facility prohibits the paymehtlividends and other restricted payments urdsssf the date of
the making of any Restricted Payment (as defingterCredit Facility) or consummation of any Acdtits (as defined
in the Credit Facility), (a) no Default (as definedthe Credit Facility) or Event of Default (asfided in the Credit
Facility)exists or would arise after giving effetti such Restricted Payment or Acquisition, ande{ther (i) the
Borrowers (as defined in the Credit Facility) hgre forma projected Excess Availability for thelfaling six month
period equal to or greater than 50% of the Loan, Gdfer giving pro forma effect to such Restrictedyment or
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Acquisition, or (ii) (A) the Borrowers have pro foa projected Excess Availability for the followisg month period
of less than 50% of the Loan Cap but equal to eafgr than 20% of the Loan Cap, after giving pronto effect to the
Restricted Payment or Acquisition, and (B) the Bixeharge Coverage Ratio (as defined in the Creatifligy), on a

pro-forma basis for the twelve months precedindidrestricted Payment or Acquisition, will be eqtoabr greater than
1.0:1.0 and (c) after giving effect to such RestidcPayment or Acquisition, the Borrowers are Sui@s defined in
the Credit Facility). The Company’s management dugsexpect availability under the Credit Facilioyfall below the

requirements listed above during Fiscal 2014. Tlen@any’'s UK Credit Facilities prohibit the paymewit any

dividends by Schuh or its subsidiaries to the Campa

The aggregate of annual dividend requirements erCibmpany’s Subordinated Serial Preferred Stocl33eries 1,
$4.75 Series 3 and $4.75 Series 4, and on its 8ub0Ordinated Cumulative Preferred Stock is $0lliani

Contractual Obligations
The following tables set forth aggregate contrdabbéigations and commitments as of February 2,3201

(in thousands) Payments Due by Period
I More
Contractual Obligations Less than 1 1-3 3-5 than 5
Total year years years years
Capital Lease Obligatio $ 13 3 1 3 3 % 3 % 6
Long-Term Debt Obligatior' 50,682 5,675 45,007 0 0
Operating LeasObligation: 1,255,160 223,495 401,661 287,470 342,534
Purchase Obligatioffs 546,995 546,995 0 0 0
Long-Term Obligations — Schtth 60,108 8,622 51,486 0 0
Other Lon¢-Term Liabilities 1,337 176 350 350 461

Total Contractual Obligatiof$ ~ $ 1,914,295 $ 784,964 $ 498,507 $ 287,823 $ 343,001

(in thousands) Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period
More
Total Amounts Less than 1 1-3 3-5 than 5
Commercial Commitments Committed year years years years
Letters of Cred $ 12,288 $ 12,288 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Total Commercial Commitmer ¢ 12,288 $ 12,288 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

(1) Excludes interest on revolver borrowings duartoertainty of timing of payments.

(2) Open purchase orders for inventory.

(3) Includes deferred purchase price payments,-@atrlbonus payments and retention note paymenaserklto the
Schuh acquisition and interest on the UK term lo&ws additional information, see Notes 2 and & Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8.

(4) Excludes unrecognized tax benefits of $11.lienildue to their uncertain nature in timing of pants, if any.

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures were $71.7 million, $49.5 imilland $29.3 million for Fiscal 2013, 2012 and ROtespectively.
The $22.2 million increase in Fiscal 2013 capitgdenditures as compared to Fiscal 2012 reflecteid@ease in retail
store capital expenditures due to the construaibh04 new stores opened in Fiscal 2013, comparetDtstores in
Fiscal 2012, and increased major renovations duease renewals. The $20.2 million increase ind#i2012 capital
expenditures as compared to Fiscal 2011 refleatedaease in retail store capital expenditurestdube construction
of 70 new stores opened in Fiscal 2012, compar&@3 s&tores in Fiscal 2011 and increased major andrmenovations
due to lease renewals.

Total capital expenditures in Fiscal 2014 are etqubto be approximately $119.9 million. These ideluetail capital
expenditures of approximately $105.8 million to opgproximately 32 Journeys stores, including 1Zamada, 20
Journeys Kidz stores, three Shi by Journeys std®e§chuh stores, 15 Johnston & Murphy shops actdrfa stores,
including three in Canada, and 80 Lids Sports Gratopes, including 30 Lids stores, with 10 store€anada, and 50
Lids Locker Room and Clubhouse stores, and to cetmphpproximately 152 major store renovations. plamned
amount of capital expenditures in Fiscal 2014 fdrolesale operations and other purposes is appréeiyngl4.1
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million, including approximately $9.8 million forenv systems to improve customer service and supp@i€ompany’s
growth.

Future Capital Needs

The Company expects that cash on hand and cashdedoby operations and borrowings under its CrEdility will
be sufficient to support seasonal working capitatl a&apital expenditure requirements during Fiscdl42 The
approximately $7.2 million of costs associated vdtbcontinued operations that are expected to ibchaing the next
twelve months are expected to be funded from cashamd, cash generated from operations and borgswinder the
Credit Facility during Fiscal 2014.

Common Stock Repurchases

The Company repurchased 645,904 shares at a c$37d million during Fiscal 2013. The Company $88.2 million
remaining under its current $75.0 million shareurepbase authorization. The Company did not re@selany shares
during Fiscal 2012. The Company repurchased 863Héres at a cost of $24.8 million during Fis€l P

Environmental and Other Contingencies

The Company is subject to certain loss contingeno@ated to environmental proceedings and othgal lenatters,
including those disclosed in Note 13 to the Comfmionsolidated Financial Statements. The Compasy rhade
pretax accruals for certain of these contingencgresduding approximately $0.8 million reflected kiscal 2013, $1.8
million reflected in Fiscal 2012 and $2.9 milliceflected in Fiscal 2011. These charges are inclinlgatovision for
discontinued operations, net in the ConsolidateateBtents of Operations because they relate to fofamlities
operated by the Company. The Company monitors tinestiers on an ongoing basis and, on a quarteryjsba
management reviews the Company’s reserves and adgcihu relation to each of them, adjusting prowvisioas
management deems necessary in view of changesilalae information. Changes in estimates of ligpire reported
in the periods when they occur. Consequently, mamagt believes that its reserve in relation to gadeeeding is a
best estimate of the probable loss connected t@itheeeding, or in cases in which no best estirsssible, the
minimum amount in the range of estimated lossesedapon its analysis of the facts and circumstaseof the close
of the most recent fiscal quarter. However, becafsencertainties and risks inherent in litigatiganerally and in
environmental proceedings in particular, there lsamo assurance that future developments will egtire additional
reserves, that some or all reserves may not beuatkegr that the amounts of any such addition&rves or any such
inadequacy will not have a material adverse effpcn the Company’s financial condition or resufteperations.

Financial Market Risk

The following discusses the Company’s exposurénantial market risk related to changes in interatts and foreign
currency exchange rates.

Outstanding Debt of the Company — The Company I267$million of outstanding revolver borrowings endts
Credit Facility at a weighted average interest aftd.50% as of February 2, 2013. A 100 basis padverse change
in interest rates would increase interest expenge$®3 million on the $27.7 million revolving créddebt.
The Company has $23.0 million of outstanding U.&nt loans at a weighted average interest rate 4#98.as of
February 2, 2013. A 100 basis point adverse changeerest rates would increase interest expegskO2 million on
the $23.0 million term loans.

Cash and Cash Equivalents — The Company’s casltasidequivalent balances are invested in finamesifuments
with original maturities of three months or lestieTCompany did not have significant exposure tanghmey interest
rates on invested cash at February 2, 2013. Asudtré¢he Company considers the interest rate maidle implicit in
these investments at February 2, 2013 to be low.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk — Most purchbgehe Company from foreign sources are denohist U.S.
dollars. To the extent that import transactions gegaominated in other currencies, it was the Colyigapractice to
hedge its risks through the purchase of forwareifpr exchange contracts when the purchases wereriatatAt
February 2, 2013, the Company did not have anydaiforeign exchange contracts outstanding.

Accounts Receivable — The Company’s accounts rabtsvbalance at February 2, 2013 is concentratedonof its

footwear wholesale businesses, which sell primaadlydepartment stores and independent retailessadhe United
States and its Lids Team Sports wholesale busiméssh sells primarily to colleges and high schattiletic teams and
their fan bases. Including both footwear wholesald Lids Team Sports wholesale business receivaiescustomers
each accounted for 7% and no other customer aceddot more than 6% of the Company’s total trad=eimables
balance as of February 2, 2013. The Company menik@ credit quality of its customers and establishn allowance
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for doubtful accounts based upon factors surroundiredit risk of specific customers, historicalnae and other
information, as well as customer specific facttisywever, credit risk is affected by conditions ocarrences within the
economy and the retail industry, as well as comgspecific information.

Summary — Based on the Company’s overall marketést rate and foreign currency rate exposurelaiugey 2, 2013,
the Company believes that the effect, if any, aismmably possible near-term changes in interess rat foreign
currency exchange rates on the Company’s consetidatancial position, results of operations orhcisws for Fiscal
2014 would not be material.

New Accounting Principles

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardar8d“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update R@l11-05,
an update to the FASB Codification Comprehensivaomme Topic, which amends the existing accountiagdards
related to the presentation of comprehensive incoma company’s financial statements. This updatguires that
all non-owner changes in shareholders’ equity lesgmted in either a single continuous statemegbofprehensive
income or in two separate but consecutive statesnémthe two statement approach, the first statémeuld present
total net earnings and its components followed eoutvely by a second statement that should preswmaf

other comprehensive income, the components of atheprehensive income and the total of comprehensisome.
The update does not change the items that museparted in other comprehensive income and mustppdiea

retrospectively for all periods presented in then&didated Financial Statements. The Company adadpis update
in the first quarter of Fiscal 2013 and has inctide separate statement of comprehensive incometsin i
Consolidated Financial Statements. The adoption il have a significant impact on the Company’sultssof
operations or financial position.

Inflation
The Company does not believe inflation has had temahimpact on sales or operating results dupegods covered in

this discussion.
ITEM 7A, QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The Company incorporates by reference the infoonatgarding market risk appearing under the hggthimancial
Market Risk” in Item 7, Management'’s Discussion &malysis of Financial Condition and Results of €tions.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
On Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Genesco Inc.

We have audited Genesco Inc. and Subsidiariestnatecontrol over financial reporting as of Febsu&; 2013, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integratedimework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@zations of the
Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Genesen &md Subsidiaries’ management is responsiblenfamtaining
effective internal control over financial reportjrand for its assessment of the effectivenesstefnal control over financial
reporting included in the accompanying ManagemeRé&port on Internal Control over Financial Repati®ur responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Company’s intecnatrol over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statglof the Public Company Accounting Oversightld@nited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoamathiit to obtain reasonable assurance about wheffeetive internal
control over financial reporting was maintainedaith material respects. Our audit included obtainarg understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assegdine risk that a material weakness exists, tegtimjevaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control basedh®e assessed risk, and performing such otheegures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe thaawadit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepaaat of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s intecaatrol over financial reporting includes thosalipies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records, timatreasonable detail, accurately and fairly wflthe transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) ipemreasonable assurance that transactions anelegcas necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordandth wenerally accepted accounting principles, ahdt treceipts and
expenditures of the company are being made onlgcitordance with authorizations of management arettdirs of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediegaprevention or timely detection of unauthorizazhjuisition, use or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness utufe periods are subject to the risk that contnaés/ become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures mheteriorate.

In our opinion, Genesco Inc. and Subsidiaries na@ed, in all material respects, effective interoahtrol over financial
reporting as of February 2, 2013, based on the C&r§€ia.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bog@dnited States),
the consolidated balance sheets of Genesco IncSabsidiaries as of February 2, 2013 and Januarg@®, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehemsoome, cash flows, and equity for each of thiedHiscal years in the
period ended February 2, 2013, and our report dapeidi 3, 2013, expressed an unqualified opinioeréwon.

St ¥ MLLP

Nashville, Tennessee

April 3, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm on Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Genesco Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Genesco Inc. and Subsidiaries (thenf@ay”) as of
February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012, and théedetzonsolidated statements of operations, compsie income, cash
flows and equity for each of the three fiscal ydarthe period ended February 2, 2013. Our audsts iacluded the financial
statement schedule listed in Item 15. These firsnsiatements and schedule are the responsibifitth® Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements and schedukedbas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaf8loUnited States).
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidit to obtain reasonable assurance about whétbefinancial
statements are free of material misstatement. Alit axcludes examining, on a test basis, evidenggarting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit axcludes assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbfieancial statement presentation. We believe tha audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedi® tonsolidated financial
position of Genesco Inc. and Subsidiaries at Fepr@a 2013 and January 28, 2012, and the conselidegsults of their
operations and their cash flows for each of thedHiscal years in the period ended February 23 2iblconformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. Alsopim opinion, the related financial statement sckeedwhen considered in
relation to the basic financial statements takem aghole, presents fairly, in all material respetite® information set forth
therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stalsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@united States),
the Company’s internal control over financial rapa as of February 2, 2013, based on criteriabdisteed in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Comemibf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway G@sion, and
our report dated April 3, 2013, expressed an uiifiglopinion thereon.

St ¥ MLLP

Nashville, Tennessee

April 3, 2013
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Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
In Thousands, except share amounts

As of Fiscal Year End

Assets 2013 2012
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 59,79 $ 53,79
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $6,82edruary 2,

2013 and $6,900 at January 28, 2012 48,21: 43,71
Inventories 505,34 435,11:
Deferred income taxes 23,72¢ 22,54:
Prepaids and other current assets 45,19: 40,15¢
Total current assets 682,27: 595,31.
Property and equipment:

Land 6,12¢ 6,11¢

Buildings and building equipment 20,39( 20,26(

Computer hardware, software and equipment 120,75 116,92(

Furniture and fixtures 148,90: 127,94

Construction in progress 8,70: 7,15¢

Improvements to leased property 318,37! 299,77

Property and equipment, at cost 623,25! 578,18!

Accumulated depreciation (381,58) (350,49)

Property and equipment, net 241,66! 227,68!
Deferred income taxes 26,44¢ 28,15:
Goodwill 273,82 259,75!
Trademarks, net of accumulated amortization of $3 &

February 2, 2013 and $2,246 at January 28, 2012 77,40¢ 78,27¢
Other intangibles, net of accumulated amortizatib§17,220 at

February 2, 2013 and $13,645 at January 28, 2012 11,59¢ 14,80¢
Other noncurrent assets 20,56¢ 33,26¢

Total Assets $ 1,333,78 $ 1,237,26
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Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
In Thousands, except share amounts

As of Fiscal Year End

Liabilities and Equity 2013 2012
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 118,35( $ 138,93t
Accrued employee compensation 55,07¢ 53,02¢
Accrued other taxes 27,00¢ 26,29:
Accrued income taxes 2,09¢ 16,39(
Current portion — long-term debt 5,67¢ 8,77
Other accrued liabilities 60,65¢ 52,78¢
Provision for discontinued operations 7,19: 8,25(
Total current liabilities 276,05: 304,46
Long-term debt 45,00° 31,93:
Pension liability 20,51« 22,20:
Deferred rent and other long-term liabilities 177,53 156,79
Provision for discontinued operations 4,15¢ 4,267
Total liabilities 523,27: 519,65!
Commitments and contingent liabilities
Equity

Non-redeemable preferred stock 3,92¢ 4,957

Common equity:
Common stock, $1 par value:
Authorized: 80,000,000 shares
Issued/Outstanding:
February 2, 2013 — 24,484,915/23,996,451

January 28, 2012 — 24,757,826/24,269,362 24,48t 24,75¢
Additional paid-in capital 170,36l 149,47
Retained earnings 655,92( 586,99
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (28,24)) (32,96¢)
Treasury shares, at cogBg§,464shares) (17,85) (17,85)

Total Genesco equity 808,59: 715,36:
Noncontrolling interest — non-redeemable 1,927 2,24¢
Total equity 810,511 717,611
Total Liabilities and Equity $ 1,333,78 $ 1,237,26

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oktlémnsolidated Financial Statements
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Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations
In Thousands, except per share amounts

Fiscal Yeal
201z 201z 2011

Net sales $ 2,604,817% 2,291,987$% 1,789,839
Cost of sales 1,306,470 1,144,281 891,764
Selling and administrative expenses 1,113,340 1,001,159 803,425
Asset impairments and other, net 17,037 2,677 8,567
Earnings from operations 167,970 143,870 86,083
Interest expense, net:

Interest expense 5,126 5,157 1,130

Interest income (95) (65) (8)
Total interest expense, net 5,031 5,092 1,122
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ 162,939 138,778 84,961
Income tax expense 51,941 55,794 30,414
Earnings from continuing operations 110,998 82,984 54,547
Provision for discontinued operations, net (462) (1,025) (1,339
Net Earnings $ 110,536$ 81,959% 53,211
Basic earnings per common share:

Continuing operations $ 470 $ 3.56 $ 2.34

Discontinued operations (0.02) (0.04) (0.09

Net earnings $ 4.68 $ 352 % 2.28
Diluted earnings per common shi

Continuing operations $ 462 % 348 % 2.29

Discontinued operations (0.02) (0.05) (0.09

Net earnings $ 460 $ 343 % 2.24

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oktl@ansolidated Financial Statements.
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Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
In Thousands, except as noted

Fiscal Year
2013 2012 2011
Net earnings $110,536% 81,959 % 53,211

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Gain (loss) on foreign currency forward contract,
net of tax of $0.0 million for 2013 and 2012
and $0.1 million for 2011 42 (35) 166
Pension liability adjustment net of tax of $2.4|moi
and $2.7 million for 2013 and 2011, respectivaliyd

net of tax benefit of $3.1 million for 2012 3,657 (4,670) 3,921
Postretirement liability adjustment net of tax
benefit of $0.1 million for each period (79) (109) (131)
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,105 (3,847) 543
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 4,725  (8,661) 4,499
Comprehensive Income $15,261$% 73,298$ 57,710

The accompanying Notes arengagral part of these Consolidated Financial Statem
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Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

In Thousands

Fiscal Yeal
201z 201: 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net earnings $ 110536% 81,959 % 53,211
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 63,697 53,737 47,738
Amortization of deferred note expense and debiodist 792 708 370
Deferred income taxes (17,831) 2,732 (11,869
Provision for losses on accounts receivable 1,325 2,004 1,081
Impairment of long-lived assets 1,396 1,119 7,155
Restricted stock and share-based compensation 10,508 7,660 8,006
Provision for discontinued operations 796 1,692 2,203
Tax benefit of stock options and restricted stadckreised (4,820) (4,744) (1,448
Other 1,327 1,005 1,328
Effect on cash from changes in working capital atier
assets and liabilities, before acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (5,821) 3,011 (12,085
Inventories (61,049) (42,324) (44,345
Prepaids and other current assets (4,524) 5,286 (167
Accounts payable (17,953) (1,201) 13,641
Other accrued liabilities (6,908) 9,046 41,597
Other assets and liabilities 51,739 23,270 (3,811
Net cash provided by operating activi 123,21( 144,96 102,60t
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditures (71,737) (49,456) (29,299
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (23,818) (92,985) (75,500
Proceeds from asset sales 81 27 11
Net cash used in investing activit (95,479 (142,41) (104,789
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments of capital leases (2) (22) (109
Payments of long-term debt (13,581) (25,321) (1,918
Borrowings under revolving credit facility 439,600 299,800 107,400
Payments on revolving credit facility (416,900) (294,800) (107,400
Tax benefit of stock options and restricted stodkreised 4,820 4,744 1,448
Shares repurchased (37,650) — (26,859
Change in overdraft balances (2,925) 2,931 4,160
Dividends paid on non-redeemable preferred stock (147) (193) (197
Exercise of stock options and issue shares - Erepl®tock
Purchase Plan 4,965 9,820 2,343
Other 4 (939) (2,915
Net cash used in financing activit (21,816 (3,980 (24,03¢)
Effect of foreign exchange rate fluctuations orh 85 (710 —
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivals 6,00t (2,144 (26,21¢)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 53,790 55,934 82,148
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peri $ 59,79 $ 53,79( $ 55,93
Supplemental Casl Flow Information:
Net cash paid for:
Interest $ 4,391 $ 4,789 $ 748
Income taxes 81,607 50,254 24,079

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetl@gmnsolidated Financial Statements.
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Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Equity

Accumulated

Total Non- Additional Other Non Controlling
Redeemable  Common Paid-In Retained Comprehensiv Treasury Interest Total
Preferred Stock Capital Earnings Loss Shares Non-Redeemable Equity
Balance January 30, 2010 $ 5220 $ 24,563 146,981 $ 452,210 $ (28,804) $ (17,857) $ — $ 582,313
Net earnings — — — 53,211 — — — 53,211
Other comprehensive loss — — — — 4,499 — — 4,499
Dividends paid on non-redeemable preferred stock — — — (197) — — — (197)
Exercise of stock options — 118 2,105 — — — — 2,223
Issue shares — Employee Stock Purchase Plan 4 116 — — — — 120
Employee and non-employee restricted stock — — 7,796 — — — — 7,796
Share-based compensation — — 210 — — — — 210
Restricted stock issuance — 423 (423) — — — — —
Restricted shares withheld for taxes — (82) (2,293) — — — — (2,375)
Tax benefit of stock options and restricted
stock exercise — — 1,342 — — — — 1,342

Shares repurchased — (864) (23,961) — — — — (24,825)
Other 37) 1 37 — — — — 1
Noncontrolling interest — loss — — — — — — 2,503 2,503
Balance January 29, 2011 5183 24,163 131,910 505,224 (24,305) (17,85) 2,503 626,821
Net earnings — — — 81,959 — — — 81,959
Other comprehensive loss — — — — (8,661) — — (8,661)
Dividends paid on non-redeemable preferred stock — — — (193) — — — (193)
Exercise of stock options — 390 9,297 — — — — 9,687
Issue shares — Employee Stock Purchase Plan 3 130 — — — — 133
Employee and non-employee restricted stock — — 7,659 — — — — 7,659
Share-based compensation — — 1 — — — — 1
Restricted stock issuance — 304 (304) — — — — —
Restricted shares withheld for taxes — (93) (4,034) — — — — (4,127)
Tax benefit of stock options and

restricted stock exercises — — 4,585 — — — — 4,585
Other (226) 9) 235 — — — — —
Noncontrolling interest — loss — — — — — — (254) (254)
Balance January 28, 2012 4,957 24,758 149,479 586,990 (32,966) (17,85 2,249 717,610
Net earnings — — — 110,536 — — — 110,536
Other comprehensive income — — — — 4,725 — — 4,725
Dividends paid on non-redeemable preferred stock — — — (147) — — — (147)
Exercise of stock options — 224 4,584 — — — — 4,808
Issue shares - Employee Stock Purchase Plan 2 155 — — — — 157
Employee and non-employee restricted stock — — 10,508 — — — — 10,508
Restricted stock issuance — 194 (194) — — — — —
Restricted shares withheld for taxes — (76) — (4,455) — — — (4,531)
Tax benefit of stock options and

restricted stock exercised — — 4,820 — — — — 4,820
Shares repurchased — (646) — (37,004) — — — (37,650)
Other (1,033) 29 1,008 — — — — 4
Noncontrolling interest — loss — — — — — — (322) (322)
Balance February 2, 2013 $ 3924 $ 24,485 170,360 $ 655,920 $ (28,241) $ (17,857) $ 1,927 $ 810,518

The accompanying Notes are an integral part oetl@gmnsolidated Financial Statements.
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Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

The Company’s business includes the design andisgumarketing and distribution of footwear
and accessories through retail stores in the WR8erto Rico and Canada primarily under the
Journeys, Journeys Kidz, Shi by Journeys, Undergiooy Journeys and Johnston & Murphy
banners and under the Schuh banner in the Unitedydéim and the Republic of Ireland;
through e-commerce websites including journeys.cgourneyskidz.com, shibyjourneys.com,
undergroundbyjourneys.com, schuh.co.uk and johnstiophy.com and catalogs, and at wholesale,
primarily under the Company’s Johnston & Murphyratathe licensed Dockers brand and other
brands that the Company licenses for men’s footw@dre Company’s business also includes Lids
Sports Group, which operates headwear and accestaoeg in the U.S. and Canada primarily under
the Lids, Hat World and Hat Shack banners; the Lidsker Room business, consisting of sports-
oriented fan shops featuring a broad array of Beenmerchandise such as apparel, hats and
accessories, sports decor and novelty productsatipg primarily under the Lids Locker Room,
Sports Fan-Attic and Sports Avenue banners; cedaiommerce operations and an athletic team
dealer business operating as Lids Team Sportsudimg both the footwear businesses and the Lids
Sports Group business, at February 2, 2013, thep@oyoperated 2,459 retail stores in the U.S.,
Puerto Rico, Canada, the United Kingdom and theuBlgpof Ireland.

During Fiscal 2013, the Company operated five rgibe business segments (not including
corporate): (i) Journeys Group, comprised of thaerdeys, Journeys Kidz, Shi by Journeys and
Underground by Journeys retail footwear chainsalogt and e-commerce operations; (ii) Schuh
Group, acquired in June 2011, comprised of the B®atmtail footwear chain and e-commerce
operations; (iii) Lids Sports Group, comprised aesdatibed in the preceding paragraph;
(iv) Johnston & Murphy Group, comprised of JohnsfoMurphy retail operations, e-commerce
and catalog operations and wholesale distributimat, (v) Licensed Brands, comprised of DocRers
Footwear, sourced and marketed under a license fremi Strauss & Company; SureGftip

Footwear, occupational footwear primarily sold dihgto consumers; and other footwear brands.

Principles of Consolidation
All subsidiaries are consolidated in the consoédatfinancial statements. All significant
intercompany transactions and accounts have beamated.

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year ends on the Saturdayestds January 31. As a result, Fiscal 2013 was a
53-week year with 371 days and each of Fiscal 20fPFiscal 2011 was a 52-week year with 364

days. Fiscal 2013 ended on February 2, 2013, FA@h? ended on January 28, 2012 and Fiscal
2011 ended on January 29, 201l.

Financial Statement Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to confpmor years’ data to the current year
presentation with respect to segments. The Compdegrated the Underground Station operations
into the Journeys Group in the first quarter ofcki2013. The former Underground Station stores
are a subset of Journeys Group under the brandetgnound by Journeys.” Journeys Group
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Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Contined

segment net sales, operating income, total assefgreciation and amortization and capital
expenditures have been restated by $92.4 milli¢d.3% million, $25.2 million, $1.8 million and
$0.2 million, respectively, for Fiscal 2012 and $84.4 million, $(3.0) million, $27.8 million, $2.2
million and $1.3 million, respectively, for FiscaD11 as a result of combining Underground Station
Group with the Journeys Group segment to conforouteent year presentation (See Note 14).

Certain shipping and warehouse expenses have lestassed from selling and administrative
expenses to cost of sales in Fiscal 2012 and 20tbriform to the current year presentation. The
reclass to cost of sales from selling and admatis® expense for Fiscal 2012 and 2011 was $6.3
million and $3.8 million, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeynmwith U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimatgsssumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgitgassets and liabilities at the date of the firan
statements and the reported amounts of revenuesxgmhses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Significant areas requiring management estimatggdyments include the following key financial
areas:

Inventory Valuation
The Company values its inventories at the lowerast or market.

In its footwear wholesale operations, its Schuhupreegment and its Lids Sports Group wholesale
operations, except for the Anaconda Sports whaedi@ision, cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (“FIFO”) method. Market value is deterrah using a system of analysis which evaluates
inventory at the stock number level based on facsoich as inventory turn, average selling price,
inventory level, and selling prices reflected ituie orders. The Company provides reserves when
the inventory has not been marked down to markieievaased on current selling prices or when the
inventory is not turning and is not expected tm tair levels satisfactory to the Company.

The Lids Sports Group retail segment and its AndaoBports wholesale division employ the
moving average cost method for valuing inventoaed apply freight using an allocation method.
The Company provides a valuation allowance for stoewing inventory based on negative margins
and estimated shrink based on historical experiandespecific analysis, where appropriate.

In its retail operations, other than the Schuh @rand Lids Sports Group retail segments, the
Company employs the retail inventory method, apglyaverage cost-to-retail ratios to the retail
value of inventories. Under the retail inventorythwoal, valuing inventory at the lower of cost or
market is achieved as markdowns are taken or atcasea reduction of the retail value of
inventories.
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Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Contined

Inherent in the retail inventory method are sulyectjudgments and estimates, including
merchandise mark-on, markups, markdowns, and sigak These judgments and estimates,
coupled with the fact that the retail inventory heat is an averaging process, could produce a range
of cost figures. To reduce the risk of inaccurang to ensure consistent presentation, the Company
employs the retail inventory method in multiple slalsses of inventory with similar gross margins,
and analyzes markdown requirements at the stockauiavel based on factors such as inventory
turn, average selling price, and inventory ageadidition, the Company accrues markdowns as
necessary. These additional markdown accrualsctedié of the above factors as well as current
agreements to return products to vendors and veagleements to provide markdown support. In
addition to markdown provisions, the Company mamstgrovisions for shrinkage and damaged
goods based on historical rates.

Inherent in the analysis of both wholesale andilretaentory valuation are subjective judgments
about current market conditions, fashion trends, averall economic conditions. Failure to make
appropriate conclusions regarding these factors msyit in an overstatement or understatement of
inventory value.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically assesses the reliabilitigsolong-lived assets, other than goodwill, and
evaluates such assets for impairment whenever £eerdhanges in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoveratdset impairment is determined to exist if
estimated future cash flows, undiscounted and withaterest charges, are less than the carrying
amount. Inherent in the analysis of impairment subjective judgments about future cash flows.
Failure to make appropriate conclusions regardmege judgments may result in an overstatement
or understatement of the value of long-lived asss#g also Notes 3 and 5.

The goodwill impairment test involves performingqgaalitative assessment, on a reporting unit
level, based on current circumstances. If the tesaflthe qualitative assessment indicate that it i
more likely than not that the fair value of a rdpuay unit is greater than its carrying amount, atw
step impairment test will not be performed. Howevkthe results of the qualitative assessment
indicate that it is more likely than not that ttarfvalue of a reporting unit is less than its gig
amount, and then a two-step impairment test isopmidd. Alternatively, the Company may elect to
bypass the qualitative assessment and proceedtlgitec the two-step impairment test, on a
reporting unit level. The first step is a companisof the fair value and carrying value of the
business unit with which the goodwill is associatéde Company estimates fair value using the
best information available, and computes the faiu& derived by an income approach utilizing
discounted cash flow projections. The income apgroases a projection of a reporting unit's
estimated operating results and cash flows thatigsounted using a weighted-average cost of
capital that reflects current market conditions.kéy assumption in the Company’s fair value
estimate is the weighted average cost of capitbted for discounting its cash flow projections in
its income approach. The Company believes the itatsed in its latest annual test, which was
completed in the fourth quarter, was consistenhiite risks inherent in its business and with
industry discount rates. The projection uses mamagés best estimates of economic and market
conditions over the projected period including growates in sales, costs, estimates of future
expected changes in operating margins and casimeéitpess.
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Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Contined

Other significant estimates and assumptions inctadainal value growth rates, future estimates of
capital expenditures and changes in future workaqgtal requirements.

If the carrying value of the reporting unit is hegghthan its fair value, there is an indication that
impairment may exist and the second step must erpeed to measure the amount of impairment
loss. The amount of impairment is determined by ganmg the implied fair value of reporting unit
goodwill to the carrying value of the goodwill inet same manner as if the reporting unit was being
acquired in a business combination. Specificallg, Company would allocate the fair value to all of
the assets and liabilities of the reporting umgluding any unrecognized intangible assets, in a
hypothetical analysis that would calculate the ietplfair value of goodwill. If the implied fair
value of goodwill is less than the recorded gookwile Company would record an impairment
charge for the difference.

Environmental and Other Contingencies

The Company is subject to certain loss contingen@kated to environmental proceedings and other
legal matters. The Company has made pretax acdaratertain of these contingencies, including
approximately $0.8 million in Fiscal 2013, $1.8 limih in Fiscal 2012 and $2.9 million in Fiscal
2011. These charges are included in provision fscahtinued operations, net in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations because they relate toefofacilities operated by the Company. The
Company monitors these matters on an ongoing basison a quarterly basis, management reviews
the Company’s reserves and accruals, adjustinggomg as management deems necessary in view
of changes in available information. Changes immegtes of liability are reported in the periods
when they occur. Consequently, management beliéagsts reserve in relation to each proceeding
is a best estimate of probable loss connectedetpithiceeding, or in cases in which no best estimate
is possible, the minimum amount in the range oirested losses, based upon its analysis of the
facts and circumstances as of the close of the mexsint fiscal quarter. However, because of
uncertainties and risks inherent in litigation gatlg and in environmental proceedings in
particular, there can be no assurance that futeveldpments will not require additional reserves,
that some or all reserves will be adequate orttitamounts of any such additional reserves or any
such inadequacy will not have a material advergecetipon the Company’s financial condition,
cash flows, or results of operations. See also \Natand 8.

Revenue Recognition

Retail sales are recorded at the point of saleaaedet of estimated returns and exclude sales and
value added taxes. Catalog and internet saleseamded at estimated time of delivery to the
customer and are net of estimated returns and @xcdales and value added taxes. Wholesale
revenue is recorded net of estimated returns alwvahces for markdowns, damages and
miscellaneous claims when the related goods haga bRipped and legal title has passed to the
customer. Shipping and handling costs chargedistomers are included in net sales. Estimated
returns are based on historical returns and clafogial amounts of markdowns have not differed
materially from estimates. Actual returns and ckimany future period may differ from historical
experience.
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Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing Consolidatetitial Statements, the Company is required to
estimate its income taxes in each of the tax jurismhs in which it operates. This process invslve
estimating actual current tax obligations togethwth assessing temporary differences resulting
from differing treatment of certain items for tardaaccounting purposes, such as depreciation of
property and equipment and valuation of inventori€sese temporary differences result in deferred
tax assets and liabilities, which are included imitthe Consolidated Balance Sheets. The Company
then assesses the likelihood that its deferredsarts will be recovered from future taxable income
Actual results could differ from this assessmemidéquate taxable income is not generated in future
periods. To the extent the Company believes tlaivery of an asset is at risk, valuation allowances
are established. To the extent valuation allowararesestablished or increased in a period, the
Company includes an expense within the tax pronisio the Consolidated Statements of
Operations. These deferred tax valuation allowantesy be released in future years when
management considers that it is more likely thanthat some portion or all of the deferred tax
assets will be realized. In making such a detertiing management will need to periodically
evaluate whether or not all available evidencehsas future taxable income and reversal of
temporary differences, tax planning strategies, @oeént results of operations, provides sufficient
positive evidence to offset any potential negaévielence that may exist at such time. In the event
the deferred tax valuation allowance is releaseel, Gompany would record an income tax benefit
for the portion or all of the deferred tax valuatiallowance released. At February 2, 2013, the
Company had a deferred tax valuation allowance3d #illion.

Income tax reserves for uncertain tax positionsdatermined using the methodology required by
the Income Tax Topic of the Accounting Standarddifation (“Codification”). This methodology
requires companies to assess each income tax goodéiken using a two step process. A
determination is first made as to whether it is enldeely than not that the position will be sustdn
based upon the technical merits, upon examinatiothe taxing authorities. If the tax position is
expected to meet the more likely than not criteha, benefit recorded for the tax position equiags t
largest amount that is greater than 50% likely & rbalized upon ultimate settlement of the
respective tax position. Uncertain tax positiorguree determinations and estimated liabilities ¢o b
made based on provisions of the tax law, which tegubject to change or varying interpretation.
If the Company’s determinations and estimates prtovbe inaccurate, the resulting adjustments
could be material to its future financial results.

The Company recorded an effective income tax ra@&l®% for Fiscal 2013 compared to 40.2%
for 2012. This year’s tax rate is lower primarilyedto the reversal of charges previously recorded
related to uncertain tax positions due to the atjoin of the applicable statutes of limitations @and
settlement with a state tax authority more favagabln anticipated related to other uncertain tax
positions. The Company recorded an effective fddam@me tax rate of 40.2% for Fiscal 2012
compared to 35.8% for Fiscal 2011. Fiscal 2012ghér effective tax rate of 40.2% reflects
transaction costs and deferred purchase priceetetatthe Schuh acquisition, which are considered
permanent differences. Fiscal 2011’s lower effectax rate of 35.8% reflects the net reduction of
the Company'’s liability for uncertain tax positionfs$1.3 million in Fiscal 2011.
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Postretirement Benefits Plan Accounting

Full-time employees who had at least 1,000 hourssatice in calendar year 2004, except
employees in the Lids Sports Group and Schuh Geagments, are covered by a defined benefit
pension plan. The Company froze the defined bepefision plan effective January 1, 2005. The
Company also provides certain former employees lntited medical and life insurance benefits.
The Company funds at least the minimum amount reduby the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act.

As required by the Compensation — Retirement Bené&fpic of the Codification, the Company is
required to recognize the overfunded or underfunstatls of postretirement benefit plans as an
asset or liability in their Consolidated Balancee&ts and to recognize changes in that funded status
in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net ¢finethe year in which the changes occur.

The Company accounts for the defined benefit penplans using the Compensation-Retirement
Benefits Topic of the Codification. As permittedden this topic, pension expense is recognized on
an accrual basis over employees’ approximate sepgciods. The calculation of pension expense
and the corresponding liability requires the usea afumber of critical assumptions, including the

expected long-term rate of return on plan assetstha assumed discount rate, as well as the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Changethese assumptions can result in different

expense and liability amounts, and future actupkeence can differ from these assumptions.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company has share-based compensation planengpeertain members of management and
non-employee directors. The Company recognizes easgiion expense for share-based payments
based on the fair value of the awards as requiyeitido Compensation — Stock Compensation Topic
of the Codification. For Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2@Gstare-based compensation expense was $0, less
than $1,000 and $0.2 million, respectively. The @any has not issued any new stock option
awards since the first quarter of Fiscal 2008. Fical 2013, 2012 and 2011, restricted stock
expense was $10.5 million, $7.7 million, and $7i8iom, respectively. The fair value of employee-
restricted stock is determined based on the clgsiigg of the Company’s stock on the date of the
grant. The benefits of tax deductions in excegeadgnized compensation expense are reported as a
financing cash flow.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Included in cash and cash equivalents at Februya2923 and January 28, 2012 are cash equivalents
of $0.2 million for each year. Cash equivalents laighly liquid financial instruments having an
original maturity of three months or less. At Febogu2, 2013, substantially all of the Company’s
domestic cash was invested in deposit accountEE-fhsured banks. The majority of payments
due from banks for domestic customer credit caadgactions process within 24 - 48 hours and are
accordingly classified as cash and cash equivalents
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At February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012, outstgndnecks drawn on zero-balance accounts at
certain domestic banks exceeded book cash balahtkesse banks by approximately $36.1 million
and $39.0 million, respectively. These amountsreskided in accounts payable.

Concentration of Credit Risk and Allowances on Acods Receivable

The Company’s footwear wholesale businesses seathapity to independent retailers and
department stores across the United States. Rébesvaarising from these sales are not
collateralized. Customer credit risk is affecteddoynditions or occurrences within the economy and
the retail industry as well as by customer spedéctors. The Company’s Lids Team Sports
wholesale business sells primarily to colleges higth school athletic teams and their fan bases.
Including both footwear wholesale and Lids Team r&pavholesale business receivables, two
customers each accounted for 7% of the Compantés tade receivables balance, while no other
customer accounted for more than 6% of the Compatotal trade receivables balance as of
February 2, 2013.

The Company establishes an allowance for doubtfabants based upon factors surrounding the
credit risk of specific customers, historical trerahd other information, as well as customer sjecif
factors. The Company also establishes allowarmresales returns, customer deductions and co-op
advertising based on specific circumstances, hestioirends and projected probable outcomes.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost anecaped or amortized over the estimated useful
life of related assets. Depreciation and amortiratexpense are computed principally by the
straight-line method over the following estimatesgful lives:

Buildings and building equipme 20-45 year:
Computer hardware, software and equipr 3-10 year
Furniture and fixture 10 year
Leases

Leasehold improvements and properties under calgteles are amortized on the straight-line
method over the shorter of their useful lives airtinelated lease terms and the charge to earisngs
included in selling and administrative expensetheConsolidated Statements of Operations.

Certain leases include rent increases during thilitease term. For these leases, the Company
recognizes the related rental expense on a strmghbasis over the term of the lease (which
includes any rent holidays and the pre-openingopedf construction, renovation, fixturing and
merchandise placement) and records the differeateden the amounts charged to operations and
amounts paid as deferred rent.

The Company occasionally receives reimbursemeois fandlords to be used towards construction

of the store the Company intends to lease. Leadelmgrovements are recorded at their gross costs
including items reimbursed by landlords. The reinslbments are amortized as a reduction of rent
expense over the initial lease term.
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Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Under the provisions of the Intangibles — Goodwitld Other Topic of the Codification, goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite lives are awiortized, but are tested at least annually, durin
the fourth quarter, for impairment. The Company widate the tests between annual tests if events
or circumstances occur that would more likely thast reduce the fair value of the business
unit with which the goodwill is associated below itarrying amount. It is also required that
intangible assets with finite lives be amortize@otheir respective lives to their estimated residu
values, and reviewed for impairment in accordaniti the Property, Plant and Equipment Topic of
the Codification.

Intangible assets of the Company with indefiniteed are primarily goodwill and identifiable
trademarks, net of amortization, acquired in cotinaavith the acquisition of Schuh Group Ltd. in
June 2011 and Hat World Corporation in April 2004e Consolidated Balance Sheets include
goodwill of $172.3 million for the Lids Sports Gnou$100.7 million for the Schuh Group and $0.8
million for Licensed Brands at February 2, 2013 &i%9.1 million for the Lids Sports Group,
$99.9 million for the Schuh Group and $0.8 milli@n Licensed Brands at January 28, 2012. The
Company tests for impairment of intangible assetk an indefinite life, relying on a number of
factors including operating results, business plasjected future cash flows and observable
market data. The impairment test for identifiab#seds not subject to amortization consists of a
comparison of the fair value of the intangible asgi¢gh its carrying amount. The Company has not
recorded an impairment charge for intangible assets

In connection with acquisitions, the Company resogbodwill on its Consolidated Financial
Statements. This asset is not amortized but isestibp an impairment test at least annually, based
on projected future cash flows from the acquireditess discounted at a rate commensurate with
the risk the Company considers to be inherentsicutrent business model. The Company performs
the impairment test annually as of the close offigsal year, or more frequently if events or
circumstances indicate that the value of the anggtt be impaired.

As a result of the various acquisitions comprising Lids Team Sports team dealer business, the
Company carries goodwill at a value of $14.0 million its Consolidated Balance Sheets related to
such acquisitions. The Company found that the teduls annual impairment test, which valued the
business at approximately $2.8 million in exces#toftarrying value, indicated no impairment at
that time. The Company may determine in future immpant tests that some or all of the carrying
value of the goodwill may not be recoverable. Sachinding would require a write-off of the
amount of the carrying value that is impaired, whigould reduce the Company’s profitability in
the period of the impairment charge. Holding aHestassumptions constant as of the measurement
date, the Company noted that an increase in thghtesl average cost of capital of 100 basis points
would reduce the fair value of the Lids Team Spdusiness by $7.4 million. Furthermore, the
Company noted that a decrease in projected anauahue growth by one percent would reduce the
fair value of the Lids Team Sports business by $0illon. However, if other assumptions do not
remain constant, the fair value of the Lids Teamar&pbusiness may decrease by a greater amount.
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Identifiable intangible assets of the Company wittite lives are trademarks, customer lists, in-
place leases, non-compete agreements and a vemtaaiat. They are subject to amortization based
upon their estimated useful lives. Finite-livedaimgible assets are evaluated for impairment using a
process similar to that used to evaluate othemideflived long-lived assets, a comparison of the
fair value of the intangible asset with its cargyi@mount. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the carrying value exceeds theviaue of the asset.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Comjsafirtyancial instruments at February 2, 2013 and
January 28, 2012 are:

February 2, Januar 28,
In thousands 201z 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
U.S. RevolveBorrowings 27,70( 27,74: 3 5,00( 5,021
UK Term Loan 22,98 22,98 35,70« 35,38

Debt fair values were determined using a discouctsh flow analysis based on current market
interest rates for similar types of financial instrents and would be classified in Level 2 as défine
in Note 5.

Carrying amounts reported on the Consolidated BalaBheets for cash, cash equivalents,
receivables and accounts payable approximate faluevdue to the short-term maturity of
these instruments.

Cost of Sales

For the Company’s retail operations, the cost déssancludes actual product cost, the cost of
transportation to the Company’s warehouses fronplgens and the cost of transportation from the
Company’s warehouses to the stores. Additionaltlg, dost of its distribution facilities allocated to

its retail operations is included in cost of sales.

For the Company’s wholesale operations, the cosatd#s includes the actual product cost and the
cost of transportation to the Company’s warehotfrees suppliers.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses include allrajieg costs of the Company excluding (i) those
related to the transportation of products from supplier to the warehouse, (ii) for its retail
operations, those related to the transportatioproflucts from the warehouse to the store and (iii)
costs of its distribution facilities which are allded to its retail operations. Wholesale and
unallocated retail costs of distribution are in@ddn selling and administrative expenses in the
amounts of $8.2 million, $9.2 million and $5.9 loih for Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

57



Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Contined

Gift Cards

The Company has a gift card program that begaalandar 1999 for its Lids Sports operations and
calendar 2000 for its footwear operations. The gpaftds issued to date do not expire. As such, the
Company recognizes income when: (i) the gift casdradeemed by the customer; or (ii) the
likelihood of the gift card being redeemed by thistomer for the purchase of goods in the future is
remote and there are no related escheat lawsrgdfty as “breakage”). The gift card breakage rate
is based upon historical redemption patterns aodnie is recognized for unredeemed gift cards in
proportion to those historical redemption patterns.

Gift card breakage is recognized in revenues eadb@ Gift card breakage recognized as revenue
was $0.7 million, $0.6 million and $0.7 million fétiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The
Consolidated Balance Sheets include an accruetlitijaior gift cards of $13.1 million and $10.4
million at February 2, 2013 and January 28, 20&&2pectively.

Buying, Merchandising and Occupancy Costs

The Company records buying, merchandising and @unp costs in selling and administrative
expense. Because the Company does not include ¢bhstein cost of sales, the Company’s gross
margin may not be comparable to other retailers itftdude these costs in the calculation of gross
margin.

Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs related to inventongipased from suppliers are included in the cost of
inventory and are charged to cost of sales in én®@ that the inventory is sold. All other shipgi
and handling costs are charged to cost of saldkanperiod incurred except for wholesale and
unallocated retail costs of distribution, which areluded in selling and administrative expenses.

Preopening Costs
Costs associated with the opening of new storesx@ensed as incurred, and are included in selling
and administrative expenses on the accompanyingdlidated Statements of Operations.

Store Closings and Exit Costs

From time to time, the Company makes strategicsilmts to close stores or exit locations or
activities. If stores or operating activities todesed or exited constitute components, as defayed
the Property, Plant and Equipment Topic of the @cation, and will not result in a migration of
customers and cash flows, these closures will besidered discontinued operations when the
related assets meet the criteria to be classiededd for sale, or at the cease-use date, whicheve
occurs first. The results of operations of disamntid operations are presented retroactively, net of
tax, as a separate component on the Consolidatéenstnts of Operations, if material individually
or cumulatively. In Fiscal 2013, no store closimgseting the discontinued operations criteria have
been material individually or cumulatively.
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Assets related to planned store closures or otkieaetivities are reflected as assets held foe sal
and recorded at the lower of carrying value or Yailue less costs to sell when the required caiteri
as defined by the Property, Plant and EquipmenticTajd the Codification, are satisfied.

Depreciation ceases on the date that the heldafercsiteria are met.

Assets related to planned store closures or otkieraetivities that do not meet the criteria to be
classified as held for sale are evaluated for immpat in accordance with the Company’s normal
impairment policy, but with consideration givenrevised estimates of future cash flows. In any
event, the remaining depreciable useful lives astuated and adjusted as necessary.

Exit costs related to anticipated lease terminatiosts, severance benefits and other expected
charges are accrued for and recognized in accoedaitb the Exit or Disposal Cost Obligations
Topic of the Codification.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are predominantly expensed asriad. Advertising costs were $48.3 million,
$42.5 million and $35.1 million for Fiscal 2013, 120 and 2011, respectively. Direct response
advertising costs for catalogs are capitalizedcooedance with the Other Assets and Deferred Costs
Topic for Capitalized Advertising Costs of the Cladition. Such costs are amortized over the
estimated future period as revenues are realioad $uch advertising, not to exceed six months.

The Consolidated Balance Sheets include prepaatsafs direct response advertising costs of $1.4
million and $1.1 million at February 2, 2013 anduJary 28, 2012.

Consideration to Resellers

The Company does not have any written buy-down narag with retailers, but the Company has
provided certain retailers with markdown allowanf@sobsolete and slow moving products that are
in the retailer's inventory. The Company estimatiesse allowances and provides for them as
reductions to revenues at the time revenues amrded. Markdowns are negotiated with retailers
and changes are made to the estimates as agreesmemesached. Actual amounts for markdowns
have not differed materially from estimates.

Cooperative Advertising

Cooperative advertising funds are made availablenést of the Company’s wholesale footwear
customers. In order for retailers to receive reisbment under such programs, the retailer must
meet specified advertising guidelines and provigprapriate documentation of expenses to be
reimbursed. The Company’s cooperative advertisgigements require that wholesale customers
present documentation or other evidence of speatiieertisements or display materials used for the
Company’s products by submitting the actual prohteatisements presented in catalogs, newspaper
inserts or other advertising circulars, or by péting physical inspection of displays. Additionally
the Company’s cooperative advertising agreemengsiine@ that the amount of reimbursement
requested for such advertising or materials be atigg by invoices or other evidence of the actual
costs incurred by the retailer.
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The Company accounts for these cooperative adweytisosts as selling and administrative
expenses, in accordance with the Revenue Recagitpic for Customer Payments and Incentives
of the Codification.

Cooperative advertising costs recognized in seling administrative expenses were $3.5 million,
$3.3 million and $3.2 million for Fiscal 2013, 20ahd 2011, respectively. During Fiscal 2013,
2012 and 2011, the Company’s cooperative advegti®imbursements paid did not exceed the fair
value of the benefits received under those agremmen

Vendor Allowances

From time to time, the Company negotiates allowarfcem its vendors for markdowns taken or
expected to be taken. These markdowns are typicaifjotiated on specific merchandise and for
specific amounts. These specific allowances aregrzed as a reduction in cost of sales in the
period in which the markdowns are taken. MarkdoWowmances not attached to specific inventory
on hand or already sold are applied to concurrefitare purchases from each respective vendor.

The Company receives support from some of its vendlo the form of reimbursements for
cooperative advertising and catalog costs for gumd¢h and promotion of certain products. The
reimbursements are agreed upon with vendors amdsemt specific, incremental, identifiable costs
incurred by the Company in selling the vendor'scdpe products. Such costs and the related
reimbursements are accumulated and monitored omdinidual vendor basis, pursuant to the
respective cooperative advertising agreements wiémdors. Such cooperative advertising
reimbursements are recorded as a reduction oihgednd administrative expenses in the same
period in which the associated expense is incurfethe amount of cash consideration received
exceeds the costs being reimbursed, such excessmamould be recorded as a reduction of cost of
sales.

Vendor reimbursements of cooperative advertisingiscoecognized as a reduction of selling and
administrative expenses were $3.8 million, $3.0iamland $3.1 million for Fiscal 2013, 2012 and
2011, respectively. During Fiscal 2013, 2012 and12Ghe Company’s cooperative advertising
reimbursements received were not in excess ofdles incurred.

Environmental Costs

Environmental expenditures relating to current apens are expensed or capitalized as appropriate.
Expenditures relating to an existing condition ealdy past operations, and which do not
contribute to current or future revenue generatianmg expensed. Liabilities are recorded when
environmental assessments and/or remedial effoetpeobable and the costs can be reasonably
estimated and are evaluated independently of atyeficlaims for recovery. Generally, the timing
of these accruals coincides with completion ofasiigility study or the Company’s commitment to a
formal plan of action. Costs of future expenditui@senvironmental remediation obligations are not
discounted to their present value.
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Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution andnsputed by dividing income available to common

shareholders by the weighted average number of @ymsiares outstanding for the period. Diluted
earnings per share reflect the potential dilutioat tould occur if securities to issue common stock
were exercised or converted to common stock (see ND.

Other Comprehensive Income

The Comprehensive Income Topic of the Codificatiequires, among other things, the Company’s
pension liability adjustment, postretirement ligliladjustment, unrealized gains or losses on
foreign currency forward contracts and foreign enay translation adjustments to be included in
other comprehensive income net of tax. Accumulateér comprehensive loss at February 2, 2013
consisted of $26.0 million of cumulative pensioabiiity adjustment, net of tax, a cumulative post
retirement liability adjustment of $0.3 million, hef tax, and a cumulative foreign currency
translation adjustment of $1.9 million.

Business Segments

The Segment Reporting Topic of the Codificationuiegs that companies disclose “operating
segments” based on the way management disaggretgeSompany’s operations for making
internal operating decisions (see Note 14).

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Derivatives and Hedging Topic of the Codifioatirequires an entity to recognize all
derivatives as either assets or liabilities in @ensolidated Balance Sheet and to measure those
instruments at fair value. Under certain conditjamslerivative may be specifically designated as a
fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge. The accogrfor changes in the fair value of a derivative
are recorded each period in current earnings ather comprehensive income depending on the
intended use of the derivative and the resultingjg@tion. In prior periods, the Company entered
into a small amount of foreign currency forward lexiege contracts in order to reduce exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations in @mtion with inventory purchase commitments for
its Johnston & Murphy Group.

There were no such contracts outstanding at Fepr2ia?013 or January 28, 2012. For the year
ended February 2, 2013, the Company recorded agalized gain on foreign currency forward
contracts of less than $0.1 million in accumulatdéder comprehensive loss, before taxes. The
Company monitors the credit quality of the majoternational, national and regional financial
institutions with which it enters into such contsac
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New Accounting Principles

In June 2011, FASB issued Accounting Standards tépbti®. 2011-05, an update to the FASB
Codification Comprehensive Income Topic, which adgethe existing accounting standards related
to the presentation of comprehensive income in mpamy’s financial statements. This update
requires that all non-owner changes in sharehdldegsity be presented in either a single
continuous statement of comprehensive income twanseparate but consecutive statements. In the
two statement approach, the first statement wouddgnt total net earnings and its components
followed consecutively by a second statement thatilsl present total other comprehensive income,
the components of other comprehensive income antbtal of comprehensive income. The update
does not change the items that must be reportether comprehensive income and must be applied
retrospectively for all periods presented in then&idated Financial Statements. The Company
adopted this update in the first quarter of Fis2@l3 and has included a separate statement of
comprehensive income in its Consolidated Finan&i@tements. The adoption did not have a
significant impact on the Company’s results of apiens or financial position.

Note 2
Acquisitions and Intangible Assets

Schuh Acquisition

On June 23, 2011, the Company, through its newiyméa, wholly-owned subsidiary Genesco
(UK) Limited (“Genesco UK”), completed the acquisit of all the outstanding shares of Schuh
Group Ltd. (“Schuh”) for a total purchase priceapiproximately £100.0 million, less £29.5 million
outstanding under existing Schuh credit facilitiegg)ich remain in place, less a £1.9 million
working capital adjustment and plus £6.2 milliort oash acquired, with £5.0 million withheld and
payable in June 2013. The Company financed theisitiqn with borrowings under its existing
credit facility and the balance from cash on hahde purchase agreement also provides for
deferred purchase price payments totaling £25anillpayable £15 million and £10 million on the
third and fourth anniversaries of the closing, extively, subject to the payees’ not having
terminated their employment with Schuh under cerigecified circumstances. This amount will
be recorded as compensation expense and not répastea component of the cost of the
acquisition.

Headquartered in Scotland, Schuh is a specialyieef casual and athletic footwear sold through
79 retail stores in the United Kingdom and the Raipwof Ireland and 13 concessions in Republic

apparel stores as of February 2, 2013. The Compamypleted the acquisition in order to enhance
its strategic development and prospects for graavith provide the Company with an established
retail presence in the United Kingdom and improweiight into global fashion trends. The results

of Schuh’s operations for Fiscal 2013 include ré¢s of $370.5 million and operating earnings of
$7.9 million. The results of Schuh’s operations fioe fiscal year from the date of acquisition

through January 28, 2012, including net sales d2&2 million and operating earnings of $11.7

million, have been included in the Company’s Conksted Financial Statements for the fiscal year
ended January 28, 2012. During the fiscal year @rddmuary 28, 2012, the Company expensed
$7.4 million in costs related to the acquisitiohe$e costs were recorded as selling and
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administrative expenses on the Consolidated Stateroé Operations. During Fiscal 2013,
compensation expense related to the Schuh acquisiteferred purchase price obligation was
$12.1 million, compared to $7.2 million in Fiscd12. This expense is included in the operating
earnings for the Schuh Group segment.

The acquisition has been accounted for using tihehpge method in accordance with the Business
Combinations Topic of the Codification. Accordingtize total purchase price has been allocated to
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed basdtiair estimated fair values at acquisition as
follows (amounts in thousands):

At June 23, 2011

Cash $ 24,836
Accounts receivable 4,673
Inventories 32,179
Other current assets 7,565
Property and equipment 30,314
Other non-current assets 6,977
Deferred taxes 4,197
Trademarks 27,224
Other intangibles 4,995
Goodwill 102,907
Accounts payable (16,196)
Other current liabilities (24,718)
Long-term debt (includes current portion) (62,562)
Other non-current liabilities (26,637)
Net Assets Acquire $ 115,75

The trademarks acquired include the concept namdsaee deemed to have an indefinite life.
Other intangibles include a $1.7 million customist, la $2.5 million asset to reflect the adjustment
of acquired leases to market and a vendor conwé&c$0.8 million. The weighted average
amortization period for the asset to adjust acqulemases to market is 2.7 years. The weighted
average amortization period for customer lists.sygars.

Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the comata® transferred over the net assets recognized
and represents the future economic benefits ariSmm other assets acquired that could not be
individually identified and separately recogniz&gecifically, the goodwill recorded as part of the
acquisition of Schuh includes the expected purdgasynergies and other benefits that result from
combining the Schuh business with the Company, ovgat insight into global fashion trends, any
intangible assets that do not qualify for separategnition and an acquired assembled workforce.
The goodwill related to the Schuh acquisition is eeductible for tax purposes.
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The following pro forma information presents thesuks of operations of the Company as if the

Schuh acquisition had taken place at the beginafnigiscal 2011 or January 31, 2010. Pro forma

adjustments have been made to reflect additiorialdat expense from the $89.0 million in debt

associated with the acquisition, interest expensehe acquired debt, amortization of intangible

assets and the related income tax effects. Proaf@annings for the twelve months ended January
28, 2012 have been adjusted to exclude $7.4 mitifaosts related to the acquisition.

Twelve Months Ende Twelve Months Ende

Pro form: Pro form:
In thousands, except per share January 28, 20: January 29, 20:
Net sale $ 2,384,267 2,045,473
Earnings from continuing operatic 86,378 57,897
Earnings per shat
Basic $ 371 % 2.49
Diluted $ 362 $ 2.44

The pro forma results have been prepared for caamtiparpurposes only and do not purport to be
indicative of the results of operations that woddve occurred had the Schuh acquisition occurred

at the beginning of Fiscal 2011.

Intangible Assets
Other intangibles by major classes were as follows:

Leases Customer Lists Other* Total
Feb. 2 Jan. 2¢ Feb. 2 Jan. 2¢ Feb. 2 Jan. 2¢ Feb. 2 Jan. 2¢
In thousands 2013 201z 2013 2012 201z 2012 2013 2012

Gross other intangibl $ 12,584 ¢ 12,39( $ 14,11« $ 14,06: $ 2,116 $ 2,001 $ 28,818 $ 28,45:
Accumulated amortizatic ~ (10,800)  (9,477)  (5,312) (3,292 (1,109 (87€) (17,220) (13,649
Net Other Intangibles $ 1784¢ 291:$% 8804/ ¢$ 1077($ 1,01($ 1,12t $ 11,598 ¢ 14,80¢

*Includes non-compete agreements, vendor contratbacklog.

The amortization of intangibles, including tradeksarwas $3.4 million, $3.2 million and $2.1
million for Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, respeciiv@lhe amortization of intangibles, including
trademarks, will be $3.2 million, $2.8 million, $2million, $1.6 million and $1.0 million for Fiscal
2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018, respectively.
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Asset Impairments and Other Charges

In accordance with Company policy, assets are wohted to be impaired when the revised
estimated future cash flows are insufficient tookesr the carrying costs. Impairment charges
represent the excess of the carrying value ovefaihg@alue of those assets.

Asset impairment charges are reflected as a remucdt the net carrying value of property and
equipment, and in asset impairment and other, m¢he accompanying Consolidated Statements
of Operations.

The Company recorded a pretax charge to earning&l@f0 million in Fiscal 2013, including $15.6
million for network intrusion expenses, $1.4 mitlidor retail store asset impairments, and $0.1
million for other legal matters.

The Company recorded a pretax charge to earnin@®.@f million in Fiscal 2012, including $1.1
million for retail store asset impairments, $0.9liom for other legal matters and $0.7 million for
network intrusion expenses.

The Company recorded a pretax charge to earnin@8.6f million in Fiscal 2011, including $7.2
million for retail store asset impairments, $1.3liom for network intrusion expenses and $0.1
million for other legal matters.

Discontinued Operations

In Fiscal 2013, the Company recorded an additiohatge to earnings of $0.8 million ($0.5 million
net of tax) reflected in discontinued operationsmprily for anticipated costs of environmental
remedial alternatives related to former facilitiggerated by the Company (see Note 13).

In Fiscal 2012, the Company recorded an additiohatge to earnings of $1.7 million ($1.0 million
net of tax) reflected in discontinued operations|uding $1.8 million primarily for anticipated dss

of environmental remedial alternatives relateddionfer facilities operated by the Company, offset
by a $0.1 million gain for excess provisions tmpdiscontinued operations (see Note 13).

In Fiscal 2011, the Company recorded an additiohatge to earnings of $2.2 million ($1.3 million
net of tax) reflected in discontinued operations|uding $2.9 million primarily for anticipated dss

of environmental remedial alternatives relateddonier facilities operated by the Company, offset
by a $0.7 million gain for excess provisions tmpudiscontinued operations (see Note 13).
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Accrued Provision for Discontinued Operations

Facility

Shutdown

In thousands Costs
Balance January 29, 2C $ 15,03
Additional provision Fiscal 20: 1,69:
Charges and adjustments, (4,210
Balance January 28, 2C 12,517
Additional provision Fiscal 20: 79¢€
Charges and adjustments, (1,962
Balance February 2, 201 11,35:
Current provision for discontinued operations 7,19:
Total Noncurrent Provision for Discontinued Operations $ 4,15¢

*Includes a $11.9 million environmental provisiamcluding $7.7 million in current provision for

discontinued operations.

Note 4
Inventories

February 2, January 2¢
In thousands 2013 201:
Raw material $ 24,22° § 30,63¢
Wholesale finished goo 57,16: 53,45:
Retail merchandis 423,96( 351,02
Total Inventories $ 505,34: $ 435,11
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The Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topiche Codification defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair valuadoordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosures about fair valeasurements. This Topic defines fair value as
the exchange price that would be received for artas paid to transfer a liability (an exit price)
the principal or most advantageous market for gsetor liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date. & afgablishes a fair value hierarchy, which
requires an entity to maximize the use of obsee/atghuts and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. The standardrde=scthree levels of inputs that may be used to
measure fair value:

Level 1- Quoted prices in active markets for identicaleds or liabilities.

Level 2- Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices saglguoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are adtive; or other inputs that are observable orlzan
corroborated by observable market data for suliathnthe full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3- Unobservable inputs that are supported by litteno market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets oriliibs.

A financial asset or liability’s classification wit the hierarchy is determined based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair valueeasurement.

The following table presents the Company’s assat$ labilities measured at fair value on a
nonrecurring basis as of February 2, 2013 aggrddatehe level in the fair value hierarchy within
which those measurements fall (in thousands):

Long-Lived
Assets Impairmen
Held and Used Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Charges
Measured as of April 28, 20 $ 47 % — 3 — 3 47 % 4€
Measured as of July 28, 2012 $ 54 % —  $ —  $ 54 % 391
Measured as of October 27,2012  $ 211 % —  $ —  $ 211 % 28:
Measured as of February 2,21 $ 131 % — 3 — 3 131 % 67¢

In accordance with the Property, Plant and Equigni@pic of the Codification, the Company
recorded $1.4 million of impairment charges as sulteof the fair value measurement of its
long-lived assets held and used on a nonrecur@sgslwluring the twelve months ended February 2,
2013. These charges are reflected in asset impaismand other, net on the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

The Company used a discounted cash flow model tim&® the fair value of these long-lived
assets. Discount rate and growth rate assumpti@siexived from current economic conditions,
expectations of management and projected trendsuwent operating results. As a result, the
Company has determined that the majority of theiimpised to value its long-lived assets held and
used are unobservable inputs that fall within Lesef the fair value hierarchy.
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February 2, Januar 28,

In thousands 2013 2012

Revolver borrowing $ 27,70 $ 5,00(
UK term loan: 22.98; 35,70+
Total lon¢-term dek 50,68: 40,70«
Current portiol 5,67¢ 8,77:
Total Noncurrent Portion of Long-Term Debt $ 45,007 $ 31,93:

Long-term debt maturing during each of the nexe firears ending in January each year is $5.7
million, $5.5 million, $39.5 million, $0.0 milliomnd $0.0 million.

The Company had $27.7 million revolver borrowingststanding under the Credit Facility at
February 2, 2013 and $23.0 million in term loansstanding under the U.K. Credit Facilities
(described below) at February 2, 2013. The Compgsaxy outstanding letters of credit of $12.3
million under the Credit Facility at February 2,130 These letters of credit support product
purchases and lease and insurance indemnifications.

Credit Facility:

On June 23, 2011, the Company entered into a Air@ndment (the “Amendment”) to the Second
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the “Créddility”) dated January 21, 2011 by and
among the Company, certain subsidiaries of the Gomparty thereto, as other borrowers, the
lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A.administrative agent and collateral agent. The
Amendment raised the aggregate principal amounthencredit facility to $375.0 million from
$300.0 million. The Credit Facility was amendedharmit the Schuh acquisition (see Note 2). The
Credit Facility expires January 21, 2016.

Deferred financing costs incurred of $3.0 milliaiated to the Credit Facility were capitalized and

are being amortized over five years. Deferred foiagn costs incurred of $0.7 million related to the

Amendment were also capitalized and are being aredrbver five years. These costs are included
in other non-current assets on the Consolidatedri8al Sheets.

The material terms of the Credit Facility, as amezhdre as follows:

Availability

The amended Credit Facility is a revolving creditility in the aggregate principal amount of
$375.0 million, with a $40.0 million swing line Inasublimit, a $70.0 million sublimit for the
issuance of standby letters of credit and a Canaglib-facility of up to $8.0 million. The Company
canceled its Tranche A-1 sublimit of up to $30.0iom as of December 27, 2011. The facility has a
five-year term. Any swing line loans and any lettef credit and borrowings under the Canadian
facility will reduce the availability under the Glie Facility on a dollar-for-dollar basis. In adadit,

the Company has an option to increase the avatlabihder the Credit Facility by up to $75.0
million subject to, among other things, the receiptommitments for the increased amount.
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The aggregate amount of the loans made and letteredit issued under the Credit Facility shall at
no time exceed the lesser of the facility amou®780 million or, if increased at the Company’s
option, subject to the receipt of commitments far increased amount, up to $450.0 million) or the
“Borrowing Base”, which generally is based on 90%oebgible inventory plus 85% of eligible
wholesale receivables (50% of eligible wholesatereables of the Lids Team Sports business) plus
90% of eligible credit card and debit card recelgaliess applicable reserves.

Collateral

The loans and other obligations under the CreditliBaare secured by a perfected first prioritgri

and security interest in all tangible and intangibksets and excludes real estate and leaseholds of
the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Companyddition, with the amendment to the
Credit Facility, the Company pledged 65% of itermest in Genesco (UK) Limited.

Interest and Fees
The Company’s borrowings under the Credit Facibsar interest at varying rates that, at the
Company’s option, can be based on:

Domestic Facility

(a) LIBOR plus the applicable margin (as defined based on average Excess Availability during
the prior quarter) or (b) the applicable marginspiine higher of (i) the Bank of America prime rate,
(ii) the federal funds rate plus 0.50% or (iii) LOER for an interest period of thirty days plus 1.0%.

The initial applicable margin for base rate loand &.S. Index rate loans is 1.25% and the initial
applicable margin for LIBOR loans and BA (defineeldw) equivalent loans is 2.25%. Thereatfter,
the applicable margin will be subject to adjustmbased on “Excess Availability” for the prior
quarter. The term “Excess Availability” means, &swy given date, the excess (if any) of the Loan
Cap (being the lesser of the total commitmentstaadBorrowing Base) over the outstanding credit
extensions under the Credit Facility.

Interest on the Company’s borrowings is payable thigrnin arrears for base rate loans and U.S.
Index rate loans and at the end of each interéstperiod (but not less often than quarterly) for
LIBOR loans and BA equivalent loans.

The Company is also required to pay a commitmentofe the actual daily unused portions of the
Credit Facility at a rate of (i) 0.50% per annuméss than 50% of the Credit Facility has been
utilized on average during the immediately precgdiscal quarter or (ii) 0.375% per annum if 50%
or more of the Credit Facility has been utilizedidg such fiscal quarter.

Canadian Sub-Facility

(a) For loans made in Canadian dollars, the bahkeeptances (“BA”) rate plus the applicable
margin or (b) the Canadian Prime Rate (definechashighest of the (i) Bank of America Canadian
Prime Rate, (ii) 0.50% plus the Bank of Americarfi@an) overnight rate, and (iii) 1.0% plus the
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BA rate for a 30 day interest period) plus the sgglle margin for loans made in U.S. dollars,
LIBOR plus the applicable margin or the U.S. IndRate (defined as the highest of the (i) Bank of
America (Canada branch) U.S. dollar base rateth@) Federal Funds rate plus 0.50%, and
(iif) LIBOR for an interest period of thirty daysys 1.0%) plus the applicable margin.

Certain Covenants

The Company is not required to comply with any ficial covenants unless Excess Availability is
less than the greater of $27.5 million or 12.5%hef Loan Cap. If and during such time as Excess
Availability is less than the greater of $27.5 il or 12.5% of the Loan Cap, the Credit Facility
requires the Company to meet a minimum fixed chameesrage ratio of (a) an amount equal to
consolidated EBITDA less capital expenditures ang$ paid in cash, in each case for such period,
to (b) fixed charges for such period, of not ldsnt1.0:1.0. Excess Availability was $292.8 million
at February 2, 2013. Because Excess Availabilipeeded $27.5 million or 12.5% of the Loan Cap,
the Company was not required to comply with thisficial covenant at February 2, 2013.

In addition, the Credit Facility contains certaiovenants that, among other things, restrict
additional indebtedness, liens and encumbrancassland investments, acquisitions, dividends and
other restricted payments, transactions with afii, asset dispositions, mergers and consoligation

prepayments or material amendments of other indebts and other mattengstomarily restricted

in such agreements. The Credit Facility, as amenpednits the Company to incur up to $250.0

million of senior debt provided that certain teraml conditions are met.

Cash Dominion

The Credit Facility also contains cash dominionvgions that apply in the event that the
Company’s Excess Availability is less than the tgeaf $35.0 million or 15% of the Loan Cap or
there is an event of default under the Credit Rgcil

Events of Default

The Credit Facility contains customary events dfadk, including, without limitation, payment
defaults, breaches of representations and warsanti@venant defaults, cross-defaults to certain
other material indebtedness in excess of spec#iedunts and to agreements which would have a
material adverse effect if breached, certain eveftbankruptcy and insolvency, certain ERISA
events, judgments in excess of specified amoumtshange in control.

Certain of the lenders under the Credit Facilitytlweir affiliates have provided, and may in the
future provide, certain commercial banking, finah@dvisory, and investment banking services in
the ordinary course of business for the Compaysitbsidiaries and certain of its affiliates, for
which they receive customary fees and commissions.

U.K. Credit Facility
In connection with the Schuh acquisition, Schuteesd into an amended and restated Senior Term
Facilities Agreement and Working Capital Facilitgtter, (collectively, the “UK Credit Facilities”)
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which provide for term loans of up to £29.5 milliG@£15.5 million A term loan and £14.0 million B
term loan) and a working capital facility of £5.0llmn. The Working Capital Facility Letter was
allowed to lapse in June 2012. The A term loanrdaderest at LIBOR plus 2.50% per annum. The
B term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 3.75%a@rum. The Company is not required to make
any payments on the B term loan until it expiregoDer 31, 2015, unless the Company’s Schuh
Group segment has Excess Cash Flow (as defindtkitUK Credit Facilities). The Company paid
£4.8 million and £4.5 million on the B term loankrscal 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The UK Credit Facilities contains certain covenattthe Schuh level including a minimum interest
coverage covenant initially set at 4.25x and insirgato 4.50x in January 2012 and thereafter, a
maximum leverage covenant initially set at 2.75xlideng over time at various rates to 2.25x
beginning in July 2012 and a minimum cash flow cage of 1.10x. The Company was in
compliance with all the covenants at February 2,320he UK Credit Facilities are secured by a
pledge of all the assets of Schuh and its subgidiar
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Operating Leases

The Company leases its office space and all okitsl store locations and transportation equipment
under various noncancelable operating leases. 8dse$ have varying terms and expire at various
dates through 2030. The store leases in the Uidtatks, Puerto Rico and Canada typically have
initial terms of between 5 and 10 years. The stlmases in the United Kingdom and the Republic of

Ireland typically have initial terms of between dd 20 years. Generally, most of the leases require
the Company to pay taxes, insurance, maintenansts @nd contingent rentals based on sales.
Approximately 4% of the Company’s leases contaireveal options.

Rental expense under operating leases of contimmpegations was:

In thousands 2013 2012 2011

Minimum rental: $ 21551 $ 192,17 $ 167,55
Contingent renta 14,78t 12,91¢ 5,827
Sublease rente (667) (686) (642)
Total Rental Expenst $ 229,63! $ 20440 $ 17274

Minimum rental commitments payable in future yesmnes

Fiscal Years In thousands

201¢ $ 223,49
201¢ 210,019
201¢ 191,642
201 159,488
201¢ 127,982
Later year 342,534
Total Minimum Rental Commitments $ 1,255,16!

For leases that contain predetermined fixed esoataf the minimum rentals, the related rental
expense is recognized on a straight-line basigl@dumulative expense recognized on the straight-
line basis in excess of the cumulative paymentsidhided in deferred rent and other long-term
liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Thenpany occasionally receives reimbursements
from landlords to be used towards constructiorhefdtore the Company intends to lease. Leasehold
improvements are recorded at their gross costaudimgg items reimbursed by landlords. The
reimbursements are recorded as deferred rent andiaed as a reduction of rent expense over the
initial lease term. Tenant allowances of $20.0iomlland $17.6 million for Fiscal 2013 and 2012,
respectively, and deferred rent of $37.9 milliond &35.2 million for Fiscal 2013 and 2012,
respectively, are included in deferred rent andeiotlong-term liabilities on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.
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Non-Redeemable Preferred Stock

No. of
Votes
per
share

Number of Shares Amounts in Thousands

Common
Convertible
Ratio

Class (In order of
preference)*

Shares

Authorized 2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

Subordinated Seri:
Preferred
(Cumulative)

Aggregate

$2.30 Series 1
$4.75 Series 3
$4.75 Series 4

Series 6

$1.50 Subordinate
Cumulative
Preferred

Employee’
Subordinated
Convertible
Preferred

Stated Value o
Issued Shares

Employee’
Preferred Stock
Purchase Accounts

Total Non-
Redeemable
Preferred Stock

3,000,000
64,368
40,449

53,764

800,000

5,000,000

16,203
7,398

3,247

30,067

30,368

11,643

3,397

30,067

33,497

12,163

3,579

30,067

$ 648
740

325

902

$1,215
1,164

340

902

$1,340
1,216

358

902

5,000,001

56,915

46,852

75,475

47,922

79,306

49,192

2,615

1,405

3,621

1,437

3,816

1,476

N/A

.83

2.11

1.52

1.00 ***

N/A

10C

* In order of preference for liquidation and divids.

4,020

(96)

5,058

(100)

5,292

(109)

$3,924 $4,957

$5,183

* The Company’s charter permits the board of dioes to issue Subordinated Serial Preferred
Stock in as many series, each with as many shacesueh rights and preferences as the
board may designate.

*k%k
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Preferred Stock Transactions

Employee?
Preferred
Non-Redeemable Stock Total
Non-Redeemable Employees’ Purchase Non-Redeemable
In thousands Preferred Stock Preferred Stock Accounts Preferred Stock
Balance Janua 30, 201 $ 3,83: $ 151 $ (129 $ 5,22(
Othel (17) (34) 14 (37)
Balance Janua 29, 201: 3,816 1,476 (109) 5,183
Othe (195) (39) 8 (226)
Balance Janua 28, 201. 3,621 1,437 (107) 4,957
Othel (1,006 (32) 5 (1,039
Balance February 2, 201 $ 2615 $ 1,405 $ (96) $ 3,924

Subordinated Serial Preferred Stock (Cumulative):

Stated and redemption values for Series 1 are 848hare and for Series 3 and 4 are each $100 per
share plus accumulated dividends; liquidation vdtreSeries 1 is $40 per share plus accumulated
dividends and for Series 3 and 4 is $100 per ghlaeaccumulated dividends.

The Company’s shareholders’ rights plan grantsotoroon shareholders the right to purchase, at a
specified exercise price, a fraction of a sharsutfordinated serial preferred stock, Series 6hen t
event of an acquisition of, or an announced teraftar for, 15% or more of the Company’s
outstanding common stock. Upon any such event, agbhalso entitles the holder (other than the
person making such acquisition or tender offepucchase, at the exercise price, shares of common
stock having a market value of twice the exerciseep In the event the Company is acquired in a
transaction in which the Company is not the sungworporation, each right would entitle its holder
to purchase, at the exercise price, shares ofdbeirsng company having a market value of twice
the exercise price. The rights expire in March 2G#@ redeemable under certain circumstances for
$.01 per right and are subject to exchange forstiage of common stock or an equivalent amount of
preferred stock at any time after the event whickes the rights exercisable and before a majority
of the Company’s common stock is acquired.

$1.50 Subordinated Cumulative Preferred Stock:

Stated and liquidation values and redemption paiee 88 times the average quarterly per share
dividend paid on common stock for the previous eggarters (if any), but in no event less than $30
per share plus accumulated dividends.

Employees’ Subordinated Convertible Preferred Stock

Stated and liquidation values are 88 times theamesguarterly per share dividend paid on common
stock for the previous eight quarters (if any), ioubo event less than $30 per share.
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Common Stock:

Common stock- $1 par value. Authorized: 80,000 $l@@res; issued: February 2, 2013 — 24,484,915
shares; January 28, 2012 —24,757,826 shares. WMeeee488,464 shares held in treasury at February
2, 2013 and January 28, 2012. Each outstanding skamntitled to one vote. At February 2, 2013,
common shares were reserved as follows: 80,84&sliar conversion of preferred stock; 186,835
shares for the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan; 76,320eshfor the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan; 1,585,443
shares for the 2009 Amended and Restated Stocktlmed?lan; and 313,438 shares for the Genesco
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

For the year ended February 2, 2013, 223,618 slofresmmon stock were issued for the exercise
of stock options at an average weighted exercise pf $21.50, for a total of $4.8 million; 194,232
shares of common stock were issued as restric@slas part of the 2009 Amended and Restated
Equity Incentive Plan; 2,463 shares of common steeke issued for the purchase of shares under
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan at an averagdtedigharket price of $63.84, for a total of $0.2
million; 10,224 shares were issued to directorsfoconsideration; 75,552 shares were withheld for
taxes on restricted stock vested in Fiscal 201320t shares of restricted stock were forfeited in
Fiscal 2013; and 22,028 shares were issued in Haseeus conversions of Series 1, 3, 4 and
Employees’ Subordinated Convertible Preferred Stdble 223,618 options exercised were all fixed
stock options (see Note 12). In addition, the Canyprepurchased and retired 645,904 shares of
common stock at an average weighted market pri&&®#29 for a total of $37.6 million.

For the year ended January 28, 2012, 390,357 sb&imsnmon stock were issued for the exercise
of stock options at an average weighted exercise pf $24.82, for a total of $9.7 million; 289,407
shares of common stock were issued as restricim@slas part of the 2009 Amended and Restated
Equity Incentive Plan; 2,717 shares of common steeke issued for the purchase of shares under
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan at an averagdtedigharket price of $48.95, for a total of $0.1
million; 14,643 shares were issued to directorsfoconsideration; 93,089 shares were withheld for
taxes on restricted stock vested in Fiscal 201208 shares of restricted stock were forfeited in
Fiscal 2012; and 5,238 shares were issued in naseslus conversions of Series 1, 3, 4 and
Employees’ Subordinated Convertible Preferred Stdble 390,357 options exercised were all fixed
stock options (see Note 12).

For the year ended January 29, 2011, 118,450 sb&msmmon stock were issued for the exercise
of stock options at an average weighted exercise f $18.77, for a total of $2.2 million; 404,995
shares of common stock were issued as restrict@slas part of the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan;
4,230 shares of common stock were issued for timehpse of shares under the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan at an average weighted market pfig2&39, for a total of $0.1 million; 17,838
shares were issued to directors for no consideraBd,731 shares were withheld for taxes on
restricted stock vested in Fiscal 2011; 1,575 shafeestricted stock were forfeited in Fiscal 2011
and 1,501 shares were issued in miscellaneous ore of Series 3 and Employees’ Subordinated
Convertible Preferred Stock. The 118,450 optiorsr@ged were all fixed stock options (see Note
12). In addition, the Company repurchased andecktB63,767 shares of common stock at an
average weighted market price of $28.74 for a tot&24.8 million.
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Restrictions on Dividends and Redemptions of Cap&#ock:

The Company’s charter provides that no dividendy ip@ paid and no shares of capital stock
acquired for value if there are dividend or redeorptarrearages on any senior or equally ranked
stock. Exchanges of subordinated serial prefertecksor common stock or other stock junior to
such exchanged stock are permitted.

The Company’s Credit Facility prohibits the paymeitdividends and other restricted payments
unless as of the date of the making of any Restfi®tayment or consummation of any Acquisition,
(@) no Default or Event of Default exists or wowddse after giving effect to such Restricted
Payment or Acquisition, and (b) either (i) the Bovers have pro forma projected Excess
Availability for the following six month period equto or greater than 50% of the Loan Cap, after
giving pro forma effect to such Restricted Paymanicquisition, or (ii) (A) the Borrowers have
pro forma projected Excess Availability for theléaVing six month period of less than 50% of the
Loan Cap but equal to or greater than 20% of thenL&ap, after giving pro forma effect to the
Restricted Payment or Acquisition, and (B) the Hixgharge Coverage Ratio, on a pro-forma basis
for the twelve months preceding such Restrictedrieay or Acquisition, will be equal to or greater
than 1.0:1.0and (c) after giving effect to suchtReted Payment or Acquisition, the Borrowers are
Solvent. The Company’s management does not expadahility under the Credit Facility to fall
below the requirements listed above during Fisd@l42 The Company's UK Credit Facility
prohibits the payment of any dividends by Schuhsosubsidiaries to the Company.

Dividends declared for Fiscal 2013 for the Compar§ubordinated Serial Preferred Stock, $2.30

Series 1, $4.75 Series 3 and $4.75 Series 4, an€Cdmpany’'s $1.50 Subordinated Cumulative
Preferred Stock were $0.1 million in the aggregate.

76



Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8
Equity, Continued

Changes in the Shares of the Company’s Capital &toc

Non-
Redeemable Employees’
Common Preferred Preferred
Stock Stock Stock

Issued at Janue 30, 201! 24,562,69 79,46¢ 50,35(
Exercise of optior 118,45( 0 0
Issue restricted sto 422 83: 0 0
Issue shar—Employee Stock Purchase F 4,23( 0 0
Shares repurchas (863,76) 0 0
Othel (81,80Y) (163 (1,159
Issued at Janue 29, 201 24,162,63 79,30¢ 49,19:
Exercise of optior 390,35 0 0
Issuerestricted stoc 304,05( 0 0
Issue shar—Employee Stock Purchase F 2717 0 0
Othel (101,93)) (3,83)) (1,270
Issued at Janue 28, 201. 24,757,82 75,47" 47,92;
Exercise of optior 223,61 0 0
Issue restricted sto 204,45! 0 0
Issue shar—Employee Stock Purchase F 2.46° 0 0
Shares repurchas (645,90 0 0
Othel (57,54 (18,56() (1,070
Issued at February 2, 2( 24,484,91 56,91! 46,85
Less shares repurchased and held in tre 488,46 0 0
Outstanding at February 2, 201. 23,996,45 56,91! 46,85
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Income tax expense from continuing operations mprised of the following:

In thousands 2013 2012 2011
Curren

U.S. federe $ 50,859 $ 42,103 $ 35,103

Internations 10,072 2,007 1,474

State 8,841 8,952 5,703
Total Current Income Tax Expet 69,772 53,062 42,280
Deferrec

U.S. federe (7,445) (175) (8,165)

Internationz (7,148) 4,370 —

State (3,238) (1,463) (3,701)
Total Deferred Income Tax Expense (Ben (17,831) 2,732 (11,866)
Total Income Tax Expense— Continuing Operations $ 51,941 $ 55,794 $ 30,414

Discontinued operations were recorded net of inctemebenefit of approximately $(0.3) million,
$(0.7) million and $(0.9) million in Fiscal 2013022 and 2011, respectively.

As a result of the exercise of stock options arsting of restricted stock during Fiscal 2013, 2012
and 2011, the Company realized an additional inctemebenefit of approximately $4.8 million,

$4.6 million and $1.3 million, respectively. Thetsx benefits are reflected as an adjustment to
additional paid-in capital.

78



Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 9
Income Taxes, Continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprefate following:

February 2, January 28,

In thousands 2013 2012

Identified intangible $ (28,076) $ (28,125)
Prepaid (2,943) (2,814)
Convertible bonc (3,001) (3,001)
Total deferred tax liabilitie (34,020) (33,940)
Options 965 1,289
Deferred rer 5,847 7,043
Pension 8,321 8,936
Expense accrue 24,483 17,146
Uniform capitalization cos 12,539 9,893
Book over tax depreciatis 13,783 11,756
Provisions for discontinued operations and restmireg< 4,745 5,201
Inventory valuatio 2,015 2,397
Tax net operating loss and credit carryforw 3,535 8,306
Allowances for bad debts and nc 1,598 1,641
Deferred compensaticand restricted stoi 6,382 5,174
Othel 3,500 5,460
Gross deferred tax ass 87,713 84,242
Deferred tax asset valuation allowa (3,541) (3,790)
Deferred tax asset net of valuation allowe 84,172 80,452
Net Deferred Tax Asset $ 50,152 $ 46,512

The deferred tax balances have been classifidtkilCbnsolidated Balance Sheets as follows:

2013 2012
Net current ass $ 23,725 % 22,541
Net nor-current ass: 26,448 28,152
Net nor-current liability (21) (4,181)
Net Deferred Tax Asset $ 50,152 $ 46,512
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Reconciliation of the United States federal statutate to the Company’s effective tax rate from
continuing operations is as follows:

2013 2012 2011

U. S. federe statutory rate of te 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%
State taxes (net of federal tax ben 3.17 3.53 2.59
Foreign rate differenti (1.78) (1.92) —
Change in valuation allowar (0.17) 0.71 —
Permanent iten 2.00 2.35 (0.83)
Uncertain tax positior (5.80) — (1.56)
Othel (0.54) 0.53 0.60
Effective Tax Rate 31.88% 40.2(% 35.8(%

The provision for income taxes resulted in an éifectax rate for continuing operations of 31.88%
for Fiscal 2013, compared with an effective taxerat 40.20% for Fiscal 2012. The decrease in the
effective tax rate for Fiscal 2013 was primarilyriautable to the reversal of charges previously
recorded related to uncertain tax positions dugh® expiration of the applicable statutes of
limitations and a settlement with a state tax autyanore favorable than anticipated related taeoth
uncertain tax positions.

As of February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012, thewgamy had a federal net operating loss
carryforward, which was assumed in one of the pyar acquisitions, of $1.5 million and $1.6
million, respectively, which expire in fiscal yed825 through 2030.

As of February 2, 2013, January 28, 2012 and Jsrigr 2011, the Company had state net
operating loss carryforwards of $0.1 million, $0rillion and $0.4 million, respectively, which
expire in fiscal years 2016 through 2031.

As of February 2, 2013, January 28, 2012 and Jgr$gr2011, the Company had state tax credits
of $0.9 million, $0.6 million and $0.5 million, nesctively. These credits expire in fiscal years201
through 2019.

As of February 2, 2013, January 28, 2012 and Jsr®ar2011, the Company had foreign tax
credits of $0.0 million, $0.1 million and $0.3 nolh, respectively. These credits will expire irché
year 2022.

As of February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012, thregamy had foreign net operating losses of $2.4
million and $7.2 million, respectively, which hame expiration.

As of February 2, 2013, as part of the Schuh adens the Company has provided a valuation

allowance of approximately $3.5 million on deferteck assets associated primarily with foreign
net operating losses and foreign fixed assets faclwmanagement has determined it is more likely
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than not that the deferred tax assets will not daized. The $0.3 million net decrease in the
valuation allowance during Fiscal 2013 from the8$&hillion provided for as of January 28, 2012
determined in accordance with the Income Tax Tayiche Codification relate to foreign net
operating losses arising in Fiscal 2012 and ine®as fixed asset-related deferred tax assets that
will more likely than not never be realized. Managmt believes that it is more likely than not that
the remaining deferred tax assets will be fullyiizesl.

As of February 2, 2013, the Company has not pravide withholding or United States federal
income taxes on approximately $26.0 million of analated undistributed earnings of its foreign
subsidiaries as they are considered by manageneeriiet permanently reinvested. If these
undistributed earnings were not considered to bengeently reinvested, the related U.S. tax
liability may be reduced by foreign income taxesdpan those earnings. Because of the
complexities involved with the hypothetical tax a@dhtion, a determination of the unrecognized
deferred tax liability related to these undistrémiearnings is not practicable.

The methodology in the Income Tax Topic of the @odiion prescribes that a company should use
a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold basadhe technical merits of the tax position taken.
Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-natognition threshold should be measured in order
to determine the tax benefit to be recognized éfithancial statements.

The following is a tabular reconciliation of theéabamounts of unrecognized tax benefits for Fiscal
2013, 2012 and 2011.

In thousands 2013 2012 2011
Unrecognized TaBenefit— Beginning of Perio $ 20,467 $ 14,167 $ 17,004
Gross Increases (Decreas— Tax Positions in a Prior Peri (2,46 (29) (517)
Gross Increase- Tax Positions in a Current Per 132 6,98¢ 473
Settlement (449 (539 (2,605)
Lapse of Statutes of Limitatio (7,250) (124 (188)
Unrecognized Tax Benefi End of Period $ 10,437 % 20,467 $ 14,16,

Unrecognized tax benefits were approximately $I6illon, $20.5 million and $14.2 million as of
February 2, 2013, January 28, 2012 and Januar394,, respectively. The amount of unrecognized
tax benefits as of February 2, 2013, January 282 2d January 29, 2011, which would impact the
annual effective rate if recognized were $2.4 mil)i$12.6 million and $13.1 million, respectively.
The Company believes it is reasonably possible tiate will be a $0.7 million decrease in the
gross tax liability for uncertain tax positions it the next 12 months based upon the expiration of
statutes of limitation.

The Company recognizes interest expense and peEnalélated to the above unrecognized
tax benefits within income tax expense on the Clistested Statements of Operations. Related to
the uncertain tax benefits noted above, the Compesgorded interest and penalties of
approximately $(1.2) million expense and $0.1 milli respectively, during Fiscal 2013, $0.5
million expense and $0.0 million, respectively,idgrFiscal 2012 and $(0.5) million income and
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$(0.2) million income, respectively, during Fis@011l. The Company recognized a liability for
accrued interest and penalties of $1.1 million $® million, respectively, as of February 2, 2013
and $2.3 million and $0.2 million, respectively, @sJanuary 28, 2012. The long-term portion of
the unrecognized tax benefits and related accmiedesst and penalties are included in deferred rent
and other long-term liabilities on the ConsolidaBadance Sheets.

Income tax reserves are determined using the mekbgylrequired by the Income Tax Topic of the
Codification.

The Company and its subsidiaries file income taxrres in federal and in many state and local
jurisdictions as well as foreign jurisdictions. Witew exceptions, the Company’s U.S. federal and
state and local income tax returns for fiscal yesaded January 30, 2010 and beyond remain subject
to examination. In addition, the Company has siises in various foreign jurisdictions that have
statutes of limitation generally ranging from tveosix years.

Note 10
Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Other Postretireant Benefit Plans

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

The Company sponsored a non-contributory, defiretefit pension plan. As of January 1, 1996,
the Company amended the plan to change the pebsioefit formula to a cash balance formula
from the then existing benefit calculation basedrugears of service and final average pay. The
benefits accrued under the old formula were fraagf December 31, 1995. Upon retirement, the
participant will receive this accrued benefit pagafis an annuity. In addition, the participant will
receive as a lump sum (or annuity if desired) tmant credited to the participant’s cash balance
account under the new formula. Effective Januar®0D5, the Company froze the defined benefit
cash balance plan which prevents any new entratdghe plan as of that date as well as affects the
amounts credited to the participants’ accountssmudsed below.

Under the cash balance formula, beginning Januar$996, the Company credited each
participant’s account annually with an amount edoad% of the participant’'s compensation plus
4% of the participant’'s compensation in excesef$ocial Security taxable wage base. Beginning
December 31, 1996 and annually thereafter, the umtctalance of each active participant
was credited with 7% interest calculated on the sfithe balance as of the beginning of the plan
year and 50% of the amounts credited to the accauther than interest, for the plan year.
The account balance of each participant who wastireawould be credited with interest at the
lesser of 7% or the 30 year Treasury rate. Undefrdzen plan, each participants’ cash balance plan
account will be credited annually only with interas the 30 year Treasury rate, not to exceed 7%,
until the participant retires. The amount credigath year will be based on the rate at the end of
the prior year.
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Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The Company provides health care benefits for aatiyees and life insurance benefits for certain
retirees not covered by collective bargaining agre@s. Under the health care plan, early retirees
are eligible for benefits until age 65. Employedsowneet certain requirements are eligible for life
insurance benefits upon retirement. The Companguascsuch benefits during the period in which

the employee renders service.

Obligations and Funded Status
Change in Benefit Obligation

In thousands
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye
Service cos

Interest cos

Plan participan’ contribution:
Benefits pai

Actuarial los:

Benefit Obligation at End of Yeat

Change in Plan Assets

In thousands
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of
Actual gain on plan assi

Employercontribution:

Plan participan’ contribution:

Benefits pai

Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Yee

Funded Status at End of Yea

Pension Benefits

Other Benefits

201z 2012 201¢ 2012
$ 118,64 $ 110,79: % 3,90¢ % 3,48(
35( 25( 35¢€ 16€
4,961 5,591 157 174
0 0 74 71
(9,039 (8,805 (227 (242)
4,20¢ 10,80¢ 213 25¢
$ 119,12¢ % 118,64 $ 4487 $ 3,90¢
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
201z 2012 201z 201z
$ 96,44: $ 98,88° $ 0 $ 0
11,207 6,111 0 0
0 25( 147 171
0 0 74 71
(9,039 (8,805 (227 (242)
$ 98,61: $ 96,44! $ 0 $ 0
$ (2051 $  (2220) $ (4.48) $ (3,909)
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Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance {Stemsist of:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
In thousands 201z 201z 201¢ 2012
Noncurrent asse $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Current liabilitie: 0 0 (160) (160)
Noncurrent liabilitie (20,519 (22,20) (4,32) (3,749
Net Amount Recognize $ (2051) $  (22,20) $ (4,487) $ (3,909

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprelienscome consist of:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
In thousands 201: 201z 201: 201z
Prior service co $ 0 % 4 $ 0O $ 0
Net los! 42,879 48,906 566 437
Total Recognized in AccumulatecOther
Comprehensive Loss $ 42,87¢ $ 48,910 $ 566 $ 437

In thousands

February 2, Januar 28,

Pension Benefits 2013 2012

Projected benefit obligatic $ 119,12¢ $ 118,64
Accumulated benefit obligatis 119,12t 118,64«
Fair value ofplan asse 98,61: 96,44
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Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost
Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

In thousands 201¢ 201z 2011 201z 201z 2011
Service cos $ 35C % 25C % 25 $ 35¢ $ 166 % 144
Interest cos 4,961 5,597 5,897 157 174 17¢
Expected return on plan as¢ (7,009 (7,807 (8,089) — — —
Amortization

Prior service co 4 4 4 — — —

Losse 6,03: 4,72¢ 4,23¢ 84 7¢ 5¢

Net amortizatio $ 603 $ 473 $ 423 $ 84 $ 7¢ $ 5¢
Net Periodic Benefit Cos $ 434 $ 2772 $ 2297 % 597 $ 41¢  $ 37:

Reconciliation of Accumulated Other Comprehensivecbme

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

In thousands 201: 201:

Net loss (gair $ 5 % (84)
Amortization ofprior service co (4) —
Amortization of net actuarial (loss) g (6,032) 213
Total Recognized in Other Comprehensive Incon $ (6,031) $ 129
Total Recognized in Net Periodic Benefit Cost and tBer Comprehensive Incomi $ (1,687 $ 72€

The estimated net loss and prior service cost tier defined benefit pension plans that will be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensivenmecanto net periodic benefit cost over the
next fiscal year are $6.5 million and $0.0, respety. The estimated net loss for the other
postretirement benefit plans that will be amortizemm accumulated other comprehensive income
into net periodic benefit cost over the next fisgzdr is $0.1 million.

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine titeolgligations

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rat 4.0(% 4.35% 4.01% 4.17%
Rate of compensation incre: NA NA — _

For Fiscal 2013 and 2012, the discount rate wasdbas a yield curve of high quality corporate
bonds with cash flows matching the Company’s pldrgected benefit payments.
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determingoerebdic benefit costs

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
201z 2012 2011 201z 2012 2011
Discount rat 4.35% 5.2  5.62:% 4.17%% 5.25% 5.5(%
Expected lon-term rate of return on ple
assets 7.7%% 8.25% 8.28% — — —
Rate of compensaticincreas NA NA NA _ _ _

The weighted average discount rate used to medbkarbdenefit obligation for the pension plan
decreased from 4.35% to 4.00% from Fiscal 2012idoaF 2013. The decrease in the rate increased
the accumulated benefit obligation by $4.3 millemmd increased the projected benefit obligation by
$4.3 million. The weighted average discount ratedutd measure the benefit obligation for the
pension plan decreased from 5.25% to 4.35% frommaF2011 to Fiscal 2012. The decrease in the
rate increased the accumulated benefit obligatiprb0.4 million and increased the projected
benefit obligation by $10.4 million.

To develop the expected long-term rate of returnassets assumption, the Company considered
historical asset returns, the current asset allmtaand future expectations. Considering this
information, the Company selected a 7.75% long-text® of return on assets assumption.

Assumed health care cost trend rates

2013 2012
Health care cost trend rate assumed for nex 7.0% 7 504
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tlinee{the ultimate trend rai 5% 50
Year that the rate reaches the ultintrend rat 2017 2017

The effect on disclosed information of one percgataoint change in the assumed health care cost
trend rate for each future year is shown below.

1% Increase 1% Decrease

In thousands in Rates in Rates
Aggregated service arinterest cos 3$ 152 $ 70
Accumulated postretirement benefit obliga $ 73§ 57¢
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Plan Assets

The Company’s pension plan weighted average adkmta#ons as of February 2, 2013 and
January 28, 2012, by asset category are as follows:

Plan Assets
February 2, January 28,
2013 2012

Asset Categon
Equity securitie 66% 63%
Debt securitie 34% 37%
Othel 0% 0%
Total 100% 100%

The investment strategy of the Trust is to enswer dhe long-term an asset pool, that when
combined with Company contributions, will suppoeinkifit obligations to participants, retirees and

beneficiaries. Investment management responsdslibf plan assets are delegated to outside
investment advisers and overseen by an Investmeninittee comprised of members of the

Company’s senior management that is appointed &\Bttard of Directors. The Company has an

investment policy that provides direction on thelementation of this strategy.

The investment policy establishes a target allocator each asset class and investment manager.
The actual asset allocation versus the establisheget is reviewed at least quarterly and is
maintained within a +/- 5% range of the target tialecation. Target allocations are 50% domestic
equity, 13% international equity, 35% fixed incoar& 2% cash investments.

All investments are made solely in the interesthef participants and beneficiaries for the exclesiv
purposes of providing benefits to such participaatel their beneficiaries and defraying the
expenses related to administering the Trust agrdated by the Investment Committee. All assets
shall be properly diversified to reduce the potnif a single security or single sector of se@sit
having a disproportionate impact on the portfolio.

The Committee utilizes an outside investment cdastiland a team of investment managers to
implement its various investment strategies. Perémce of the managers is reviewed quarterly and
the investment objectives are consistently evatuate

At February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012, theree wier Company related assets in the plan.
Generally, quoted market prices are used to vafunsipn plan assets. Equities, some fixed income
securities, publicly traded investment funds an&.lUgovernment obligations are valued at the
closing price reported on the active market on wihine individual security is traded.
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The following tables present the pension plan adsgtevel within the fair value hierarchy as of
February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012.

February 2, 2013 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity Securities

International securiti $ 13,75 $ —  $ — 3% 13,757

U.S. securitie 51,01: — — 51,01:
Fixed Income Securiti 33,63: — — 33,63
Other

Cash Equivalen 23t — — 23t

Other (includes receivables and payat (24) _ _ (24)
Total PensionPlan Asset: $ 98,612 $ —  $ — $ 98,612
January 28, 2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity Securities

International securiti $ 11,75 $ — % — % 11,75¢

U.S. securitie 49,32: — — 49,32:
Fixed Income Securiti 35,16¢ _ — 35,16¢
Other

Cash Equivalen 267 — — 267

Other (includes receivables and payat (63) — — (63)
Total Pension Plan Ass $ 96,44 $ — % — 3 96,44:
Cash Flows

Return of Assets

There was no return of assets from the plan tcCinmpany in Fiscal year 2013 and no plan assets are
projected to be returned to the Company in Fis6al2

Contributions

There was no ERISA cash requirement for the pla20it2 and none is projected to be required in 2013.
It is the Company’s policy to contribute enoughlcasmaintain at least an 80% funding level.
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Estimated Future Benefit Payments
Expected benefit payments from the trust, includirigre service and pay, are as follows:

Pension Other
Benefits benefits
Estimated future payments ($ in millions) ($ in millions)

2017 $ 8.7 $ 0.2
201/ 8.7 0.2
201¢ 8.4 0.2
201¢ 8.2 0.2
2017 8.1 0.2
2018- 202z 38.1 13

Section 401(k) Savings Plan

The Company has a Section 401(k) Savings Planablaiko employees who have completed one
full year of service and are age 21 or older.

Concurrent with the January 1, 1996 amendment ¢opimsion plan (discussed previously), the
Company amended the 401(k) savings plan to makehingt contributions equal to 50% of each
employee’s contribution of up to 5% of salary. Cament with freezing the defined benefit pension
plan effective January 1, 2005, the Company ametided01(k) savings plan to change the formula
for matching contributions. Since January 1, 200 Company has matched 100% of each
employee’s contribution of up to 3% of salary ari¥bof the next 2% of salary. In addition, for
those employees hired before December 31, 2004, wdre eligible for the Company’s cash
balance retirement plan before it was frozen, them@any annually makes an additional
contribution of 2 1/2 % of salary to each emplogeatcount. In calendar 2005 and future years,
participants are immediately vested in their cdmittions and the Company’s matching contribution
plus actual earnings thereon. The contribution egpeo the Company for the matching program
was approximately $5.3 million for Fiscal 2013, Z4million for Fiscal 2012 and $3.8 million
for Fiscal 2011.
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For the Year Endec For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
February 2, 2013 January 28, 2012 January 29, 2011

(In thousands, except Income Shares Per-Share Income Shares Per-Share Income Shares Per-Share
per share amounts) (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount (Numerator)  (Denominator) Amount (Numerator)  (Denominator) Amount

Earnings from continuing
operations $ 110,998 $ 82,984 $ 54,54°

Less: Preferred stock
dividend: (147) (193) (197)

Basic EPS from continuing
operations

Income available t 110,851 23584 § 47 82,791 23234 $  3.5¢ 54,350 23209 $ 234

Effect of Dilutive
Securities from continuing
operations

Options anc
restricted stock 372 511 431

Convertible
preferred

stock?

88 34 141 55 58 26

Employees’
preferred

stock?

47 48 50

Diluted EPS

Income available t
common shareholders plus

assumed conversions $

1)

)

110,939 24,037 $ 46: $ 82,932 23,848 $ 348 $ 54,40¢ 23,716 $ 2.29

The amount of the dividend on the convertible prefé stock per common share obtainable on conversfothe
convertible preferred stock was less than basiciegs per share for Series 1, 3 and 4 preferreckstfor Fiscal 2013
and 2012. Therefore, conversion of these convertibeferred stocks were included in diluted eammipgr share for
Fiscal 2013 and 2012. The amount of the dividen®eres 3 convertible preferred stock per commameshbtainable
on conversion of the convertible preferred stocls fess than basic earnings for Fiscal 2011. Thexefmnversion of
Series 3 preferred shares were included in dileguhings per share for Fiscal 2011. The amounhefdividend on
Series 1 and Series 4 convertible preferred stecicpmmon share obtainable on conversion of thiepeal stock was
higher than basic earnings for Fiscal 2011. Theegfoonversion of Series 1 and Series 4 prefernades were not
reflected in diluted earnings per share for Figfdl1 because it would have been antidilutive. Jiteres convertible to
common stock for Series 1, 3 and 4 preferred stomild have been 13,502 and 15,575 and 4,920, rieeplgc as of
February 2, 2013.

The Company’s Employees’ Subordinated ConvertibiefdPred Stock is convertible one for one to then@any’'s
common stock. Because there are no dividends peibi® stock, these shares are assumed to be tedver

All outstanding options to purchase shares of comstock at the end of Fiscal 2013 and 2012 were
included in the computation of diluted earnings glesire because the options’ exercise prices were
less than the average market price of the commaresh

Options to purchase 12,000 shares of common sto$8265 per share, 71,428 shares of common
stock at $36.40 per share, 1,945 shares of comitoak st $40.05 per share, 103,474 shares of
common stock at $38.14 per share, 951 shares ofmoornstock at $37.41 per share and 2,351
shares of common stock at $42.82 per share westaoding at the end of Fiscal 2011 but were not
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included in the computation of diluted earnings gleaire because the options’ exercise prices were
greater than the average market price of the conshares.

The weighted shares outstanding reflects the effédtock buy back programs. The Company
repurchased 645,904 shares at a cost of $37.7omiluring Fiscal 2013. The Company has $58.2
million remaining under its current $75.0 milliohase repurchase authorization. The Company did
not repurchase any shares during Fiscal 2012. TOmep@ny repurchased 863,767 shares at a cost of
$24.8 million during Fiscal 2011.

Note 12
Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company’s stock-based compensation plans, Belwfiary 2, 2013, are described below. The
Company recognizes compensation expense for shaegipayments based on the fair value of the
awards as required by the Compensation — Stock €onsapion Topic of the Codification.

Stock Incentive Plans

The Company has two fixed stock incentive plansdesrthe 2009 Amended and Restated Equity
Incentive Plan (the “2009 Plan”), effective as ahd 22, 2011, the Company may grant options,
restricted shares, performance awards and othek-bsed awards to its employees, consultants
and directors for up to 2.5 million shares of comnstock. Under the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan
(the “2005 Plan”), effective as of June 23, 200% Company was permitted to grant options,
restricted shares and other stock-based awards &miployees and consultants as well as directors
for up to 2.5 million shares of common stock. Ther be no future awards under the 2005 Equity
Incentive Plan. Under both plans, the exerciseepoiceach option equals the market price of the
Company’s stock on the date of grant and an omiomximum term is 10 years. Options granted
under both plans vest 25% per year over four years.

For Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company rezedrnshare-based compensation cost of $0.0,
less than $1,000 and $0.2 million, respectively,tfofixed stock incentive plans included in sgdli
and administrative expenses in the accompanyings@iolated Statements of Operations. The
Company did not capitalize any share-based compensaost.

The Compensation — Stock Compensation Topic ofGbdification requires that the cash flows
resulting from tax benefits for tax deductions ktess of the compensation cost recognized for
those options (excess tax benefit) be classifiefinascing cash flows. Accordingly, the Company
classified excess tax benefits of $4.8 million,/illion and $1.4 million as financing cash inflsw
rather than as operating cash inflows on its Cotatgdd Statement of Cash Flows for Fiscal 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company did not grant any fixed stock optionBiscal 2013, 2012 or 2011.
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A summary of fixed stock option activity and chasder Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 is presented
below:

Weighted-Average Aggregate Intrinsic

Weighted-Average Remaining Value (in
Shares Exercise Price Contractual Term thousands)
Outstanding, Janue 30, 201( 99558( $ 24.04
Grante( 0 _
Exerciset (118,45() 18.77
Forfeitec 0 _
Outstanding, Janue 29, 201: 877,13 $ 24.75
Grantet 0 —
Exercisel (390135) 24.82
Forfeitec 0 _
Outstanding, Janue 28, 201 486,77. $ 24.70
Granted 0 —
Exercisec (223,619 21.50
Forfeited 0 _
Outstanding, February 2, 201 263,155 $ 27.43 198 $ 9,317
Exercisable, February 2, 201 263,15¢ $ 27.4: 1.9t $ 9,317

(1) Based upon the difference between the closing mariee of the Company’s common stock on the lastihg
day of the year and the grant price of in-the-momgtjons.

The total intrinsic value, which represents thdedénce between the underlying stock’s market
price and the option’s exercise price, of optiorereised during Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011 was
$11.5 million, $10.3 million and $2.3 million, resgively.

As of February 2, 2013, the Company does not hawe reonvested shares of its fixed stock
incentive plans.

As of February 2, 2013 there was no unrecognizedpemsation costs related to nonvested share-
based compensation arrangements granted undetaditie incentive plans discussed above. Cash
received from option exercises under all sharesg@sgment arrangements for Fiscal 2013, 2012
and 2011 was $4.8 million, $9.7 million and $2.2lion, respectively.

Restricted Stock Incentive Plans

Director Restricted Stock

The 2009 Plan permits grants to non-employee direan such terms as the board may approve.
Restricted stock awards were made to independeattdis on the date of the annual meeting of
shareholders in each of Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2l¥4 shares granted in each award vested on the
first anniversary of the grant date, subject todhector’s continued service through that datee Th
board also approved a grant of 336 additional sh&wea newly elected director on the annual
meeting date in Fiscal 2013 on the same termseaBitital 2013 grant to all outside directors. In al
cases, the director is restricted from sellingpgfarring, pledging or assigning the shares foeehr
years from the grant date unless he or she ebeliges the board.
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The Fiscal 2011 grants were valued at $60,000 basetie average closing price of the stock for
the first five trading days of the month in whidtey were granted and vested in three equal annual
installments beginning on the first anniversaryhe grant date, subject to the director’s contiguin
service. The Fiscal 2012 grants were valued at08D0and the Fiscal 2013 grants were valued at
$80,000 on the same basis, and vested on theafirsversary of the grant date. For Fiscal 2013,
2012 and 2011, the Company issued 9,888 share&34hares and 17,838 shares, respectively, of
director restricted stock.

For Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, the Company rezedn#$0.9 million, $0.8 million and $0.5
million, respectively, of director restricted stooklated share-based compensation in selling and
administrative expenses in the accompanying Catesteld Statements of Operations.

Employee Restricted Stock

Under the 2009 Plan, the Company issued 194,2325h289,407 and 404,995 shares of employee
restricted stock in Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 201lpeetvely. Shares issued in Fiscal 2011, 2012 and
2013 vest 25% per year over four years, provided tn such date the grantee has remained
continuously employed by the Company since the adtgrant. The fair value of employee
restricted stock is charged against income as cosgpen cost over the vesting period.
Compensation cost recognized in selling and adtnatige expenses in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Operations for theseeshaas $9.6 million, $6.9 million and $7.3
million for Fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2011, respecyvel
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A summary of the status of the Company’s nonveskedes of its employee-restricted stock as of
February 2, 2013 is presented below:

Weighted-Average
Grant-Date

Nonvested Restricted Shares Shares Fair Value

Nonvested at Janue 30, 201( 676,114 $ 20.94
Grante 404,995 28.41
Veste( (179,684) 23.09
Withheld for federal taxt (81,73) 23.1¢
Forfeitec (1,575) 19.40
Nonvested at Janue 29, 201: 818,11¢ 23.95
Grante( 289,407 45.14
Vestec (227,691) 22.58
Withheld for federal taxt (93,089 22.42
Forfeitec (14,081) 27.38
Nonvested at Janu: 28, 201. 772,66! 32.41
Granted 194,232 57.58
Vestec (195,203) 29.95
Withheld for federal taxes (75,552) 29.97
Forfeited (3,360) 38.96
Nonvested at Februan 2, 201! 692,782 $ 40.59

As of February 2, 2013 there was $21.7 millionatét unrecognized compensation costs related to
nonvested share-based compensation arrangememésfiocted stock discussed above. That cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted averagedoof 2.27 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the Comgaawythorized to issue up to 1.0 million
shares of common stock to qualifying full-time eoy#es whose total annual base salary is less than
$90,000, effective October 1, 2002. Prior to Octdhe2002, the total annual base salary was
limited to $100,000. Under the terms of the Planplyees could choose each year to have up to
15% of their annual base earnings or $8,500, wkimhes lower, withheld to purchase the
Company’s common stock. The purchase price of iheksvas 85% of the closing market price of
the stock on either the exercise date or the gtarg, whichever was less. The Company’s board of
directors amended the Company’'s Employee Stockhasec Plan effective October 1, 2005 to
provide that participants may acquire shares utidePlan at a 5% discount from fair market value
on the last day of the Plan year. Employees canssheach year to have up to 15% of their annual
base earnings or $9,500, whichever is lower, withibe purchase the Company’s common stock.
Under the Compensation — Stock Compensation TdpibeoCodification, shares issued under the
Plan as amended are non-compensatory. Under time tBk Company sold 2,463 shares, 2,717
shares and 4,230 shares to employees in Fiscal 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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Stock Purchase Plans

Stock purchase accounts arising out of sales toogmgs prior to 1972 under certain employee
stock purchase plans amounted to $96,000 and $1@&aj0February 2, 2013 and January 28, 2012,
respectively, and were secured at February 2, 20438,245 employees’ preferred shares. Payments
on stock purchase accounts under the stock purgblass have been indefinitely deferred. No
further sales under these plans are contemplated.

Note 13
Legal Proceedings

Environmental Matters

New York State Environmental Matters

In August 1997, the New York State Department ofimmental Conservation (“NYSDEC”) and
the Company entered into a consent order wherebyQbmpany assumed responsibility for
conducting a remedial investigation and feasibitydy (“RIFS”) and implementing an interim
remedial measure (“IRM”) with regard to the siteaoknitting mill operated by a former subsidiary
of the Company from 1965 to 1969. The Company tond& the IRM and RIFS voluntarily,
without admitting liability or accepting responsityi for any future remediation of the site. The
Company has completed the IRM and the RIFS. Ircthese of preparing the RIFS, the Company
identified remedial alternatives with estimated isndunted costs ranging from $0.0 million to
$24.0 million, excluding amounts previously expeshd® provided for by the Company. The
United States Environmental Protection Agency (“BERAvhich has assumed primary regulatory
responsibility for the site from NYSDEC, issued acBrd of Decision in September 2007. The
Record of Decision requires a remedy of a combomadf groundwater extraction and treatment and
in-site chemical oxidation at an estimated presest of approximately $10.7 million.

In July 2009, the Company agreed to a Consent Omatér the EPA requiring the Company to
perform certain remediation actions, operationsjnteaance and monitoring at the site. In
September 2009, a Consent Judgment embodying thee@bOrder was filed in the U.S. District
Court for the Eastern District of New York.

The Village of Garden City, New York, has additibpasserted that the Company is liable for the
costs associated with enhanced treatment requyréldebimpact of the groundwater plume from the
site on two public water supply wells, includingstairical costs ranging from approximately $1.8
million to in excess of $2.5 million, and futureesption and maintenance costs which the Village
estimates at $126,400 annually while the enhameadiment continues. On December 14, 2007, the
Village filed a complaint against the Company ahe twner of the property under the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (“RCRA”), the Safenking Water Act, and the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liabiliity (“CERCLA”) as well as a number of
state law theories in the U.S. District Court fbe tEastern District of New York, seeking an
injunction requiring the defendants to remediatatamination from the site and to establish their
liability for future costs that may be incurred ¢onnection with it, which the complaint alleges
could exceed $41 million, undiscounted, over a 8ryeriod.
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The Company has not verified the estimates of ehistoric or future costs asserted by the Village,
but believes that an estimate of future costs based 70-year remediation period is unreasonable
given the expected remedial period reflected inER&’s Record of Decision. On May 23, 2008,
the Company filed a motion to dismiss the Village@mmplaint on grounds including applicable
statutes of limitation and preemption of certaiails by the NYSDEC'’s and the EPA’s diligent
prosecution of remediation. On January 27, 2009 Gburt granted the motion to dismiss all counts
of the plaintiff's complaint except for the CERCL&#aim and a state law claim for indemnity for
costs incurred after November 27, 2000. On SepterdB, 2009, on a motion for reconsideration
by the Village, the Court reinstated the claimsifgunctive relief under RCRA and for equitable
relief under certain of the state law theories. Tloenpany intends to continue to defend the action.

Whitehall Environmental Matters

The Company has performed sampling and analyss®igfsediments, surface water, groundwater
and waste management areas at the Company’'s fovislenteer Leather Company facility in
Whitehall, Michigan.

In October 2010, the Company and the Michigan Depamt of Natural Resources and
Environment entered into a Consent Decree provitbngmplementation of a remedial Work Plan
for the facility site designed to bring the sitéoirompliance with applicable regulatory standards.
The Work Plan’s implementation is substantially pdete and the Company expects, based on its
present understanding of the condition of the ¢itat its future obligations with respect to thee si
will be limited to periodic monitoring and that twe costs related to the site should not have a
material effect on its financial condition or resubf operations.

Accrual for Environmental Contingencies

Related to all outstanding environmental contingesiche Company had accrued $11.9 million as
of February 2, 2013, $13.0 million as of JanuaryZ®8.2 and $15.5 million as of January 29, 2011.
All such provisions reflect the Company’s estimaiéthe most likely cost (undiscounted, including
both current and noncurrent portions) of resolvitige contingencies, based on facts and
circumstances as of the time they were made. Tlemo assurance that relevant facts and
circumstances will not change, necessitating futhhanges to the provisions. Such contingent
liabilities are included in the liability arisingdm provision for discontinued operations on the
accompanying Condensed Consolidated Balance Sleemuse it relates to former facilities
operated by the Company. The Company has madexpmtcruals for certain of these
contingencies, including approximately $0.8 millisaflected in Fiscal 2013, $1.8 million reflected
in Fiscal 2012 and $2.9 million reflected in Fis@8il1. These charges are included in provision
for discontinued operations, net in the Consolid&@&tements of Operations and represent changes
in estimates.
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Other Matters

On December 10, 2010, the Company announced thaiditsuffered a criminal intrusion into the
portion of its computer network that processes paws for transactions in certain of its retail
stores. Visa, Inc., MasterCard Worldwide and Anari€xpress Travel Related Services Company,
Inc. have asserted claims totaling approximately.&illion in connection with the intrusion and
the claims of two of the claimants have been ctdiddy withholding payment card receivables of
the Company. In the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2ah&, Company recorded a $15.4 million charge to
earnings in connection with the disputed liabilitgn March 7, 2013, the Company filed an action
in the U.S. District Court for the Middle Distriof Tennessee against Visa U.S.A. Inc., Visa Inc.
and Visa International Service Association seekingecover $13.3 million in non-compliance fines
and issuer reimbursement assessments collectedtfie@@ompany in connection with the intrusion.
The Company does not currently expect any futuaend in connection with the intrusion to have a
material effect on its financial condition, casbwik, or results of operations.

On January 5, 2012, a patent infringement actioainsgy the Company and numerous other
defendants was filed in the U.S. District Court tbe Eastern District of TexaGeoTag, Inc. v.
Circle K Store, Inc., et alalleging that features of certain of the Compamfsommerce websites
infringe U.S. Patent No. 5,930,474, entitled “Imtr Organizer for Accessing Geographically and
Topically Based Information.” The plaintiff seekelief including damages for the alleged
infringement, costs, expenses and pre- and pogtyedt interest and injunctive relief. The
Company disputes the validity of the claim andetedding the matter.

On June 13, 2012, a former vendor of a subsididthe® Company filed an actio®erfect Curve,
Inc. v. Hat World, Inc.jn U.S. District Court in Massachusetts, allegiragemt, trademark, trade
dress, and copyright infringement against the slidgasi based on the sale of a line of products
developed by the subsidiary. The Company deniesntléerial allegations against it and is
defending the action.

On May 14, 2012, a putative class and collectiveacMaro v. Hat World, Inc.was filed in the
U.S. District Court for the Northern District ofiHois. The action alleges that the Company faited
pay the plaintiff and other, similarly situated aiétstore employees of Hat World, Inc., for time
spent making bank deposits of store collections] seeks to recover unpaid wages, liquidated
damages, statutory penalties, attorneys fees, @std pursuant to the federal Fair Labor Standards
Act, the lllinois Minimum Wage Law and the lllinoWwage Payment and Collection Act. On July
16, 2012 and July 30, 2012, additional putativessland collective action§havez v. Hat World,
Inc. andDismukes v. Hat World, Incwere filed in the same court, alleging that dartdat World
employees were misclassified as exempt from overpay, and seeking similar relief. T@havez
andDismukesactions have been consolidated. The Company téispne material allegations in the
consolidated action and Maro and is defending the actions.

On August 30, 2012, a former employee of a Compsulysidiary filed a putative class and
collective actionKershner v. Hat World, Incin the Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Court of Common
Pleas alleging violations of the Pennsylvania MimmWage Act by the subsidiary. The Company
is defending the matter.
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In addition to the matters specifically describedhis Note, the Company is a party to other legal
and regulatory proceedings and claims arising i@ dndinary course of its business. While
management does not believe that the Company'dityalith respect to any of these other matters
is likely to have a material effect on its finariga@sition, cash flows, or results of operatiorgal
proceedings are subject to inherent uncertaintreb unfavorable rulings could have a material
adverse impact on the Company’s business and sesfufperations.

Note 14
Business Segment Information

During Fiscal 2013, the Company operated five rigibe business segments (not including
corporate): (i) Journeys Group, comprised of therdeys, Journeys Kidz, Shi by Journeys and
Underground by Journeys retail footwear chainsalogtand e-commerce operations; (ii) Schuh
Group, acquired in June 2011, comprised of the atiail footwear chain and e-commerce
operations; (iii) Lids Sports Group, comprised ity of the Lids, Hat World and Hat Shack retail
headwear stores, the Lids Locker Room and Lids I@lube fan shops (operated under various trade
names), the Lids Team Sports business and cer@amenerce operations; (iv) Johnston & Murphy
Group, comprised of Johnston & Murphy retail operat, e-commerce and catalog operations and
wholesale distribution; and (v) Licensed Brandsmpdsed of Dockef® Footwear, sourced and
marketed under a license from Levi Strauss & CompaureGrij Footwear, occupational
footwear primarily sold directly to consumers; aiter footwear brands.

The accounting policies of the segments are theesasthose described in the summary of
significant accounting policies.

The Company’s reportable segments are based ongeraleat’s organization of the segments in
order to make operating decisions and assess paifwe along types of products sold. Journeys
Group, Schuh Group and Lids Sports Group sell pilgpnAranded products from other companies
while Johnston & Murphy Group and Licensed Branels grimarily the Company’s owned and
licensed brands. As a result of combining the Wgieind Station Group with Journeys Group in
the first quarter of Fiscal 2013, Journeys Grougnst sales, operating income, total assets,
depreciation and amortization and capital expenefitinave been restated for Fiscal 2012 and 2011
to conform to the current year presentation.

Corporate assets include cash, domestic prepaid exgmense, prepaid income taxes, deferred
income taxes, deferred note expense and corparae &ssets. The Company charges allocated
retail costs of distribution to each segment. Twnpany does not allocate certain costs to each
segment in order to make decisions and assesgiparioe. These costs include corporate overhead,
interest expense, interest income, asset impairotenges and other, including major litigation.
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Fiscal 2013

3 Schuh Johnston

. ourneys chu Lids Sports & Murphy Licensed  Corporate ]

In thousands Group Group Group Group Brands & Other Consolidated
Sales $1,111,49 $370,480 $ 793,016 $ 221,870 $ 108,808 $ 1,234 $ 2,606,898
Intercompany sales — — (1,761) (10) (310) — (2,081)
Net sales to external customers

$1,111,49 $370,480 $ 791,255 $ 221,860 $ 108,498 $ 1,234 $ 2,604,817
Segment operating income (lc $ 106,92¢ $ 7,875 $ 85794 $ 15737 $ 10,064 $ (41,392) $ 185,007
Asset Impairments and other* _ _ _ _ _ (17,037) (17,037)
Earnings (loss) from
operations 106,92¢ 7,875 85,794 15,737 10,064 (58,429) 167,970
Interest expen: — — — — — (5,126) (5,126)
Interest incom _ — — — — 95 95
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxe $ 10692¢ $ 7,875 $ 85794 $ 15737 $ 10,064 $ (63,460) $ 162,939
Total assets** $ 280,396 $231,323 $ 519,006 $ 89505 $ 43212 $ 170,347 $ 1,333,789
Depreciation and amortizati 20,190 10,040 26,892 3,738 366 2,471 63,697
Capital expenditure 21,852 16,873 21,448 6,680 1,255 3,629 71,737

*Asset Impairments and other includes a $1.4 arilicharge for asset impairments, of which $0.9ienills in the Lids Sports Group,
$0.4 million is in the Journeys Group and $0.1lionilis in the Johnston & Murphy Group, a $15.3liom charge for network intrusion costs and a

$0.1 million charge for other legal matters.

**Total assets for the Lids Sports Group, Schuhuprand Licensed Brands include $172.3 million, $Z0@illion and $0.8 million of goodwill,
respectively. Goodwill for Lids Sports Group indes $13.2 million of additions in Fiscal 2013 résg from small acquisitions and the Schuh
Group goodwill increased by $0.8 million due toeiign currency translation adjustment.
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Fiscal 2012
Johnston
Journeys Schuh Lids Sports & Murphy Licensed Corporate
In thousands Group Group Group Group Brands & Other Consolidated
Sales $ 1,020,116 212,262 $ 759,671 $ 201,72! $ 97,721 $ 1,11¢ $ 2,292,661
Intercompany sales — — (347) — 277) — (624)

*»

Net sales to external customers $ 1,020,116 $ 212,262 $ 759,324 $ 201,72! $ 97,444 1,11¢ $ 2,291,98

Segment operating income (loss) $82452 $ 11,711 $ 82,349 $ 13,68. $ 9,456 $ (53,107 $ 146,54
Asset Impairments and other* — — — — — (2,677) (2,677)
Earnings (loss) from operations 82,452 11,711 82,349 13,682 9,456 (55,780) 143,870
Interest expense — — — — — (5,157) (5,157)
Interest income — — — — — 65 65
Earnings (loss) from continuing

operations before income taxes  $ 82452 $ 11,711 $ 82,349 $ 1368. $ 9,456 $ (60,87) $ 138,77!
Total assets** $ 259,331 $ 205,313 $ 489,512 $ 7932 $ 34974 $ 168,81: $ 1,237,26
Depreciation and amortization 20,742 4,602 22,541 3,538 285 2,029 53,737
Capital expenditures 11,125 7,406 24,497 1,894 718 3,816 49,456

*Asset Impairments and other includes a $1.1 nmlébarge for asset impairments, of which $0.6 onillis in the Journeys Group, $0.3 million is in
the Lids Sports Group and $0.2 million is in théadgton & Murphy Group, a $0.7 million charge fortwerk intrusion costs and a $0.9 million
charge for other legal matters.

**Total assets for the Lids Sports Group, Schuhuprand Licensed Brands include $159.1 million, $99illion and $0.8 million of goodwiill,
respectively. Goodwill for Lids Sports Group ind&s $6.5 million of additions in Fiscal 2012 remgtfrom small acquisitions and the Schuh Group
goodwill is due to the acquisition of Schuh in $ezond quarter of Fiscal 2012 of $102.9 million ekhhas been decreased by $3.0 million due to
foreign currency translation adjustment.
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Fiscal 2011
Johnstor
Journeys Lids Sports & Murphy Licensed Corporate
In thousands Group Group Group Brands & Other Consolidated
Sales $ 898,500 $ 603,533 $185,012 $101,839 $ 1,339 $ 1,790,222
Intercompany sales — (188) (1) (195) — (384)
Net sales to external customers $ 898,500 $ 603,345 $185,01: $101,644 $ 1,339 $ 1,789,83

Segment operating income (loss) $ 49,642 $ 56,026 $ 7,59t $ 12,359 $ (30,972) $ 94,65(
Asset Impairments and other* — — — — (8,567) (8,567)
Earnings (loss) from operations 49,642 56,026 7,595 12,35¢ (39,539) 86,083
Interest expense — — — — (1,130) (1,130)
Interest income — — — — 8 8

Earnings (loss) from continuing

operations before income taxes $ 49,642 $ 56,026 $ 7,59t $ 12,359 $ (40,661) $ 84,96
Total assets** $ 268,335 $ 435,016 $ 72,39 $ 38,152 $ 147,186 $  961,08:
Depreciation and amortization 23,005 18,627 3,754 217 2,135 47,738
Capital expenditures 7,754 17,908 1,687 27 1,923 29,299

*Asset Impairments and other includes a $7.2 nmilldharge for asset impairments, of which $5.5 anillis in the Journeys Group, $1.0 million is in
the Lids Sports Group and $0.7 million is in théaidston & Murphy Group, a $1.3 million charge fotwerk intrusion costs and a $0.1 million

charge for other legal matters.

**Total assets for the Lids Sports Group and Liegh8rands include $152.5 million and $0.8 millidhgoodwill, respectively. Goodwill for the
Lids Sports Group includes $33.5 million of addisan Fiscal 2011 resulting from small acquisiti@amsl the Licensed Brands goodwill is due to the

acquisition of Keuka Footwear in Fiscal 2011.

101



Note 15

Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

(In thousands, 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Fiscal Year
except per
share amounts) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Net sale $ 600,144 $ 481,502 $ 543,52 $ 470,591 $ 664,458 $ 616,525 $ 796,693 $ 723,369 $ 2,604,817 $ 2,291,98
Gross marg 306,664 246,786 273,022 235,771 334,348 310,457 384,313 354,692 1,298,347 1,147,70
Earnings fromr
continuing
operations before
income taxes 34,800 @ 25011 @ 15748 © 570 © 51,077 ©® 44043 @O 61224 @@ 69154 w 162,939 138,77t
Earnings fron
continuing
operations 20,791 14,975 10,561 350 40,969 26,161 38,677 41,498 110,998 82,98
Net earnings
(loss) 20,614 @ 14793 @ 10,520 (392) @ 40875 ©@ 26,088 M 38527 ¥ 41470 110,536 81,95¢
Diluted earnings
(loss) per
common share:

Continuing

operations 0.86 0.63 0.44 0.01 171 1.09 1.63 172 4.62 3.4¢

Net earning:

(loss)

0.85 0.63 0.43 (0.02) 1.70 1.09 1.62 1.72 4.60 3.4%

(1) Includes a net asset impairment and other char§@.afmillion (see Note 3). &) week period vs. 13
(2) Includes a loss of $0.2 million, net of tax, fromsabntinued operations (see Note 3). weeks in prior period.
3) Includes a net asset impairment and other chargé.@fmillion (see Note 3). B8 week period vs. 52
(4) Includes a loss of $0.2 million, net of tax, fromsabntinued operations (see Note 3). weeks in prior period.
(5) Includes a net asset impairment and other char§6.dfmillion (see Note 3).
(6) Includes a net asset impairment and other char§6.dfmillion (see Note 3).
(7 Includes a loss of $0.7 million, net of tax, fromsabntinued operations (see Note 3).
(8) Includes a net asset impairment and other char§6.dfmillion (see Note 3).
(9) Includes a loss of $0.1 million, net of tax, fromsabntinued operations (see Note 3).
(20) Includes a net asset impairment and other char§8.8fmillion (see Note 3).
(12) Includes a loss of $0.1 million, net of tax, fromsabntinued operations (see Note 3).
(12) Includes a net asset impairment and other char§é&&fl million (see Note 3).
(13) Includes a loss of $0.2 million, net of tax, fromsabntinued operations (see Note 3).
(14) Includes a net asset impairment and other char§@.8fmillion (see Note 3).
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ITEM 9, CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A, CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures.

We have established disclosure controls and preesdo ensure that material information relatinght® Company, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known toofffieers who certify the Company’s financial refgand to other members
of senior management and the Board of Directors.

Based on their evaluation as of February 2, 2048 ptincipal executive officer and principal fingalwfficer of the Company

have concluded that the Company’s disclosure csnénad procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15@)L&d-15(e) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934) were effectiverisure that the information required to be disddsethe Company in the
reports that it files or submits under the SeasitExchange Act of 1934 is (i) recorded, processaeaymarized and reported
within time periods specified in SEC rules and feramd (ii) accumulated and communicated to the Gmyip management,

including the Company’s principal executive officend principal financial officer, to allow timelyedisions regarding

required disclosure.

Management's report on internal control over finaieeporting.

Management of the Company is responsible for astdabfy and maintaining effective internal contreko financial reporting
as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the SecuritigsshBnge Act of 1934. The Company’s internal conteér financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasenassurance regarding the reliability of finanaiaporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappsges in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Therefore,
even those systems determined to be effective caviqe only reasonable assurance with respectnanéial statement
preparation and presentation.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgtapaternal control over financial reporting as eébruary 2, 2013. In
making this assessment, management used the arietiforth ininternal Control — Integrated Frameworttrafted by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TreadwWommission (COSO). Based on this assessmemagaaent

believes that, as of February 2, 2013, the Compamternal control over financial reporting is effige based on these
criteria.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered pulaiccounting firm who also audited the Company sxs@didated
Financial Statements, has issued an attestaticortrep the Company’s internal control over finahgi@porting which is
included herein.

Changes in internal control over financial repogin

There were no changes in the Company'’s internatrabover financial reporting that occurred duritit;e Company’s last
fiscal quarter that have materially affected or eeasonably likely to materially affect the Companinternal control over
financial reporting.

ITEM 9B, OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 10, DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

Certain information required by this item is incorated herein by reference to the sections entiidection of Directors,”
“Corporate Governance” and “Section 16(a) Bendfi@anership Reporting Compliance” in the Comparggdinitive proxy
statement for its annual meeting of shareholderbetcheld June 26, 2013, to be filed with the Séiesriand Exchange
Commission. Pursuant to General Instruction G(8)tain information concerning the executive offe@f the Company
appears under the caption “Executive Officers efRegistrant” in this report following Item 4 ofriPa

The Company has a code of ethics (the “Code ofcEthithat applies to all of its directors, officefimcluding its chief

executive officer, chief financial officer and chi@ccounting officer) and employees. The Company made the Code of
Ethics available and intends to post any legalfuieed amendments to, or waivers of, such Codetlot& on its website at
http://www.genesco.com. Our website address isigealvas an inactive textual reference only. Therimftion provided on
our website is not a part of this report, and tfeeeeis not incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11, EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorp@ctherein by reference to the sections entitledeé®@or Compensation,”
“Compensation Committee Report” and “Executive Cengation” in the Company’s definitive proxy statenfor its annual
meeting of shareholders to be held June 26, 2013 filed with the Securities and Exchange Comimiss

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Certain information required by this item is incorated herein by reference to the section entit®&scurity Ownership of
Officers, Directors and Principal Shareholders”tie Company’s definitive proxy statement for itsnaal meeting of
shareholders to be held June 26, 2013, to beilddthe Securities and Exchange Commission.

The following table provides certain informationafd=ebruary 2, 2013 with respect to our equity pensation plans:
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION*

(@) (©

Number of (b) Number of securities
securities Weighted-average remaining available for
to be issued exercise price of future issuance under equity
upon exercise of outstanding compensation plans
outstanding options, options, warrants (excluding securitie )
warrants and rights and rights reflected in column (a)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydre 263,155 $ 27 .47 1,898,881
Equity compensatic plans not approved by security holc _ — _
Total 263,155 $ 27.4: 1,898,881

(1) Such shares may be issued as restricted sharéisenfearms of stock-based compensation pursuamtitgtock incentive
plans.

*For additional information concerning our equitynepensation plans, see the discussion in NotdHeiNotes to
Consolidated Financial Statements—Summary ofifségmt Accounting Policies — Share-Based Compeéosatnd Note 12
Shar-Based Compensation Pla

ITEM 13, CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorp@aterein by reference to the section entitled ¢éd@ of Directors” in the
Company’s definitive proxy statement for its annagadeting of shareholders to be held June 26, 2@1Bge filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorp@ctherein by reference to the section entitled ‘iAddiatters” in the
Company’s definitive proxy statement for its annoadeting of shareholders to be held June 26, 2@1Bge filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

104



PART IV

ITEM 15, EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statementsa@nesco Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) itgd &s part of this
report under Item 8.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiiing on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfiiingy on Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets, February 2, 2013amdhdy 28, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Operations, each dhtiee fiscal years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inconed, @ithe three fiscal years ended 2013, 2012 add 2
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, each dhtkee fiscal years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Equity, each of thestfiseal years ended 2013, 2012 and 2011

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule 2 — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts,eatthe three fiscal years ended 2013, 2012 aid 20

All other schedules are omitted because the regjiifermation is either not applicable or is prasenin the financial
statements or related notes. These schedules begiage 111.

Exhibits

(2 a. Agreement and Plan of Merg dated as of Februe 5, 2004, by and among Genesco |
HWC Merger Sub, Inc. and Hat World Corporation.drporated by reference to Exhibit (2)a
to the current report on Form 8-K filed April 9,@D(File No. 1—3083).

b.  Stock Purchase Agreemedated Decemb 9, 2006, by and among Hat World, Inc., |
Shack, Inc. and all the shareholders of Hat ShHack,Incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.1 to the current report on Form 8-K filed Decemb?2, 2006 (File No. 1-3083).

c.  Sale and Purcha Agreement, dated as of J1 23, 2011, by and among Genesco Inc., Sc
Group Limited, Genesco (UK) Limited and the perslisted on Schedule 1 thereto.
(Pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K, sbhedules and exhibits from this
agreement are omitted, but will be provided suppletally to the Commission upon request.)
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to theent report on Form 8-K filed June 28, 2011
(File No. 1-3083).

d.  £2Emillion Loan Note Instrument of Genesco (UK) Lindtdate(June¢ 23, 2011
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to theent report on Form 8-K filed June 28, 2011
(File No. 1-3083).
3) a. Amended and Restated Bylaws of Genesco Inc. Incatpd by reference to Exhibit 3.1
the current report on Form 8-K filed December 18)2 (File No. 1-3083).

b. Restated Charter of Genesco Inc., as amendedpimeted by reference to Exhibit 1 to 1
Genesco Inc. Registration Statement on Form 8-Aéd fvith the SEC on May 1, 2003 (File

No.1-3083).

4) a. Second Amended and Restated Rights Agreement datefiApri 18, 2010. Incorporated t
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the current report onnfr8-K filed April 9, 2010 (File No. 1-
3083).

b.  Form of Certificate for the Common Stock. Incorgerhbyreference to Exhibit 3 to tf
Genesco Inc. Registration Statement on Form 8-Aéd fvith the SEC on May 1, 2003 (File
No.1-3083).

105



(10)

o

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dateflJanua 21, 2011, by an

among the Genesco Inc., certain subsidiaries o&#mesco Inc.party thereto, as other
domestic borrowers and GCO Canada Inc., the lenmety thereto and Bank of America,
N.A., as administrative agent and collateral agemorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
to the current report on Form 8-K filed January 2811 (File No. 1-3083). First Amendment
to Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreemeteil] dane 23, 2011, by and among
Genesco Inc., certain subsidiaries of Genescoplamty thereto, as other domestic borrowers
and GCO Canada Inc., the lenders party theret@an#t of America, N.A., as administrative
agent and collateral agent. Incorporated by referém Exhibit 10.1 to the current report on
Form 8-K filed June 28, 2011 (File No. 1-3083).

Form of Spli-Dollar Insurance Agreement with Executive Officdreorporated by referen:
to Exhibit (10)a to the Company’s Annual ReportFmrm 10-K for the fiscal year ended
February 1, 1997 (File No.1-3083).

1996 Stock Incentive Plan Amended and Restatedl @stobe 24, 2007. Form of Optio
Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibi)¢16 the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 3,2(Fle No.1-3083).

Genesco Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan AmendedRestated as of Octol 24, 2007
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (10)d to tle@any’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2008 (FileIN2083).

Genesco Inc. 2009 Equity Incentive Plan. Incorpatdty reference to Exhibit A to tl
Company’s definitive proxy statement dated May2@)9. Amended and Restated Genesco
Inc. 2009 Equity Incentive Plan. Incorporated bigrence to Exhibit A to the Company’s
definitive proxy statement dated May 13, 2011.

Amended and Restated EVA Incentive Compensation. Rtaorporated by reference
Exhibit (10)a to the Company’s Quarterly Reportrammm 10-Q for the quarter ended

April 30, 2011. Genesco Inc. Supplemental EVA InaenCompensation Plan for the Period
July 31, 2011 - January 28, 2012.

Amended and Restated EVA Incentive Compensation. Rtaorporated by reference
Exhibit (10)a to the Company’s Quarterly Reportrammm 10-Q for the quarter ended
April 28, 2012

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement. Incorpedaby reference to Exhibit (10)c to t
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertgraended October 29, 2005 (File
No.1-3083).

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Agreement. Incorporated &ference to Exhibit (10)
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qttier quarter ended October 29, 2005
(File No.1-3083).

Form of Restricted Share AwaAgreement for Executive Officers. Incorporated bference
to Exhibit (10)e to the Company’s Quarterly RepgmrtForm 10-Q for the quarter ended
October 29, 2005 (File No.1-3083).

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement for Officend Employeeidncorporated b
reference to Exhibit (10)f to the Company’s Qudyt&eport on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended October 29, 2005 (File No.1-3083).

Form of Restricted Share Award Agreement. Incorfaaldy reference to Exhibit (10)a to 1
Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thertgraended August 1, 2009.

Form of Indemnification Agreement For Directorscanporated by reference to Exhi
(10)m to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10sKthe fiscal year ended January 31,
1993 (File N0.1-3083).

Form of Nor-Executive Director Indemnification Agreement. Ingorated by reference
Exhibit (10.1) to the current report on Form 8-kedi November 3, 2008 (File No. 1-3083).

Form of Officer Indemnification Agreemeilncorporated by reference to Exhibit (1(to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordbarter ended November 1, 2008 (File
No.1-3083).

Supplemental Pension Agreement dated as of Oc 18, 1988 between the Company ¢
William S. Wire 1l, as amended January 9, 1993oiporated by reference to Exhibit (10)p to
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for tteedil year ended January 31, 1993 (File
No.1-3083)

Deferred Compensation Trust Agreement dated aslofuanr 27, 1991 btween the

Company and NationsBank of Tennessee for the besfafVilliam S. Wire, 1l, as amended
January 9, 1993. Incorporated by reference to Hix¢iib)qg to the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Januaryl®®3 (File No.1-3083).

106



(21)
(23)

(24)

aa

bb.

CC.

dd.

ee

ff.

99.

hh.

Form of Employment Protection Agreement betweerbmpany and certain executi
officers dated as of February 26, 1997. Incorparatereference to Exhibit (10)p to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fispadr ended February 1, 1997 (File
No.1-3083)

First Amendment to Form of Employment Protectiorréament. Incorporated by referer
to Exhibit (10)s to the Company’s Annual Reportramrm 10-K for the fiscal year ended
January 30, 2010.

EmploymentAgreement dated as of Mai 29, 2010 between the Company and Ha
Pennington. Incorporated by reference to Exhitfit{1o the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 30,0201

Trademark License Agreement, dated Ast 9, 2000, between Levi Strai & Co. and
Genesco Inc. Incorporated by reference to Exhiffit]) to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 30, 2604 No.1-3083).*

Amendment Nc 1 (Renewal) to Trademark Licee Agreement, dated Octol 18, 2004
between Levi Strauss & Co. and Genesco Inc. Ingatpd by reference to Exhibit (10.2) to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q forgberter ended October 30, 2004 (File

Amendment N¢ 2 (Rerewal) to Trademark License Agreement, dated Nove 1, 2006,
between Levi Strauss & Co. and Genesco. Inc. Iraratpd by reference to Exhibit (10.1) to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordgberter ended October 28, 2006 (File

Amendment Nc4 (Renewal) to Trademark License Agreement, datay 15, 2009
between Levi Strauss & Co. and Genesco Inc. Incatpd by reference to Exhibit (10)b to
the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordbarter ended August 1, 2009.*

Amendment N¢5 (Renewal) to Trademark License Agreement, daigd2B, 2012, betwee
Levi Strauss & Co. and Genesco Inc. Incorporatecegrence to Exhibit (10.1) to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 2612 (File No. 1-3083).*

Genesco Inc. Deferred Income Plan dated as o 1, 2000. Incorporated by reference
Exhibit (10)p to the Company’s Annual Report oniadrO-K for the fiscal year ended
January 29, 2005. Amended and Restated Deferredniaélan dated August 22, 2007.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (10)r to trenpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended February 2, 2008 (File N@&33.

Non-Employee Director and Named Executive Officer Congagion. Incorporated
reference to Exhibit (10)b to the Company’s QuéytBeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended October 29, 2005 (File No.1-3083).

The Schuh Group Limited 2015 Management Bonus Sehémorporated by reference
Exhibit (10)a to the Company’s Quarterly Reportrammm 10-Q for the quarter ended July 30,
2011.

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Incorporatedfbyence to Registration Statement
Form S-8 filed September 14, 1995 (File No. 333536

Amended and Restated GeneEmployee Stock Purchase Plan dated AL 22, 2007
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (10)u to themany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2008 (FileIN2083).

Basic Form of Exchange Agreement (Restricted k). Incorporated by reference to Exhi
10.1 to the current report on Form 8-K filed A8, 2009 (File No. 1-3083).

Basic Form of Exchange Agreement (Unrestricted I§tdacorporated by reference
Exhibit 10.2 to the current report on Form 8-K dil&pril 29, 2009 (File No. 1-3083).

Form of Conversion Agreement. Incorporated by mfee to Exhibit 10.1 to the curre
report on Form 8-K filed November 2, 2009 (File Ne3083).

Form of Conversion Agreement. Incorporatecreference to Exhibit 10.1 to the currt
report on Form 8-K filed November 6, 2009 (File Ne3083).

Settlement Agreement, dated as of M 3, 2008, by and among UBS Securities LLC
UBS Loan Finance LLC, The Finish Line, Inc. and temd, Inc. and Genesco Inc.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to therext report on Form 8-K filed March 4,
2008 (File No. 1-3083).

Subsidiaries of the Compal

Consent of Ern & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public AccougtiFirmincluded or
page 1089.

Power of Attorne
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(31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Purstido Sectio 302 of the Sarban-Oxley

Act of 2002.

(31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuidao Sectio 302 of theSarbane-Oxley
Act of 2002.

(32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursti@o 18 U.S.C. Sectic 1350, as Adopte
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002.

(32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursiiao 18 U.S.C. Sectic 1350, as Adopte

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002.

(99) Financial Statements and Report of IndependentdRagd Public Accounting Firm with
respect to the Genesco Employee Stock Purchasé®iiag filed herein in lieu of filing Form
11-K pursuant to Rule 15d-21.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCt XBRL Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF XBRL Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB XBRL Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Presentation Linkbase Document

Exhibits (10)b through (10)I, (10)r through (10¥ida(10)z through (10)dd are Management Contrac@oonpensatory Plans
or Arrangements required to be filed as Exhibitthis Form 10-K.

*Certain information has been omitted and filedasagely with the Securities and Exchange Commisslamfidentia
treatment has been requested with respect tontlitied portion.

A copy of any of the above described exhibits Wélfurnished to the shareholders upon written retjaeldressed to Director,

Corporate Relations, Genesco Inc., Genesco PatknR@8, P.O. Box 731, Nashville, Tennessee 372®-0dccompanied
by a check in the amount of $15.00 payable to Genbx.

108



Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRkgistration Statements on Form S-8 (Registratios. 333-62653, 333-
08463, 333-104908, 333-128201, 333-160339 and 88343) and in the Registration Statement on Forgn(Registration
No. 333-109019) of Genesco Inc. of our reportsdidteril 3, 2013, with respect to the consolidatedhficial statements and
schedule of Genesco Inc. and Subsidiaries, aneffaetiveness of internal control over financigboeting of Genesco Inc. and
Subsidiaries, included in this Annual Report (FA®AK) for the year ended February 2, 2013.

We also consent to the incorporation by referemcéhé Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registratlo. 333-62653)
pertaining to the 1996 Employee Stock Purchase &faBenesco Inc. of our report dated April 3, 2@tigh respect to the
financial statements of the Genesco Inc. EmployeekSPurchase Plan, included as an exhibit to Almsual Report (Form
10-K) for the year ended February 2, 2013.

Srmt + LLP

Nashville, TN

April 3, 2013
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf bytidersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GENESCO INC

By: /s/James S. Gulmi

James S. Gulmi
Senior Vice President — Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

Date: April 3, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the @tipa indicated on the 3rd day of April, 2013.

/s/Robert J. Denn Chairman, President, Chief Executive Off
Robert J. Denn and a Directc

/s/James S. Guli Senior VicePresiden- Finance an

James S. Gulr Chief Financial Office

(Principal Financial Office

/s/Paul D. William Vice President and Chief Accounting Offi
Paul D. William:

Directors

James S. Bear Matthew C. Diamond

Leonard L. Berry Marty G. Dickens

William F. Blaufuss, Jr. Thurgood Marshall, Jr.

James W. Bradfor¢ Kathleen Mason

*By /s/Roger G. Sisson
Roger G. Sisson
Attorney-In-Fact
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Schedule 2

Genesco Inc.
and Subsidiaries
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Year Ended February 2, 2013

Charged
Beginning to Profit Increases Ending
In Thousands Balance and Loss (Decreases) Balance
Reserves deductdrom assets in the balance sh
Accounts Receivable Allowance $ 6,900 $ 1,325 $ (2,143) $ 6,082
Year Ended January 28, 2012
Charged
Beginning to Profit Increases Ending
In Thousands Balance and Loss (Decreases) Balance
Reserve deducted from assets in the balance s
Accounts Receivable Allowance $ 3301 $ 2004 $ 1,595 $ 6,900
Year Ended January 29, 2011
Charged
Beginning to Profit Increases Ending
In Thousands Balance and Loss (Decreases) Balance
Reserves deducted from assets in the balance
Accounts Receivable Allowance $ 3232 $ 1,081 $ (1,012) $ 3,301
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

James S. Beard

Retired President, Caterpillar Financial ServicespGration
Jupiter, Florida

Member of the audit and finance committees

Leonard L. Berry

Presidential Professor for Teaching Excellence eRegProfessor, Distinguished Professor of Marigetamd Professor of
Humanities in Medicine, Texas A&M University

College Station, Texas

Member of the compensation and nominating and g@avere committees

William F. Blaufuss, Jr.

Retired Partner, KPMG LLP

Certified Public Accountant

Nashville, Tennessee

Chairman of the audit committee, member of therfa@acommittee

James W. Bradford

Dean, Owen Graduate School of Management

Vanderbilt University

Nashville, Tennessee

Chairman of the nominating and governance comnjitteanmber of the compensation committee

Robert J. Dennis
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
Genesco Inc.

Matthew C. Diamond

President and Chief Executive Officer

Alloy, Inc.

New York, New York

Chairman of the compensation committee, membenefihnance committee

Marty G. Dickens

Retired President

AT&T -Tennessee

Nashville, Tennessee

Chairman of the finance committee, member of thditaand the nominating and governance committees

Thurgood Marshall, Jr.

Partner

Bingham McCutchen, LLP

Washington, D.C.

Member of the finance and nominating and governaocemittees

Kathleen Mason

Director

Dallas, Texas

Member of the audit and compensation committees
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CORPORATE OFFICERS

Robert J. Dennis
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
9 years with Genesco

James S. Gulmi
Senior Vice President-Finance and Chief Financfécér
41 years with Genesco

James C. Estepa
Senior Vice President — The Journeys Group
28 years with Genesco

Jonathan D. Caplan
Senior Vice President — Genesco Branded
20 years with Genesco

Kenneth J. Kocher
Senior Vice President — Lids Sports Group
9 years with Genesco

Roger G. Sisson
Senior Vice President, Corporate Secretary and @e@eunsel
19 years with Genesco

Mimi E. Vaughn
Senior Vice President - Strategy and Shared Sexvice
9 years with Genesco

Paul D. Williams
Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer
36 years with Genesco

Matthew N. Johnson

Vice President and Treasurer
20 years with Genesco
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